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This Offering Memorandum is for the personal use only of those persons to whom we deliver a copy in
connection with this Offering for the purpose of evaluating the securities we are offering hereby. By
accepting a copy of this Offering Memorandum, you agree that you will not transmit, reproduce or make
availabletoanyone,otherthanyourprofessionaladvisorsorasrequired by law, this OfferingMemorandum
or any information contained herein. No person has been authorized to give any other information or to
makeanyotherrepresentationconcerningthisOfferingthatisnotcontainedinthisOfferingMemorandum.
You should not rely on any such other information or representation. The delivery of this Offering
Memorandumisnotintendedto constitute an offering of securitieswhereitis unlawfulto makean offering
memorandum distribution under National Instrument 45-106.

Continuous Offering March 31, 2022
AMENDED AND RESTATED OFFERING MEMORANDUM
CMI HIGH-YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.
Class A Preferred Shares
Class F Preferred Shares

SUBSCRIPTION PRICE: $1.00 PER SHARE
MINIMUM INITIAL INVESTMENT: $5,000

ThisConfidential OfferingMemorandum (the“OfferingMemorandum”)constitutesacontinuousofferingof
securitiesof CMIHigh-YieldOpportunityFundCorp.(the“Corporation”)asdescribedherein,onaprivateplacement
basisonlyinthosejurisdictionswheretheymaybelawfullyofferedforsaleandthereinonlybypersonspermitted
tosellsuchsecuritiesandtothosepersonstowhomtheymaybelawfullyofferedforsale.Nosecuritiescommission
orsimilarregulatoryauthorityinCanadaoranyotherjurisdictionhasreviewedtheOfferingMemorandumorhasin
anywaypasseduponthemeritsofthesecuritiesofferedhereunderandanyrepresentationtothecontraryisan
offence.Noprospectushasbeenfiledorwillbefiledwithanysuchauthorityinconnectionwiththesecuritiesoffered
hereunder.TheOfferingMemorandumisprovidedtospecificprospectiveinvestorsforthepurposeofassistingthem
andtheirprofessionaladvisersinevaluatingthesecuritiesofferedherebyandisnot,andundernocircumstances,is
tobeconstruedasaprospectusoradvertisementorapublicofferingofthesesecurities.Nopersonisauthorizedto
giveanyinformationormakeanyrepresentationnotcontainedintheOfferingMemoranduminconnectionwiththe
offeringofthesesecuritiesandifgivenormade,anysuchinformationorrepresentationmaynotbereliedupon.The
securitiesdescribedhereinarenot‘deposits“withinthemeaningoftheCanadaDepositinsuranceCorporationAct,
arenotinsuredundertheprovisionsofthatActoranyotherlegislation,andarenotguaranteed.Underapplicable
laws, resale of the securities offered hereunder may be subject toindefiniterestrictions, otherthanthrough
redemption of the securities or another available exemption.

Potential investors should pay particular attention to the information under“Risk Factors”in the Offering
Memorandum.Aninvestmentinthesecuritiesdescribedhereinrequiresthefinancialabilityandwillingnesstoaccept
certainrisks.NoassurancecanbegiventhattheobjectiveoftheCorporationwillbeachievedorthatinvestorswill
receive a return of their investment.

TheCorporationisoffering,onaprivateplacementbasis,anunlimitednumberofClass APreferredShares(the
“ClassAShares”)andanunlimitednumberofClassFPreferredShares(the“ClassFShares"andtogetherwiththe
ClassAShares,the“OfferedShares”)inthecapitaloftheCorporationatapriceof$1.00perShare(the“Offering”).

TheOffered Shareswillbe offeredtoeligibleinvestorsundercertain prospectusexemptionsunderNational
Instrument 45-106

-ProspectusExemptions(“NI45-106")inaccordancewiththeconditionsspecifiedinthe OfferingMemorandum.
TheOfferedSharesmaybeofferedineachoftheprovincesandterritoriesofCanada(the”SellingJurisdictions”)
pursuanttoavailableprospectusexemptionsandsubjecttotheregistrationrequirementsofapplicablesecurities
legislation in the Selling Jurisdictions.

TheminimuminitialinvestmentamountforOfferedSharespurchasedbyinvestorsthatareaccreditedinvestors
(“AccreditedInvestorExemption”) and the offeringmemorandumexemption (the“OfferingMemorandum
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Exemption”)is$5,000.Forinvestorswhoarenotrelyingtheprecedingexemptionsandwhoarenon-individuals,
OfferedSharesmaybepurchasedbyrelyingontheminimumamountexemptioninNI45-106 (the”Minimum
Amount Exemption”), which requires a minimuminitial investment of $150,000.The requirements of each
prospectus exemption are set out in the accompanying Subscription Agreement.

TheCorporationhastherighttowaiveorvarytheminimumsubscriptionamountinitssolediscretion,subjectto
applicablesecuritieslaws.ThereisnomarketthroughwhichtheOfferedSharesmaybesoldandnosuchmarketis
expected to develop as a consequence of the subscription.

The Offered Shares being distributed pursuant to the Offering Memorandum are subject to restrictions on
resale until such time as:

i. appropriate hold periods under applicable securities laws have been satisfied;
ii. thetradeis made in reliance on an available statutory exemption; or

iii. an appropriate discretionary order is obtained pursuant to applicable securities laws. Since
the Corporationis not a reporting issuer pursuant to applicable securities laws, the applicable
hold periods may never expire,andif nofurtherstatutory exemption mayberelied uponorifno
discretionary order is obtained, this could result in a purchaser having to hold Offered Shares
foranindefinite period of time. The Corporation does not currently intend tofilea prospectus or
otherwisebecomeareportingissuer pursuanttoapplicable securitieslawsandaccordinglyitis
not intended that the Offered Shares will become freely tradable. See “Resale Restrictions”.

PurchasersofOfferedSharespursuanttotheOfferingMemorandumaregrantedcertainrightsofactionfordamages
orrescission described herein underthe heading“Purchaser’s Rights of Action for Damages or Rescission”.

EACHPURCHASEROFOFFEREDSHARESISADVISEDTOCONSULTWITHTHEIROWNLEGALADVISORASTO
THECOMPLETEDETAILSOFTHEEXEMPTIONSFROMTHEPROSPECTUSREQUIREMENTSOFAPPLICABLE
SECURITIES LAWS BEING RELIED UPON AND THE CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING OFFERED SHARES
PURSUANT TO SUCH EXEMPTIONS.

CMI High Yield Opportunity Fund Amended Restated OM — 2



SUMMARY

ThefollowingisasummaryoftheprincipalfeaturesofaninvestmentintheCorporationandisqualifiedinitsentirety
by the more detailed information contained later in the Offering Memorandum.

The Issuer: CMI High-Yield Opportunity Fund Corp. (the “Corporation”)
Head Office: Address: 2425 Matheson Blvd., Mississauga ON, L4W5K4
Tel: 1-888-465-1432 ext. 707
E-mail: investor@cmiloans.ca
Currently Listed or Quoted: The securities do not trade on any exchange or market.
Securities Offered: The Offering consists of an unlimited number of Offered Shares. See

“Description of the Offered Shares.”

The Offering is limited to investors relying on the
Accredited Investor Exemption;

b. Offering Memorandum Exemption;

¢.  whoarenon-individualswhoinvestpursuanttotheMinimumAmount
Exemption; or

d. towhom Offered Shares may otherwise be soldinaccordancewitha
prospectus exemption under NI 45-106. The Offered Shares may be
offeredineachoftheprovincesandterritories of Canada (the“Selling
Jurisdictions”)pursuanttoprospectusexemptionsandsubjecttothe
registrationrequirementsofapplicablesecuritieslegislationoftheSelling
Jurisdictions.

Price per Security: $1.00 per Offered Share.

Maximum Offering: TheMaximumOfferingis$100,000,000.ThereisnominimumOffering.You
may be the only investor. Funds available under the Offering may not be
sufficient to accomplish our proposed objectives.

Minimum Subscription Amount: Subscribersmustsubscribeforaminimumof5,0000fferedShares($5,000).
InthecaseofSubscribersrelyingontheMinimumAmountExemption,the
minimum subscription amount is $150,000.

Objective of the Corporation: ~ The Corporation intends to qualify at all relevant times as a Mortgage
InvestmentCorporation (“MIC")underthelncomeTaxAct (the”TaxAct”).
TheCorporation’sobjectiveistogeneratearegularstreamofincomefromits
holdingsofmortgageloanswithintheMICcriteriaprescribedbytheTaxAct,
whilepreservingcapital.See”IncomeTaxConsequencesandRRSPEligibility”

Payment Terms: Bankdraft,wire,electronicfunds,transferorcertifiedchequepayableto”CMI
High- Yield Opportunity Fund Corp! for the full subscription amount.

Proposed Closing Date(s): The Offered Shares will be offered for sale ona continuous basis.Closings
will occur on the dates established by the Managers in its discretion. All
subscriptionsreceivedaresubjecttorejection,orallotmentandtheCorporation
reserves the right to terminate this Offering without notice.
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Income Tax Consequences: Thereareimportanttaxconsequencestothesesecurities.Seethesection
entitled“IncomeTaxConsequencesandRRSPEligibility”Subscribersshould
consulttheirindependentprofessionaladvisorsbeforemakinganinvestmentin
this Offering.

Selling Agent: Class A Shares

TheCorporationmaypaysellingcommissionsorfeesofupto3%ofthefunds
raised.Inaddition,registereddealerspurchasingClassASharesonbehalfof
theirclientsmaybepaidtrailingcommissionsforongoingservicestheyprovide
toinvestors,includinginvestmentadvice,accountstatementsandnewsletters.
Atrailingcommissionisgenerallycalculatedandpayablequarterlyinarrearsto
dealerswhoseclientsholdClassASharesatarateequalto 1%ofoutstanding
sharesattributabletothe Class ASharessold by suchdealersasatthelast
businessdayoftheapplicable quarter.The trailingcommissionsare paid
bytheManageroutofthefeesitreceivesfromtheCorporation.Thetrailing
commissionsarenotpayableonClassASharespurchasedpursuanttothe
DRIPTheManagermaychangeorcancelthetrailingcommissionatanytimein
its sole discretion.

Class F Shares

Nosalescommissionortrailingcommissionispaidtoadealerinrespectof
Class F Shares. See “Compensation Paid to Sellers and Finders”

Resale Restrictions: Youwillberestrictedfromsellingyoursecuritiesforanindefiniteperiod.See
“Resale Restrictions”.

Risk Factors: AninvestmentintheOfferedSharesissubjecttovariousriskfactors,including
butnotlimitedtothefollowing:nomarketforOfferedSharesandtransfers
ontransfer;retractionliquidity;noguaranteesontheCorporation’sability
topaydividends;noreviewontheOfferingMemorandumbythesecurities
regulatoryauthorities;absenceofmanagementrights;theCorporation’sability
toborrow;risksassociatedwiththeCorporation'sMICtaxdesignation;absence
ofvotingrights;dilution;conflictsofinterest;relianceonmanagementand
thirdparties;futureoperationsandpossibleneedforadditionalfunds;litigation
risks;competitionandavailabilityofinvestments;environmentalliabilityofa
mortgage;investmentsnotinsured;changesinregulatoryregime;renewal
ofmortgages;liquidityrisk;priorityoversecurity;investmentconcentration;
sensitivitytointerestrates;mortgageprepayments;prepaymentsonmortgages
higherriskmortgages;defaultschangesinpropertyvalues;useofleverage;
changes in economy and credit markets.

ThereisnoguaranteethataninvestmentltheCorporationwillearnapositive
returninthe shortorlong-term. See“Risk Factors”for a discussion of the
investmentconsiderationsthatshouldbetakenintoaccountbyprospective
subscribers.

Purchaser’s Rights: Youhavetwo(2)businessdaystocancelyouragreementtopurchasethese
securities.IfthereisamisrepresentationinthisOfferingMemorandum,you
have therightto sue eitherfordamages orto cancel the agreement. See
“Purchasers’ Rights of Action for Damages or Rescission”.

Currency: IntheOfferingMemorandumallreferencetodollaramountsaretoCanadian
dollars, except where otherwise indicated.

CMI High Yield Opportunity Fund Amended Restated OM — 4



NO SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY OR REGULATOR HAS ASSESSED THE MERITS OF THESE
SECURITIESORREVIEWEDTHISOFFERINGMEMORANDUM.ANYREPRESENTATIONTOTHECONTRARY IS
AN OFFENCE.THIS IS A RISKY INVESTMENT. SEE “RISK FACTORS".

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

ThisOfferingMemorandumcontainscertainstatementsordisclosuresthatmayconstituteforward-lookinginformation
undertheapplicablesecuritieslegislationandtherespectiveregulations,rulesandpoliciesandordersthereunder
andallapplicablepublishedordersandrulings(“securitieslegislation”)oftheapplicablesecuritiescommissionsor
similar regulatory authority (“securities regulatory authority”).

ni " " ",

Forward-lookingstatementsmaybeidentifiedbytheuseofwordslikebelieves" intends’‘expects’,‘may’; will",
“should’"estimates”or"anticipates’,orthenegativeequivalentsofthosewordsorcomparableterminology,and
bydiscussionsofstrategiesthatinvolverisksanduncertainties.Allforward-lookingstatementsarebasedonthe
Corporation'scurrentbeliefsaswellasassumptionsmadebyandinformationcurrentlyavailabletotheCorporation
andrelateto,amongotherthings,anticipatedfinancialperformance;prospects;strategies;thenatureofthe
Corporation'soperations;sourcesofincome;forecastsofcapitalexpendituresandthesourcesofthefinancing
thereof;expectationsregardingtheabilityoftheCorporationtoraisecapital;theCorporation'soutlook;plansand
objectives for future operations; forecast results; and anticipated financial performance.

TherisksanduncertaintiesoftheCorporation’sactivities,includingthosediscussedunderthesectionentitled”Risk
Factors’couldcausetheCorporation’sactualresultsandexperiencetodiffermateriallyfromtheanticipatedresults
orotherexpectationsexpressed.Inaddition,theCorporationbasesforward-lookingstatementsonassumptions
aboutfutureevents,whichmaynotprovetobeaccurate.Inlightoftheserisks,uncertaintiesandassumptions,
prospectivepurchasersshouldnotplaceunduerelianceonforward-lookingstatementsandshouldbeawarethat
events described in the forward-looking statements set out in this Offering Memorandum may not occur.

TheCorporationcannotassureprospectivepurchasersthatitsfutureresults,levelsofactivityandachievementswill
occurastheCorporationexpects,andneithertheCorporationnoranyotherpersonassumesresponsibilityforthe
accuracyandcompletenessoftheforward-lookingstatements.Exceptasrequiredbylaw,theCorporationassumes
noobligationtoupdateorreviseanyforward-lookingstatements,whetherasaresultofnewinformation,future
eventsorotherwise.Subscribersareurgedtoread”RiskFactors“foradiscussionofotherfactorsthatwillimpactthe
operations and success of the Corporation.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

InadditiontoandapartfromthisOfferingMemorandum,theCorporationmayutilizecertainmarketingmaterials
inconnectionwiththeOffering,includinganexecutivesummaryofcertainofthematerialsetforthinthisOffering
Memorandum.ThismaterialmayincludefactsheetsandSubscribersalespromotionbrochures,questionandanswer
booklets,andpresentations.Allsuchmarketingmaterialsarespecificallyincorporatedbyreferenceintoandform
anintegralpartofthisOfferingMemorandum.Allsuchmarketingmaterialswillbedeliveredormadereasonably
availabletoaprospectivepurchaserpriortothepurchasebysuchprospectivepurchaserofOfferedShares.Any
statementcontainedinadocumentincorporatedordeemedtobeincorporatedbyreferencehereinshallbedeemed
tobemodifiedorsupersededforthepurposesofthisOfferingMemorandumtotheextentthatastatementcontained
hereinorinanyothersubsequentlydeliveredOfferingMemorandumwhichalsois,orisdeemedtobe,incorporated
byreferencehereinmodifiesorsupersedessuchstatement.Themodifyingorsupersedingstatementneednotstate
thatithasmodifiedorsupersededapriorstatementorincludeanyotherinformationsetforthinthedocumentthatit
modifiesorsupersedes.Themakingofamodifyingorsupersedingstatementshallnotbedeemedanadmissionforany
purposesthatthemodifiedorsupersededstatement,whenmade,constitutedamisrepresentation,anuntruestatement
ofamaterialfactoranomissiontostateamaterialfactthatisrequiredtobestatedorthatisnecessarytomakea
statementnotmisleadinginlightofthecircumstancesinwhichitwasmade.Anystatementsomodifiedorsuperseded
shallnotbe deemed, exceptassomodified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Offering Memorandum.
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CURRENCY

AlldollaramountsstatedinthisOfferingMemorandumareexpressedinCanadiancurrency,exceptwhereotherwise
indicated.

INTERPRETATION

InthisOfferingMemorandum,unlessthecontextotherwiserequires,whenweusetermssuchasthe“Corporation’,
“we"us"and“our’,wearereferringtoCMIHigh-YieldOpportunityFundCorp.andwhenweusethetermssuchas
“Subscriber’,oryou”or’Subscriber"wearereferringtoapersonwhopurchasesOfferedSharesundertheOffering,
thereuponbecominganinvestorintheCorporation.Wordsimportingthesingularnumberonly,includethepluraland
vice versa, and words importing the masculine, feminine or neuter gender include the other genders.

Whereusedinthis OfferingMemorandum,thefollowingcapitalized wordsand phrasesshall,unlessthereis
something in the context otherwise inconsistent therewith, have the following meanings, respectively:
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“Act”orthe”OBCA"meanstheBusinessCorporationAct,Ontario,asnowenactedorasthesamemayfromtimeto
timebeamended,re-enactedorreplaced(and,hereinthecaseofsuchamendment,re-enactmentorreplacement,
any references herein shall be read as referring to such amended, re-enacted or replaced provisions).

“Articles’meansarticlesofincorporationoftheCorporation,astheymaybeamended,modifiedorrestated,from
time to time.

“BusinessDay”meansadayotherthanaSaturday,Sundayoranyotherdaytreatedasaholidayinthemunicipality
in Canada in which the Corporation’s registered office is then situated.

“ClassAShares"meanstheClassAPreferredSharesinthecapitaloftheCorporationasconstitutedfromtimetotime.
“ClassFShares"’meanstheClassFPreferredShareinthecapitaloftheCorporation,asconstitutedfromtimetotime.

“CommonShareholder’meansapersonrecordedinthesecuritiesregisteroftheCorporationfortheCommon
Shares as being the registered holder of one or more Common Shares.

“Common Shares” means the common shares of the Corporation, as constituted from time to time.

“CorporateObjective"meansthequalificationoftheCorporationandmaintenanceofitsstatusatalltimesasa
“mortgageinvestmentcorporation“withinthemeaningoftheTaxAct,asreasonablyinterpretedandappliedbythe
directors of the Corporation.

“Directors” or “Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Corporation.

“DividendPaymentDate"means,wherewithrespecttoamonth,dividendshavebeendeclaredbytheBoardof
Directors in accordance with the provisions hereof, the 15th day of the following month.

“LiquidationDistribution"meansadistributionofassetsoftheCorporationamongitsshareholdersarisingonthe
liguidation,dissolutionorwindingupoftheCorporation,whethervoluntaryorinvoluntary,oranyotherdistributionof
assets of the Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of winding up its affairs.

“NI 45-106" means National Instrument 45-106 — Prospectus Exemptions.
“Preferred Shares” means collectively, the Class A Shares and the Class F Shares.

“PreferredShareholder"meansapersonrecordedinthesecuritiesregisteroftheCorporationforthePreferred
Shares as being the registered holder of one or more Preferred Shares.

“Redemption Date” means, with respect to the Preferred Shares, the last day of a calendar quarter.

“RedemptionPrice”"means, withrespecttoaPreferred Share, thesumof$1.00togetherwithalldeclaredand
unpaid dividends on the Preferred Share.

“RedemptionRequest”means, withrespect tothe Preferred Share,awritten noticein prescribed form, duly
completedbythePreferredShareholder,requestingthecorporationtoredeemPreferredSharesspecifiedtherein.

“Shares"meanscollectively,theCommonSharesandthePreferredShares,oranycombinationthereofasthe
context may require.

“Subscribers” means a subscriber for Offered Shares pursuant to the Offering.

“Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada), as amended from time to time.
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USE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS

Available Funds

ThefollowingtableprovidesabreakdownoftheexpectedavailablefundsfollowingthecompletionoftheOffering:

AssumingMinimumOffering™  AssumingMaximumOffering

A.  Amount to be raised by this Offering S0 $100,000,000
B. Sellingcommissionsandfees(estimated)? $0 $3,000,000
C Ezgzja;telgg)gfsgng); costs (e.g., legal, $0 $100,000
D. Available funds: D =A- (B+Q) $0 $96,900,000
E. Additionalsourcesoffundingrequired S0 S0

F.  Working capital deficiency ©® S0 S0

G. TotaiG=D+E+F S0 $96,900,000

Notes:

1. ThereisnominimumOffering.TheCorporationwillofferanunlimitednumberofOfferedSharesonacontinuous
basis at the Managers’ discretion until the Maximum Offering is completed or terminated.

2. TheCorporationsellsOfferedSharesthroughdealersauthorizedtodoso.TheCorporationmaypayselling
commissionsorfeesof upto3%ofthefundsraisedontheClass AShares.Inaddition, registered dealers
purchasingClassASharesonbehalfoftheirclientsmaybepaidtrailingcommissionsforongoingservicesthey
providetoinvestors,includinginvestmentadvice, accountstatementsandnewsletters.Atrailingcommissionis
generallycalculatedandpayablequarterlyinarrearstodealerswhoseclientsholdClassASharesatarateequal
to1%ofinitialoutstandingsharesattributabletotheClassASharessoldbysuchdealersasatthelastbusiness
dayoftheapplicablequarter.ThetrailingcommissionsarepaidbytheManageroutofthefeesitreceivesfrom
theCorporation.TrailingcommissionsarenotpayableonClassASharespurchased pursuanttotheDRIPThe
Managermaychangeorcancelthetrailingcommissionatanytimeinitssolediscretion.TheCorporationpaysno
commissionsortrailingcommissionsontheClassFShares.See“CompensationPaidtoSellersandFinders.”

3. FromthedatethatiscommencedoperationsonOctober29th2019,theCorporationhasgeneratednew
proceedsof$27,267,353throughthesale of Offered Sharesandre-investmentofdividends,netofshare
retractions. See “Capital Structure”and “Prior Sales”.

4. AsatthedateofthisOfferingMemorandum,theCorporationdoesnothaveaworkingcapitaldeficiency.
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Use of Available Funds

The following table provides a detailed breakdown of how the Corporation will use the available funds:

Description of intended use of net proceeds
listed in order of priority

AssumingMinimumOffering”  AssumingMaximumOffering

To the payment of monthly management,
advisory fees and mortgage services fees? 20 >1,000,000

Working Capital® $0 $0

To lend out funds and make investments

permittedbyaMICundertheTaxAct(asdefined S0 $95,900,000

below)®

Total: Equal to G in the Funds table above $0 $96,900,000
Notes:

1. ThereisnominimumOffering.TheCorporationwillofferanunlimitednumberofOfferedSharesonacontinuous
basis at the Managers’ discretion until the Maximum Offering is completed or terminated.

2. ThisamountreflectsayearlyestimateofthefollowingfeespayabletotheManagers(asdefinedbelow)underthe
ManagementAgreement(asdefinedbelow)infiscalyear2021were$209,932See"BusinessoftheCorporation
-Structure/TheManagersarepaid 1%ofAUMcalculatedmonthlyaspertheManagementAgreement.AUMis
definedasthetotaloftheprincipalamountoftheoutstandingmortgagebalances(lessanycreditlosses).

3. Notmorethan10%oftheavailablefundswillbeusedbytheCorporationtopaydebtincurredwithinthetwo
preceding financial years.

4. InitanticipatedthatthefundsraisedfromthisOfferingafterexpensewillbeusedforpermittedlendingand
fundingnewmortgageinvestments.Theamountthatwehaveavailableforthesepurposeswilldependupon
whether we achieve the Maximum Offering.

Reallocation

TheCorporationintendstospendtheavailablefundsasstated Wewillreallocatefundsonlyforsoundbusinessreasons.
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BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

Structure

CMIHigh-YieldOpportunityFundCorp.wasincorporatedundertheBusinessCorporationsAct(Ontario)onOctober
29,2019.TheCorporation'sheadandregisteredofficeislocatedat2425MathesonBIvd.,MississaugaON,L4W5K4.
TheCommonSharesoftheCorporationareownedbyinequalproportionsbyBryanJaskolka,MichaelJaskolka,Alan
Jaskolka and Jeffrey Jaskolka. Alan is the father and Michael, Bryan and Jeffrey are brothers.

TheCorporationisrequiredunderitsarticlesofincorporationtoqualifyandremainqualifiedasa“mortgage
investmentcorporation”ora“MIC"asmortgageinvestmentcorporationsarecommonlyreferredto,underthe
IncomeTaxAct(Canada)(“TaxAct”).ThiseffectivelyenablestheMICtooperateasatax-free“flowthrough”conduit

of net income to its shareholders.

TheCorporation’sbusinessobjectiveistogenerateincomebyoptimizingitsinvestmentportfoliowithintheMIC
criteriamandatebytheTaxAct.TheTaxAct'sMICcriteriaarediscussedinfurtherdetailbelow.See TEM6:INCOME

TAX CONSEQUENCES AND RRSP ELIGIBILITY.

Jazz Investments INC.
“Holding Co”’

Canadian Controlled Private Corporation Sole Directorship
Invests Surplus Capital for Income Generation

Canadian Servicing
Inc. (CSI) “Loan

Canadian Canadian Lending
Mortgages Inc. Inc. (CLI) “Lending

(CMI) “Brokerage” Company” Servicing”

Mortgage
Brokerage /
Consumer Division
Servicing residential
and commercial

Canadian Controlled
Private Corporation

Sole Directorship

Licensed through
FSCO to place
mortgages with
both private and
institutional lenders.

Mortgage Lending/
Underwriting
Division

Canadian Controlled
Private Corporation

Sole Directorship

Underwrites and
places private/
syndicated
mortgages

Mortgage
Administration/
Servicing Division

Canadian Controlled
Private Corporation

Sole Directorship

Licensed through
FSCO to provide
mortgage
administration
for private lender
sector

CMI Mortgage
Investment
Corporation (MIC)
“Investment Fund”

Non-Registered
Investment Fund

Canadian Controlled
Private Corporation

Multi-Directorship

Arms-length
relationship to other
companies

Invests shareholder
funds in managed
and diversified
mortgage portfolio
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CanadianMortgagesInc.(“CMI")isaCanadiancontrolledprivatecorporationandislicensedthroughFSRAO(as
defined below) as a mortgage brokerage.

CMIMortgagelnvestmentsinc.(“CLI")isaCanadiancontrolledprivatecorporation.CLIprovidesmortgagelending
and underwriting services to CMI’s group of companies.

CMIMortgageServicesinc.(“CSI")isaCanadiancontrolledprivatecorporation.CSlislicensedthroughFSRAOand
provides mortgage administration services for the CMI group of companies

CMIRealEstatelnc.(“CRI")isaCanadiancontrolledprivatecorporation.CRlislicensedthroughRECO (asdefined
below) and provides real estate sales services.

Management of the Corporation

TheBoardofDirectorsoverseestheoverallbusinessandundertakingoftheCorporation.Thedaytodayoperationsof
theCorporationaremanagedbyCSlandCMlL.(togetherthe’Managers”)underaMortgageServicesAgreementdated
July1st,2020withtheCorporationwhichprovidesformanagement,advisory,underwritingandadministrationservices
for the investments by the Managers (“Management Agreement”).

CSlislicensedasamortgageadministratorwithFinancialServicesRegulatoryAuthorityofOntario(“FSRAO")and CMI
is licensed as a mortgage broker with FSRAO.

TheManagershavebeenengagedbytheCorporationtoprovideitwithmanagement,mortgageoriginationandmortgage
administrationservices.MortgageinvestmentsaresourcedprimarilythroughManagers.TheManagersmayemployfrom
timetotimetheservicesofrelatedpersons,includingrealestatebrokersandlendingcompanies.Anyfeespaidbythe
Corporationtosuchrelated persons will be atrates consistent with those charged by arms-length third parties.

TheBoardoftheCorporationiscomposedoftwodirectors—AlanJaskolkaandBryanJaskolkawhoarefatherand
son.BryanJaskolkaistheChiefOperatingOfficerandtheChiefExecutiveOfficer.AlanJaskolkaistheChiefFinancial
Officer of the Corporation.

Relationship between the Corporation and the Managers

TheCorporation,theManagersarerelatedcompaniesinsofarasoneoftheholdersofthecommonsharesofthe
CorporationandthesoleshareholderoftheholdinggroupwhoisthesoleshareholderoftheManagersisthe
sameperson.ThedirectorsoftheCorporationandthedirectorsoftheManagersarealsothesameindividuals.The
CorporationandtheManagersalsosharekeyemployeesanddecision-makers.Asaresult,theCorporationandthe
Managers are under common direction and control.

TwoofthedirectorsandofficersoftheCorporationandManagersarelicensedwithFSRAOasmortgageagentswith
CMI.AlanJaskolkaislicensedasthe”principalbroker"withCMIandBryanJaskolkaislicensedasa“broker”with
CMI.Thesetwoindividuals,AlanJaskolkaandBryanJaskolkawillbeentitledtoreceiveaportionofthecompensation
paid to the Managers by borrowers who obtain mortgaging financing from the Corporation.

AlanJaskolkaisalsotheprincipalshareholderandthesoledirectorandofficerof CRIwhichisregisteredwithReal Estate
CouncilofOntario(“REICO")asarealestatebrokeragefirm.AlanJaskolkaisregisteredwithREICOasalicensedreal
estatebrokerwithCRI.CRlisamemberoftheTorontoRealEstateBoard.TheCorporationmayinvestinmortgagesin
respectofwhichMessieurJaskolkaorCRlhas providedreal estateassetacquisition servicestothe Corporation.

BryanJaskolkaisthesoleshareholderof CMIFinancial GroupInc.,whoisthesoleshareholderof CMI,CLIand
CSl.BryanJaskolkaisthe CEOofCLI,whichisprivatelendingcompanythatmatcheshigh-qualitymortgageswith
investorsbasedontheirpersonalpreferencesandtargetROlgoals.WhileCLlisnotpaiddirectlybytheCorporation
forunderwritingcertainmortgagesthattheCorporationinvestsin,CLIgeneratesitsrevenuesfromtheratespread.
TheManagersdonotexclusivelyprovideservicestotheCorporation.ltalsostructuresmortgagesoutsideofthe
Corporation.The principalsofthe Managers mayreceivefeesfromthe mortgagescreated by the Managers.
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TheManagers,oranyofitsofficers,shareholders,employees,oraffiliates,maypurchasefortheirownaccountand
ownasaco-lender,apercentageinterestinanyinvestmentheldbytheCorporation.TheManagersoranyrelated
companyorindividualmayholdasubordinateportioninanymortgagewhichispresentedtotheCorporationfor
investment,andtherateofreturnonsuchasubordinateportionmayvaryfromtheCorporation'srateofreturndueto
the differing loan-to-valuerisk assumed by the Corporation. See Conflicts of Interest in Section 2.2 below.

Management Fees and Expenses
TheCorporationwillpaythefollowingamountstotheManagersunderthetermsoftheManagementAgreement:

a. Amanagementfeeuptoandequalto1.00%perannumoftheoutstandingaggregateprincipalbalanceofall
mortgages,ortheoutstandingaggregateprincipalbalanceoftheCorporation'spercentageinteresttherein,
andthebookvalueoftheCorporation’sinvestmentsotherthanmortgages,calculatedmonthlyonthefirst
dayofthemonthattherateof0.08333%,aggregatedandpayableinmonthlyinstallmentsonthelastdayof
each month and prorated for any partial month.

b. Anannualperformancefeeequaltoanamountnottoexceed20.00%ofthenetyieldoverandabove9%
perannumgeneratedfromallinvestmentstobecalculatedattheendofthefiscalyear.Forexample,ifthe
netyieldthroughouttheyearcalculatedonthefiscalyearendis 14%,thentheperformancefeeshallbe
20.00%0f5.00%(14%-9%)whichequals1.00%.Ifforexamplethenetyieldthroughouttheyearcalculated
on the fiscal year end is 8.50% then there shall be no performance fee.

¢. TheManagersareentitledtodeductanyamountsdeductibleundertheManagementAgreement,including
itsinterestallocations,beforedistributingamountstotheCorporationundertheManagementAgreement.
Inaddition,theManagersareentitledtoretainanyovernightfloatinterestonallaccountsmaintained by
itandalllender,broker,origination,commitment,renewal,extension,advance,discharge,latepayment,
participation,NSF,administrationandsimilarorotherfeesgeneratedontheinvestmentsacquiredbythe
Corporation,whichfeesareandremainthesolepropertyoftheManagers,andtotheextentthattheyare
recovered from the borrowers or investment.

d. AllrightsgrantedtotheManagersandotheramountspayabletotheManagerspursuanttothetermshereof
shallincludetheapplicableamountofharmonizedsalestax(“HST")payableinrespectthereof.Accordingly,
theManagersshallberesponsibleforremittingallHSTpayableonthefeesstatedaboveatsuchtimesand
in such amounts as required by law.

e. TheManagersareresponsibleforallitsinternalcostsincluding,withoutlimitation,allitsinternalcosts
incurred in originating, sourcing, arranging and offering investments for sale to the Corporation.

AlltheothercostswithrespecttotheCorporationsbusinessshallbepaidforbytheCorporationincluding,without
limitation, taxes,legal,accounting,audit,operating,offering managementandadministrationfeesandexpenses,and
feesandexpensesassociatedwiththeacquisition,registration,disposition,holding,collectionandenforcementof
the Corporation’s investments.

Management Agreement

TheCorporationhasenteredaManagementAgreementwiththeManagerspursuanttowhichtheManagers
willprovideexclusiveongoingmanagement,mortgageadministrationandadviceandconsultingservicestothe
Corporation.TheManagementAgreementisforanindefiniteterm,subjecttocertainprovisionsfortermination.

a. TheCorporationmayterminatetheManagementAgreementforanyreasonon30dayswrittennotice.
b. The Management Agreement may be terminated at any time, by mutual consent in writing.

c. The Managers may resign and the Agreement terminated on 60 days’ notice to the Corporation.
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d. Either party may terminate the Management Agreement in the event of:

i. the commission by either party of any fraudulent act;

ii. eitherpartybecomesbankrupt,insolventormakesageneralassignmentforthebenefitofitscreditors;

iii. conviction of either party for a criminal offence;

iv. conductbyeitherpartythatismateriallydamagingtotheotherpartyandcontrarytothetermsofthe
Management Agreement;

v. material breach of the Management Agreement by a party;

vi. material misrepresentation by a party; or

vii. materialfailurebyapartytoperformitsdutiesasdescribedintheManagementAgreementwithinten
days of written notice by the other party.

PursuanttothetermsoftheManagementAgreement,theCorporationhasagreedtoindemnifyandreimbursethe
Managers,aswellasitsdirectors,officers,shareholders,employeesandagents,fromandagainstanylosses,claims,
costs,damagesandliabilitiessufferedorsustainedbyitinthecourseofcarryingoutitsdutiesundertheAgreement,
orsufferedasaresultofanythirdpartyclaimsotherthanthosesuitsclaimsordemandsoccasionedbytheManagers
gross negligence or willful misconduct.

Third Party Marketing Agreements, Finder’s Fees and Commissions

The Managersonbehalfofthe Corporation mayenterinto marketingagreementswith third partiessuchas
financialadvisors,stockbrokersanddealers,andfinancialintermediariestomarkettheOfferedSharesonbehalf
oftheCorporation.NoneoftheManagersnoranytheirrespectivedirectors,officersorshareholders,willreceive
compensationforplacingOfferedShares.Inadditiontoupfrontcommissionspaidatthetimeoftheinvestment,the
ManagersmayalsopayongoingservicingfeesortrailingcommissiontothirdpartieswhodistributeOfferedShares
oftheCorporation.Feespayabletothirdpartydealersandintermediaries(registereddealersonly)willbenegotiated
butinanyevent,willnotexceed3%ofthegrosssubscriptionproceedsandannualtrailingcommissionsof1%ofthe
net value of the shares, less any shares purchased through the DRIP, paid quarterly.

Credit Committee

TheManagerswillestablishaCreditCommitteecomprisedof professionalsknowledgeableandexperienced
inmortgagesandrealestatefinance.Atalltimes,atleastonememberoftheCreditCommitteewillbeasenior
executiveoftheManagers.TheCreditCommitteewillreviewallmortgagesandloanstobemadebytheCorporation.
The members of the Credit Committee are Elizabeth Wood, Bryan Jaskolka and Kevin Fettig.

Our Business

The Mortgage Portfolio

TheCorporation’sprimarybusinessisearningincomethroughinvestinginaportfolioofresidentialandcommercial
mortgages.Commercialmortgagesaremortgagesthatareprincipallysecuredbylanddevelopmentsorincome-
producingpropertiesthathaveretail,commercial,service,officeand/orindustrialuses.Residentialmortgages
thosemortgagesprincipallysecuredbysinglefamilyhouses.Thecorporationdoesnotactivelyemployresources
tooriginatemortgages,thecorporationreliesexclusivelyonCSl. arelatedcorporation,tounderwriteandprovide
mortgages for investment.

TheCreditCommitteeisresponsibleformanagingthecorporationsmortgageinvestments.Theagreementbetween
theCorporationandtheMortgageServicesAgreementbetweenCSl(arelatedcompany)providesallmortgages
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underwrittenbyCSI.CSlwillperformcertainadministrativedutiesinthemanagementandadministrationofall
mortgages held within the corporation.

The Corporation expects to build a portfolio of residential and commercial mortgages as follows:
a. Residential Mortgages —at least 50% of the Corporation’s assets, at cost, consists of mortgages on
new,existing,proposedorinconstructionresidentialpropertiesinCanada,includingbutnotlimitedto,

singlefamilydwellings,duplexes,townhouses,condominiumunitsandapartmentbuildings,land,income
producing property, or cash on hand or deposit pending investment in mortgages.

b. CommercialMortgages—upto35%oftheCorporation’sassetsmayconsistofconventionalmortgageson
existing, proposed or in construction retail, commercial or industrial properties in Canada.

¢. Otherlnvestments—investmentsmayalsobemadefromtimetotimeinmoneymarketinstruments,
pending investment in mortgages

d. RealProperty-upto25%oftheCorporation’sassetsmaybeinvesteddirectlyinrealestateproperties
held for income purposes.

e. TheCorporationmayacquirerealestatepropertiesbyforeclosureorotherwiseasdefaultoccursona
mortgage.

f. TheCorporationisallowedtoborrowfundsundertheprovisionsoftheTaxAct,however,theCorporation
has capped leverage at 85% of the value of property owned by the Corporation.
TheCorporationhasinitiallyestablishedandconducteditsbusinessintheProvinceofOntario.Astheopportunities
rise, the Corporation expects to expand its business to other Provinces.

AsatOctober31,2021,theCorporation’sinvestmentinmortgageswas$23,827,236netofanallowanceforloan
lossintheamountof$31,954.AsatOctober31,2021,134individualmortgageswereheldbytheCorporationwithan
averageloansizeof$$178,091andaweightedaverageloantovalueratioof80.21%. SeeITEM2:BUSINESSOF
THECORPORATION,2.3DevelopmentofBusinessformoredetailedinformationwithrespecttothecompositionof
the Corporation’s mortgage portfolio as of October 31,2021

Theannualizeddividendyield (netofallfeesandexpenses)toholdersofClass ASharesforthelastfiscalyears
ended October 31 are summarized in the table below.

Fiscal Year Ending October 31st Class A Shares

2021 10.42%

2020 10.27%

ThedirectorshaveapprovedadividendratefortheClassFSharesof+1%abovethedividendrateoftheClassA
Shares.TheCorporationreservestherighttochangethedividendpolicyontheOfferedShareswithoutnoticetothe
holders of the Offered Shares.

See "Description of Offered Shares — Dividend Policy”.

IfdeemedprudentbytheCorporation,theCorporationmay,fromtimetotime,secureadditionalorreplacementlong
termdebtfromfinancialinstitutions,otherthirdpartiesorholdersofPreferredShares.Suchloansmaybesecuredby
granting encumbrances, security interests or other charges on the assets of the Corporation.

Investment Policies, Practices and Restrictions

AllinvestmentswillcomplywiththeinvestmentpoliciesoftheCorporation.TheCorporation'sinvestment
policies, practices and restrictions include but are not limited to the following:
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Residential Mortgages

TheCompany’sbusinessconsistsoflendingmoney,principallyresidentialmortgagestoindividualconsumers,which
compriseatargetminimumof90%ofitsmortgageportfoliobydollarvalue.TheCompanyclassifiesresidential
mortgagesintothefollowingcategoriesbasedontheunderlyingpropertytypeortheuseofthemortgageproceeds:

i. properties with existing single or multi- family residential dwellings,
ii. lendingtovacantlandforthepurposeofconstructionordevelopmentofresidentialdwellings,and

iii. constructionloansforthedevelopmentorconstructionofsingleormulti-familyresidentialdwellings.

TheCompany,througharelatedentity,workscloselywithretailmortgagebrokersthroughoutCanadatomarketitself
asalenderofchoiceinthe”non-prime"mortgagemarketsegment.Inthismanner,itexpectstobewellpositionedto
receivereferralsonmortgagelendingopportunitiesthatdonotmeetthecriteriaofthemajorlendinginstitutionsor
that involve borrowers in rural areas typically not well serviced by major lenders.

ThemaximumLoantoValue(LTV)oftheCompany’smortgageportfoliocannotexceedaweightedaverageof85%.The
maximumallowableLTVofanyoneresidentialmortgageintheportfoliowillvarydependingonthefollowingcriteria:

«  Forresidentialmortgagesregisteredassecurityagainstpropertieswithexistingsingleormulti-family
dwellings,theCompanygenerallyexpectstolenduptoanLTVof85%,althoughthisisdependenton
location and mortgage priority

«  Forresidentialmortgagesonvacantland(whichexcludesvacantlandforthepurposesofconstructionor
development),theCompanygenerallyexpectstolenduptoa50%LTV,althoughtheamountisdependent
uponthelocationandmortgagepriority. TheCompanywillonlylendonvacantlandonacase-by-casebasis
atthediscretionoftheCreditCommitteeandtheManager,andtypicallynotforlandspeculationpurposes.
TheCompanydoesnotintendtolendtolargerealestatedevelopmentsaspartofitsregularbusiness
operations.ExceptinspecialcircumstancesthatareatthediscretionoftheCreditCommitteeandthe
Manager,theCompanywillnotmakeloanssecuredonlybymortgagesonvacantlands,andwillgenerally
require additional security from the borrower and/or guarantors.

«  TheCompany’sconstructionprogramprovidesforlendinguptoa65%LTVbutcanexceed65%onacase
bycasebasisiftheconstructionmortgageiswithinamajorurbansetting.Constructionmortgagescan
beofferedtopropertyownersorbuilders/developersforsinglefamilyormulti-familyhomeswithuptoa
maximumoffourunits.TheLTVforconstructionmortgagesisbasedonthevalueoftheunderlyingland
plustheconstructionordevelopmentvalueachievedtothetimeofthemortgageadvance.Thecorporation
targetsamaximumallowablelimitof15%ofthetotalassetsfortheCompany’sconstructionprogram.

«  TheCompany'smortgageportfoliowillprincipallybecomprisedoffirstandsecondmortgages,targetinga
netdividendyieldof10-11%.TheCompanytargetsanoverallallocationof25%tofirstmortgagesand75%to
second mortgages. From time to time, the Company may also lend on third mortgages.

TheCompanyhasadoptedcertainpolicieswhichestablishtheinvestmentcriteriafortheCompany’sinvestment
decisions.ByenteringintotheManagementAgreement(see”Material Contracts—-ManagementAgreement”),the
Manager has agreed to abide by and apply these policies, which are as follows:

«  TheCompanymaymaintainupto5%ofitstotalassetsincash,’near-cash”securities(suchastermdeposits,
guaranteedinvestmentcertificatesormoneymarketsecurities)orhavecashreadilyaccessibleviaalineofcredit
atalltimesinordertomeetredemptionrequests(see“RedemptionofSecurities”).TheCompanyshouldalso
beinapositiontoredeemapriormortgagee’sinterestinagivenpropertyiftheManagerconsidersthatitwould
beadvantageousfortheCompanytodoso,havingregardtothemarketvalueofthepropertyandtheamountof
mortgage debt due to the Company;
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«  TheCompanymaynotholdanyindebtedness,whetherbywayofamortgageorotherwise,ofapersonwho
isacommonshareholderoftheCompanyorofanyotherpersonwhodoesnotdealatarm'slengthwiththe
annuitant of an RRSP or RRIF which holds Common Shares;

+  TheCompanymaynotmakeanyloanorinvestmentwhichdoesnotmeetthe”Canadiancontent’requirements
of paragraph 130.1(6)(c) of the Tax Act;

«  TheCompanymaynotmakealoanwhich,togetherwithallothermortgageloansthathavepriorityoverorrank
paripassuwithsuchloan,exceeds90%ofthefairmarketvalueofthemortgagedproperty,exceptwhen:

i. suchamortgageisinsuredundertheNationalHousingAct(Canada)oranysimilarlegislationofa
province, or

ii. theexcessover85%isinsuredbyaninsurancecompanyregisteredorlicensedunderthelnsurance
Companies Act (Canada) or similar legislation of a Canadian province or territory;

«  The Company may not make a loan secured by a mortgage on a property in which:
i. any senior officer or director of the Company, the Administrator or the Manager, or
ii. any associate or affiliate of a person referred to in (i) has an interest as mortgagor;

«  TheCompanywillnotholdafractionalinterestinamortgagenorparticipateinmortgagesyndicationsunless
reviewed and approved by the Credit Committee from time-to-time;

«  TheCompanymaynotholdamortgagethetermofwhichexceedsfiveyearsunlessreviewedandapprovedby
theCreditCommitteefromtime-to-time.MortgagesheldbytheCompanymaycontainprovisionspermittingthe
mortgagor, when not in default, to renew their mortgage for one or more additional terms.

The Company will adhere to the following operating policies:

« theCompanymustobtainaPhaselenvironmentalauditwheretherealestatetobeprovidedassecurity
foramortgageisacommercial property when deemed necessary by the Credit Committee and/or
Management.Wheretherealpropertyisnotofacommercialnature,aPhaselenvironmentalstudywillnot
be commissioned unless the Manager deems such an audit to be necessary;

- theCompanywillobtaintitleinsuranceinrespectofreal propertyprovidedassecurityforamortgageloanin
suchamountsandonsuchtermsastheAdministratorconsidersappropriate,orinthealternative,willobtain
a favorable title opinion from a solicitor;

«  theCompanymustensurethatallpropertytaxesareuptodateandthateverypropertyobtainscurrentand
valid title insurance and

+ thelegaltitleoranamendmenttothelegaltitletoeachmortgageandotherinvestmentsoftheCompany
must be held by and registered in the name of the Company or the custodian.

Investment Restrictions

TheCompany'sinvestmentpracticesaresubjecttocertainoperating,lendingandotherrestrictionswhichhavebeen
adopted by the Credit Committee andthe Manager.According totheserestrictions, the Company may not:

- makeamortgageloanif,immediatelyaftertheclosingofthemortgagetransaction,theamountsolent
wouldbegreaterthan 10%ofthebookvalueoftheCompany’snetassets;wheretheCompany’snetassets
exceeds $5 million;

« guarantee securities or obligations of any person or company;
« engage in securities lending;

« engage in derivative transactions for any purpose;
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« lendmoneyonthesecurityofamortgage(whichistheprimarycollateralforthemortgage)unlessan
independent appraisal by a qualified real estate appraiser loan has been completed;

« develop,manageoracquire(exceptbyforeclosureorotherenforcementofitsrightsasmortgagee)any
realproperty.(Fromtime-to-time,theCompanymaylendtocommercialmortgages.TheCompanydefinesa
“commercialmortgage”asamortgageregisteredassecurityagainstcommercial,industrialpropertyorany
non-residentialproperty.Theunderlyingloanforwhichacommercialmortgageisgrantedwillhaveafixed
rate of interest.)

+  enterintoaforwardcommitmentthatisbindingontheCompanyunlesstheCompanyhas,atthetimesuch
acommitmenthasbeenmade,sufficientcashor’nearcash”securitiestofundtheloan(s)towhichthe
commitment relates; or

« otherwiseconductitsbusinessinamannerthatwouldresultintheCompanynolongerbeingqualifiedasa
“mortgageinvestmentcorporation”undertheTaxAct,orthatwouldresultintheCommonSharesnotbeing
a“qualified investment” for RRSPs and RRIFs under the Tax Act.

Commercial Mortgages

7

Fromtime-to-time,theCompanymaylendtocommercialmortgages.TheCompanydefinesa“commercialmortgage
asamortgageregisteredassecurityagainstcommercial,industrialpropertyoranynon-residentialproperty.The
underlying loan for which a commercial mortgage is granted will have a fixed rate of interest.

Commercialmortgageswillnotincludemortgageswheretherelatedmortgagesarefortheconstructionand
developmentofcommercialbuildingsonvacantlands.Borrowersinthiscategoryaretypicallywillingtopayhigher
ratesofinterestforshortertermmortgagesfromtheCompany.Oncetheneedforinterimfinancingiscomplete, these
borrowerstypicallyrefinancetheirdebtforlonger-termmortgagesatlowerinterestrateswithconventionalfinancial
institutions.

ItisanticipatedthatasignificantmajorityoftheCompany’smortgageportfoliowillberesidentialandnotcommercial
mortgages.

TheCompanymayinvestincommercialmortgagesfromtime-to-timebutcurrentlyhasnointenttodoso.lfandto
theextentitdoesinvestinanycommercialmortgages,theCompanywilltargetcommercialmortgagesthatcomprise
5%orlessofitsmortgageportfoliobydollarvalue.lfanycommercialmortgagesaremade,theywillgenerallyhavea
maximum LTV of 65% with a one-year term.

Conflicts of Interest

Duetotherelationshipsandcontractualarrangementsoutlinedin“ltem2.1-RelationshipbetweentheCorporation
andtheManagers“above,thereisthepotentialforconflictsofinterestbetweentheCorporation,theManager,CMI,
CLI,CSlandCRI.AstheCorporation'sdirectorsandofficersmayalsobedirectors,officersorshareholdersofaffiliates
oftheCorporation,theremaybeconflictsofinterestiftheinterestsofthesecompaniesareinconsistent.Although
noneofthedirectorsorofficersoftheCorporationwilldevoteallofhisorherfulltimetothebusinessandaffairsof
theCorporation,eachwilldevoteasmuchtimeasisnecessarytomanageoradviseonthebusinessandaffairsof
theCorporation.Inaddition,theBoardofDirectorsisrequiredbylawtoacthonestlyandingoodfaithwithaviewto
thebestinterestsoftheCorporationandtodisclosethenatureandextentofanyinterestthattheymayhaveinany
actualorproposedmaterialcontractortransactionwiththeCorporation.Ifaconflictofinterestarisesatameeting
oftheBoardofDirectors,anydirectorinaconflictwilldisclosethenatureandextentofhisorherinterestandactin
accordance with applicable corporate law.

Changes to Investment Policies

If duetoachangeintheprovisionsoftheTaxActorotherlegislationapplicabletothe Corporation,anyofthe
foregoinginvestmentpoliciesrequireamendmenttocomplywithsuchchangeinlegislation,theCorporation’s
directorsmay,subjecttotheArticles,makesuchchangeandsuchchangewillbebindingontheCorporation.

CMI High Yield Opportunity Fund Amended Restated OM — 17



ItisanticipatedthattheManagerswillprovidetheCorporationwithassistancefromtimetotimeonrevisingthe
foregoinginvestmentpoliciestocomplywithapplicablelegislation.Intheeventofanyamendmenttotheforegoing
investmentpolicies,subjecttotheArticlesoftheCorporation,theManagerswillberequiredtocomplywithand
observe such change immediately upon such change becoming effective.

Redemption and Retraction Rights

TheCorporationhasestablishedcertainpoliciesandguidelinesinrespectoftherightsofretractiongrantedto
holdersofPreferredSharesandtherightsofredemptiongrantedtotheCorporation.See”DescriptionofSecurities
Offered - Terms of Securities.”

Development of Business

The Corporation commenced active operations on October 29, 2019.To date, the Corporation has raised
approximately$27,267,353infundswhichhasbeeninvestedin$23,827,236inmortgages.Theprincipalsofthe
Managershavemorethan35yearsofexperienceintherealestateandmortgageindustryasmortgagebrokers,
investorsandlenders.ThesequalificationsenabletheManagerstoprovidemortgagemanagement,administrative
and advisory services to the Corporation.

TheassociationoftheCorporationtoaprivatelendingcompanyandmortgageadministrator(bywayofshared
ownership)hascontributedtheCorporation'smanagementteam’sabilitytosourcehigh-qualityloans,aswellasreduce
thecostofloanmanagement.TheCorporationispartiallyownedbyBryanJaskolka,whoisalsosoleownerof CMI
FinancialGrouplnc.whoisthesoleshareholderofofCLI,CSI,andCMI.CLI,CSI,&CMlaremanagedbyBryanJaskolka.
BryanistheCEOofCLI,CSI,andCMI.CSlasofOctober31,2021has$479millionofloansunderadministration.CLIhas
completed over 1 Billion in mortgages since Inception, with a capital loss of $744 thousand.

ThefollowingtablesillustratethecharacteristicsoftheCorporation'smortgageportfolioasatOctober31,202 1interms
ofmortgagerank,propertytype,locationoftheunderlyingrealestatesecurity,loan-to-valueratioandproportionofthe
portfolio that is non- performing. Note that the information contained in the tables below is unaudited.

Mortgage " Portfolio Property Type

1st Mortgages @ $2,046,775 8.60%

Residential $2,046,775 100.00%
2nd Mortgages® $18,930,115 79.40%
Residential $18,930,115 100.00%
3rd Mortgages/Blanket Mortgages $2,850,346 12.00%
Residential $2,850,346 100.00%
TOTAL $23,827,236 100.00%
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Portfolio Allocation — Location - Rank

First Mortgages $2,046,775 8.60%

Second Mortgages $18,930,115 79.40%

Third Mortgages/Blanket Mortgages $2,850,346 12.00%

TOTAL $23,827,236 100.00%
Notes:

1. Mortgagemeansaninterestinamortgage,amortgageofaleaseholdinterest(orotherlikeinstrument,including
anassignmentoranacknowledgementofaninterestinamortgage)ahypothecation,adeedoftrustoran
acknowledgementofaninterestinrealpropertyusedtosecureobligationstorepaymoneybyachargeonthe
real property.

2. FirstMortgagemeansamortgagewherethereisnootherpersonthatholdsapriorregisteredmortgageonthe
same real property.

3. SecondMortgagemeansasecondmortgageforwhichtheprincipalamount,atthetimeofcommitment,together
withtheprincipalbalanceoutstandingonanymortgagehavingpriorityonthesamepropertysecuredbyany
suchsecondmortgage,doesnotexceed90%oftheappraisedvalueoftheunderlyingrealpropertysecuringthe
mortgage as determined by a qualifies appraiser.

LOAN TO VALUE SUMMARY Principal Net LTV Number Portfolio %
First Mortgages $2,046,775 65.7% 10 8.60%
Residential $2,046,775 65.7% 10 100.00%
TOTAL FIRSTS $2,046,775 65.7% 10 8.60%
Second Mortgages $18,930,115 81.8% 114 79.40%
Residential $18,930,115 81.8% 114 100.00%
TOTAL SECONDS $18,930,115 81.8% 114 79.40%
Third Mortgages/Blanket $2,850,346 80.1% 10 12.00%
Residential $2,850,346 80.1% 10 100.00%
TOTAL THIRDS/Blanket $2,850,346 80.1% 10 12.00%
TOTAL MORTGAGES $23,827,236 80.2% 134 100.00%

Notes:

1. IntheaboveTable,LTV(Loan-to-Value) meanstheratio,expressedasapercentagedetermined by A/B*100
where:AistheprincipalamountoftheCorporation'sinterestinthemortgagetogetherwithallotherequaland
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priorrankingmortgagesontherealproperty;Bistheappraisedmarketvalueoftherealpropertysecuringthe
Mortgage at the time of funding the mortgage or its most recent renewal whichever occurs later.

NUMBER OF NON-PERFORMING MORTGAGES

Number of Non-Performing Mortgages 2

Percentage of Total 1.5%
% of Portfolio Value 1.4%
Number of Impaired Mortgages (loss expected) 0.0%

Long Term Objectives

Thelong-termobjectiveoftheCorporationistoprovideitsPreferredShareholders’sustainablemonthlyincome
distributionswhilepreservingthecapitalinvestedbybuildingapoolofqualitymortgages.Ourdefaultratehasbeenlow,
andwesourcethehighestqualitymortgageswithinthealternativelendingspace.TheCorporationseekstoachieve
theseobjectivesbyinvestinginaccordancetoitsinvestmentpolicies.TheCorporationseekstoraiseinvestmentfundsof
$50,000,000perannumtoamaximumof$100,000,000forthegrowthofitsportfolioofmortgages TheManagershas
implemented an investment strategy to prudently manage the risk of investing in mortgages.

There is no assurance of any return on a Subscriber’s investment.

Short Term Objectives and How We Intend to Achieve Them

Ourobjectivesoverthenext12monthsaretoraise$ 100millionandtoachieveatargetreturnofbetween10-11%for
our investors by investing the proceeds into mortgages.

The following table sets out how the Corporation intends to meet its objectives for the next 12 months.

WHAT WE MUST DO AND HOW  TARGET COMPLETION DATE OR ALTERNATIVELY, COSTTO

WEWILL DO IT THENUMBER OF MONTHS REQUIREDTO COMPLETE ~ COMPLETE

Raisefundsofupto$100,000,000

in the next 12 months.™" 12 months 33,100,000
Invest f;’g'r'tzbalggsgds Into 12 months $96 900,000
Total: $100,000,000

Notes:

1. Thisfigureincludes,legal,audit,accounting(estimatedat$100,000)aswellas$3,000,000incommissions
payable on subscriptions assuming $100,000,000 is raised under this Offering.

2. This figure includes a consideration of the costs of sourcing and administering the mortgages.
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Insufficient Funds

TheproceedsoftheOfferingmaynotbesufficienttoaccomplishalltheCorporation'sproposedobjectivesandthere
is no assurance that alternative financing will be available.

Material Agreements
ThefollowingarethematerialagreementstowhichtheCorporationiscurrentlyaparty.Electroniccopiesofthese
agreements are available upon request.

a. TheArticlesoftheCorporationsetouttherightsandrestrictionsattachedtothePreferredSharesandthe
Common Shares. See “Description of Securities Offered - Terms of Securities.”

b. SubscriptionAgreements-eachSubscriberwillexecuteanddelivertotheCorporationaSubscription
AgreementwherebyitagreestosubscribeforOfferedShares,onthetermsandconditionssetouttherein
and described in this Offering Memorandum; and

¢. AmendedMortgagesServicesAgreement-datedJuly 1,2020withCMIMortgageServicesinc..and
Canadian Mortgages Inc. See “Business of the Corporation - Structure.”
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS,
MANAGEMENT, PROMOTERS AND
PRINCIPAL HOLDERS

Compensation and Securities Held

Thefollowingtableprovidesinformationabouteachdirector,officerandpromoteroftheCorporationandeachperson
who,directlyorindirectly,beneficiallyownsorcontrols10%ormoreofanyclassofvotingsecuritiesoftheCorporation
(@“principalholder”).Iftheprincipalholderisnotanindividual,stateinanotetothetablethenameofanyperson
that,directlyorindirectly,beneficiallyownsorcontrolsmorethan50%ofthevotingrightsoftheprincipalholder.

Name and
municipality

of principal
residence

Alan Jaskolka
Thornhill, Ontario

Bryan Jaskolka
Thornhill, Ontario

Jeffrey Jaskolka
Toronto, Ontario

Michel Jaskolka
Wilmington, USA

Positions held (e.g.,
director,officer,promoter
and/or principal holder)
and the date of obtaining

that position

Promoter, Directorand Chief
Financial Officer, Principal
Holder since incorporation

Promoter, Directorand Chief
Operating Officer, Principal
Holder since incorporation

Princip al Holder since
incorporation

Princip al Holder since
incorporation

Compensation paid by
Corporation or related
party in the most recently
completed financial year
and the compensation
anticipated to be paid in
the current financial year

2018:$500
2019: nil
2020: nil
2021:nil

2018: $500
2019: nil
2020: nil
2021: nil

2018:$500
2019: nil
2020: nil
2021: nil

2018:$500
2019: nil
2020: nil
2021: nil
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Number, type and
percentage of securities
of the Corporation held

after completion of
Min. Offering

25 Common Shares (25%)
125,000ClassAShares(0.46%)

25 Common Shares (25%)
11,571ClassAShares(0.04%)

25 Common Shares (25%)

25 Common Shares (25%)

Number, type and
percentage of securities
of the Corporation held

after completion of
Max. Offering

25 Common Shares (25%)
125,000ClassAShares(0.13%)

25 Common Shares (25%)
11,571ClassAShares(0.01%)

25 Common Shares (25%)

25 Common Shares (25%)



Thefollowingtabledisclosesbackgroundandtheprincipaloccupationsofthedirectorsandexecutiveofficersofthe
Corporation over the past five years:

Name Principal occupation and related experience

AlanJaskolkaactsasthePrincipalBrokerforCanadianMortgagesinc.,amortgagebrokeragespecializinginresidentialaswellas
Alan Jaskolka commercialmortgagefinancing.Hehasbeeninvolvedinrealestateinmanycapacitiesforover35years,withexpertiserangingfrom
realestatebrokerage,propertymanagement, realestatesoftwareconsulting,anddevelopmentfinancing.Heisalsothechairman
Director and Chief  4fCanadianMortgagesinc, CMIMortgagelnvestmentsinc, CMIMortgageServicesinc..AlanJaskolka'sareasofexpertiseinclude
Financial Officer  ortgagebrokeragecompliance,corporateoversightandmanagement,developmentfinancing,commercialmortgagefinancing,and
TARION Custom Home Construction.

BryanJaskolkahasbeenthemanagingexecutiveoftheCMIGroupofcompaniessinceinceptionin2005.Startingoutasamortgage

Bryan Jaskolka brokerage,CanadianMortgagesinc.hasexpandedtoincludemultipleadditionaldivisionswhichincludeCMIMortgagelnvestments
) ) Inc.(adirectprivatelendertothemortgagebrokerageindustry),andCMIMortgageServicesinc.(alicensedmortgageadministrator).
Director, Chief BryanJaskolkahasalsobeeninvolvedwiththousandsofmortgagetransactions,andhasexpertiseinresidential,construction

Executive Officer  3ndcommercialfinancing.Hehasbeeninvolvedinthemortgagefinancingindustryforover 1 2years,withexpertiserangingfrom

andChiefOperating  residentialtransactionstocomplexhospitalityandenergyprojectfinancings.BryanJaskolka'sareasofexpertiseincludeactingasteam

Officer leader—-marketing&coaching,actingasseniorresidentialmortgagebroker,privatemortgagefinancing,commercialmortgagesand
construction loans.

Penalties, Sanctions and Bankruptcy

Nodirector,executiveofficerorcontrolpersonoftheCorporationandnoissuerofwhichadirector,executiveofficer
orcontrol person of the Corporation was a director, executive officer or control person at the relevant time:

a. hasincurredorissubjecttoanypenaltyorsanctionthathasbeenineffectduringthelast10years,orany
ceasetradeorderthathasbeenineffectforaperiodofmorethan30consecutivedaysduringthepast10
years; or

b. hasdeclaredbankruptcy,hasvoluntarilymadeanassignmentinbankruptcy,hasmadeaproposalunder
anybankruptcyorinsolvencylegislation,proceedings,arrangementorcompromisewithcreditorsor
appointmentofareceiver,receiverManagersortrusteetoholdassets,thathasbeenineffectduringthelast
10 years.

Loans

TheManagers,oraffiliateoftheManagers,mayfromtimetotime,advancefundstotheCorporationforacquisition
ofmortgageloans.Suchloanswillbeevidencedbywayofpromissorynoteandwillbearinterestatarateequivalent
totherateofinterestonthemortgageloansacquiredbytheCorporationwiththefundsadvanced.TheManagers’
loanwillberepaidwithsubsequentproceedsreceivedbytheCorporationfromtheissuanceoftheOfferedShares.
Therearenoloansduetoorfromdirectors,management,promoter,orprincipalholdersoftheCorporationorthe
ManagersasatthedateofthisOfferingMemorandum.Exceptasnoted,nodebenturesorloanswereduetoorfrom
any directors, management, promoters, or principal holders of the Corporation.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Share Capital

hefollowingtableprovidesinformationaboutoutstandingsecuritiesoftheCorporation(includingoptions,warrants
andothersecuritiesconvertibleintoshares).TheCorporationisauthorizedtoissueanunlimitednumberofPreferred
Shares and Common Shares as of October 31st, 2021.

Number

Description of Numberauthorized a2 s e

security to be issued

Price per Security at the Date of outstanding after  outstanding after
this Offering Min. Offering Max. Offering™
Memorandum

Class A Shares Unlimited $1.00 27,411,542 N/A 100,000,000

Class F Shares Unlimited $1.00 100,000 N/A 100,000,000

Common Shares Unlimited $1.00 100 100 100
Notes:

1. The Maximum Offering amount is $100,000,000 worth of Offered Shares.

2. AsofOctober31,2021anaggregate of 1,175,289 Class A Shares wereissued pursuant to the Dividend
Reinvestment Plan (the “DRIP")

Long Term Debt Securities

IfdeemedprudentbytheManagers,theCorporationmay,fromtimetotime,secureadditionalorreplacementlong
termdebtfromfinancialinstitutions,otherthirdpartiesorholdersofOfferedShares.Suchloansmaybesecuredby
granting encumbrances, security interests or other charges on the assets of the Corporation.
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Prior Sales

Within the last 12 months the Corporation has issued securities as follows:

. Type of Number of Dividend Price Per Total Funds
Security Issued Securities Issued Reinvestment™ Security ($) Received ($) @
November 2020 Class A Shares 1,450,900 39,202 $1.00 1,490,102
December 2020 Class A Shares 739,950 46,492 $1.00 786,442
January 2021 Class A Shares 1,440,500 51,866 $1.00 1,492,366
February 2021 Class A Shares 1,764,950 61,006 $1.00 1,825,956
March 2021 Class A Shares 1,504,850 77,297 $1.00 1,582,147
April 2021 Class A Shares 1,694,059 89,228 $1.00 1,783,287
May 2021 Class A Shares 2,300,632 95,263 $1.00 2,395,895
June 2021 Class A Shares 3,301,500 109,562 $1.00 3,411,062
July 2021 Class A Shares 1,881,930 123,821 $1.00 2,005,751
July 2021 Class F Shares 100,000 nil $1.00 100,000
August 2021 Class A Shares 2,410,996 136,937 $1.00 2,547,933
September 2021 Class A Shares 2,441,556 159,701 $1.00 2,601,257
October 2021 Class A Shares 886,906 184,912 $1.00 1,071,818
Notes:

1. AlldeclareddividendsarecreditedtotheaccountofeachholderofOfferedSharesbycreditingsuchholder’s
accountwithadditionalOfferedSharesorfractionsthereofinproportiontotheholder’srespectiveshareholdings.
Attheoptionoftheholder,someoralltheholder’sdividendsshallbepayableintheformofacashdividend
ratherthanashare dividend orasablended paymentofboth acashdividendandashare dividend.See
“Description of Offered Securities - Terms of Securities.”

2. HoldersofOfferedShareshavetherightsubjecttocertaintermsandconditionstoretractsomeoralltheirOffered
SharesandtherebyrequiretheCorporationtopurchasesuchretractedOfferedShares.TheCorporationalsohas
therightsubjecttocertaintermsandconditionstoredeemallorsomeoftheOfferedShares.See”Descriptionof
Offered Securities - Terms of Securities.” As of October 31, 2021, 24,400 Shares have been redeemed.
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DESCRIPTION OF OFFERED SECURITIES

Terms of Securities

TheCorporationisauthorizedtoissueanunlimitednumberofClassASharesandClassFSharesandanunlimited
number of Common Shares. Class A Shares and Class F Shares will be issued under the Offering.

TheclassesofOfferedSharesareintendedfordifferenttypesofinvestors.ASubscribermaysubscribeforOffered
Shares of more than one class of shares.

TheCorporationisnotpresently,anddoesnotcurrentlyintendtobecome,a“reportingissuer’,assuchtermisdefined
underapplicableCanadiansecuritieslaws,inanyprovinceofterritoryofCanada.ThedistributionsoftheOfferedShares
isbeingmadeonaprivateplacementbasisonlyandisexemptfromtherequirementthattheCorporationpreparea
fileaprospectuswiththerelevantCanadiansecuritiesregulatoryauthorities.Accordingly,anyresaleortransferofthe
OfferedSharesmustbemadeinaccordancewithapplicableCanadiansecuritieslaws,whichmayrequireresaletobe
madeinaccordancewithprospectusrequirementsorexemptionsformtheprospectusrequirements.Subscribersare
advised to see legal advice prior to any resale of the Offered Shares.

The principal differencesamongtheclass of Offered Sharesrelatetothe servicefee payable by the Managerto
theDealers,thetargeted monthlydividendontheclassesof Offered Sharesandtherighttovoteatmeetingsof
shareholdersoftheCorporation.Thesearedescribedinmoredetailbelow.Seealso“CompensationPaidtoSellers
and Finders”, “Dividend Policy” and “Shareholder Matters — Matters Requiring Shareholder Approval”.

The Corporation intends to pay dividends on the Offered Shares. See “Dividend Policy”.

Forafulldiscussionofthefeespayablewithrespecttoeachclassof Offered Shares,see”ManagementFeesand
Expenses”.

Amendments

AmendmentstothetermsofthePreferredSharesorCommonSharesmustbeapprovedbytheapplicableShareholders
orCommonShareholdersoftheCorporationinaccordancewiththeOBCAandassetforthunder“ShareholderMatters
— Matters Requiring Shareholder Approval”.

Ranking

TheCommonSharesshallrankjuniortothePreferredSharesandshallbesubjectinallrespectstotherights, privileges,
restrictionsandconditionsattachingtothePreferredShares.However,onaliquidation,subjecttothepriorrightsofthe
PreferredShareholders,theholdersoftheCommonSharesshallbeentitledtotheremainingassetsoftheCorporation.

TheClassASharesandtheClassFSharesrankequallywithrespecttothepaymentofdividendsandthedistributionof
assets of the Corporation with a Liquidation Distribution.

Dividend Policy

HoldersofthePreferredSharesareentitledtoreceivenon-cumulativedividends,inanyformoramount,asandwhen
declaredfromtimetotimebythedirectorsoftheCorporation,actingintheirsolediscretion,outofthemoneysofthe
Corporation properly applicable to the payment of dividends.

TheCorporationintendstocalculateanddeclaredividendsonamonthlybasisonthelastbusinessdayofeachmonth
(orasotherwisedeclaredbytheCorporation)andtopaysuchdividendsgenerallywithinfifteendaysaftertheendof
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eachmonthandinanyeventwithin90daysofitsyearend.Thepaymentofdividendsissubjecttothediscretionofthe
BoardofDirectorstoestablishworkingcapitalandotherreservesfortheCorporationandtocomplywiththeArticles
and applicable laws.

TheCorporationanticipatesthedividendyieldtoexceed9%forClassASharesandtheCorporationanticipatesthe
ClassFdividendyieldtoexceed 10%netoffees, (the"TargetYields”).The Corporationmay,atitssole discretion,
increasethedividend.TheCorporationreservestherighttochangetheTargetYieldsontheOfferedShareswithout
notice to holders of the Offered Shares.

Liquidation

IntheeventofanyLiquidationDistribution,thePreferredShareholdersshallbeentitledtoreceivefromtheassetsand
propertyoftheCorporationforeachPreferredShareheldbythemtheRedemptionPricebeforeanyamountshallbe
paidoranypropertyorassetsoftheCorporationdistributedtotheCommonShareholdersorsharesofanyotherclass
ranking junior to the Preferred Shares with respect to priority in a Liquidation Distribution.

AfterpaymenttothePreferredShareholdersoftheamountsopayabletothemasaboveprovided,theyshallnotbe
entitled to share in any further distribution of the property or assets of the Corporation.

Class A Shares

ClassASharesareavailabletoallSubscribers.TheholdersofClassASharesarenotentitledtovoteatmeetingsofthe
shareholdersoftheCorporationotherthanasrequiredbylaworassetforthunder“ShareholderMatters—Matters
Requiring Shareholder Approval”.

ClassASharesareintendedforSubscribersseekingastablecashflowthroughregularmonthlydividends.Theholders
ofClassASharesareentitledtodividendsonsuchsharesasandwhendeclaredbytheCorporation.TheCorporation
anticipates paying atargeted monthly dividend on Class A Shares equivalenttoabove 9.00% perannum.The
Corporationmaychangethisdividendrate,initssolediscretion,andactualdividendsontheClassASharemaydiffer
fromthetargetedamountandbeoutsidethetargetedrange.TheCorporationmay,initssolediscretion,changethe
dividendpolicyandincreaseordecreasetheamountofdividendsonClassASharesatanytimewithoutnoticeandin
any single instance. See “Dividend Policy”.

Class F Shares

ClassFSharesareavailabletoSubscriberswhohavefee-basedaccountswithDealerswhohavearrangementswith
theManagerpursuanttoaClassFdealeragreementinrespectofsuchclassofShares.TheCorporationinitssole
discretionmayacceptsubscriptionsforClassFSharesfromSubscriberthatdonothavefee-basedaccountswith
Dealers.TheholdersofClassFSharesarenotentitledtovoteatmeetingsoftheshareholdersoftheCorporationother
thanasrequiredbylaworassetforthunder‘ShareholderMatters—MattersRequiringShareholderApproval”.ClassF
SharesareintendedforSubscribersseekingastablecashflowthroughregularmonthlydividends.TheholdersofClass
FSharesareentitledtodividendsonsuchsharesasandwhendeclaredbytheCorporation.TheCorporationanticipates
payingatargetedmonthlydividendonClassFSharesequivalenttoabove 10.00%perannum,however,theCorporation
maychangethisrange,initssolediscretionandactualdividendsontheClassFSharesmaydifferfromthetargeted
amountandbeoutsidethetargetedrange.TheCorporationmay,initssolediscretion,changethedividendpolicyand
increaseordecreasetheamountofdividendsonClassFSharesatanytimewithoutnoticeandinanysingleinstance.
See “Dividend Policy”.

Shareholder Matters

Exceptasrequired bylaworassetoutbelow, holders of Class A Sharesand Class F Shares willnot be entitled to
receive notice of, to attend or to vote at any meeting of shareholders of the Corporation.
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Matters Requiring Shareholder Approval

ThePreferredShareholdersshall,however,beentitledtonoticeofandtoattendallmeetingsofshareholderscalledfor
thepurposeofauthorizingthedissolutionoftheCorporationpursuanttotheActorasale, leaseorexchangeofallor
substantiallyallofthepropertyoftheCorporationotherthanintheordinarycourseofbusinesspursuanttosubsection
189" of the Act and shall have one vote for each Preferred Share held at each such meeting.

No Voting Rights and No Dissent Rights

ThePreferredShareholdersshallnotbeentitledtovoteortodissentrightsasprescribedbytheActinrespectof,any
proposal to amend the articles of the Corporation to:

a. increaseordecreaseanymaximumnumberofauthorizedPreferredShares,orincreaseanymaximum
numberofauthorizedsharesofsuchclassorserieshavingrightsorprivilegesequalorsuperiortothe
Preferred Shares;

b. effect an exchange, reclassification or cancellation of the Preferred Shares; or

c. createanewclassorseriesofsharesinferior,equalorsuperiortothePreferredSharesandnoseparate
classvoteshallberequiredundertheActinrespectoftheamendment,andthePreferredShareholdersshall
have no dissenting rights in respect thereof.

Redemptions

Redemptions at the Option of the Shareholder
Provided that

i. aPreferredSharethatisthesubjectofaredemptionrequesthasbeenissuedandoutstandingforatleast12
months,

ii. theredemptionrequestedwillnotresultinacontraventionoftheActoranyotherprovisionoftheArticles,and

iii. theredemptionrequestedwillnotcausethetotalofallredemptionrequestsfromallShareholderswhomadea
requestinthatsamecalendarquartertoexceedmorethan10%ofthetotalPreferredSharesoutstanding(such
thatallredemptionrequestswillbeonafirstcomefirstservebasisapportioningthelastredemptionrequest
untilthemaximumlimitof5%ofthetotal PreferredSharesoutstandingisredeemedinthatsamecalendar
quarter),theholdersofthePreferredSharesshallbeentitledtomakearedemptionrequesttotheCorporation,
requiringtheCorporationtoredeemattheRedemptionPricealloranypartofthePreferredSharesthenheld
inaccordancewiththetermssetoutherein.APreferredShareholdermustprovideaRedemptionRequestto
theCorporation.TheCorporationwillredeemthePreferredSharesspecifiedintheRedemptionRequestonthe
RedemptionDatenextfollowingthedatewhichis90daysafterreceiptbytheCorporationoftheRedemption
Request.

Early Redemption

TheDirectorsmay,inthecaseofanyPreferredShareholder,waiveorreducetheminimum12monthholdingperiod
ortheminimumnoticeperiodprovidedhereinincircumstanceswheretheDirectorshavedeterminedthatsuch
requirementswillresultinunduehardshiptothePreferredShareholder,suchasduringtimesofcriticalillnessordeath
of the Shareholder.
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Substantial Shareholder

Notwithstandingtheredemptionrightsoutlinedherein,intheinterestsofallShareholdersoftheCorporationcertain
restrictionsmay,inthesolediscretionoftheDirectors,beplacedonSubstantialShareholders.ASubstantialShareholder
isdefinedasaShareholdertogetherwithpartiesrelatedtothatShareholder(asdefinedintheTaxAct)whoholdsa
totalnumberofshareswhichisequaltoorgreaterthan 15%ofthetotalnumberofSharesoutstanding.Aslongasa
ShareholderisdefinedasaSubstantialShareholdertheywillberestrictedtoredeemingnomorethan20%oftheir
Shareholdings in any six-month period.

Payment Upon Redemption

The Corporation shall pay or cause to be paid to each Preferred Shareholder whose Preferred Shares are to be
redeemedpursuanttothisSection,anamountequaltotheaggregateRedemptionPrice,lessanyredemptionfees,
chargesorotheramountsthenpayablebythePreferredShareholder.Redemptionfeesof4.00%oftheaggregate
RedemptionPriceshallapplyonPreferredSharesthatarethesubjectofaredemptionrequestbytheShareholderand
nottheCorporation,thathavebeenissuedandoutstandingforlessthan 12months.TheDirectorsintheirsoleand
absolutediscretion,may,inthecaseofanyPreferredShareholder,waiveorreducetheredemptionfees.Paymentshall
bemadeonthe15thdayfollowingtheapplicableRedemptionDate.Paymentmaybemadebycheque,electronicfunds
transferorothermeansacceptabletotheCorporationandthePreferredShareholder.Uponpaymentoftheaggregate
RedemptionPrice, thePreferredSharesredeemedshallbeimmediatelycancelled.ThePreferred Shareholdershall
thereafterceasetohaveanyfurtherrightswithrespecttosuchPreferred Sharesand providedthat, paymentof
theaggregateRedemptionPriceisdulymade,theCorporationshallbedischargedfromallliabilitytothePreferred
Shareholder with respect to the Preferred Shares redeemed and the amount paid.

Suspension of Redemptions

Notwithstandinganythingelsecontainedherein,theBoardofDirectorsoftheCorporationmaysuspendorpostpone,or
continueasuspensionorpostponementforanyperiod,ineachcase,foranyreasonorcauseinitssolediscretion, the
right to require redemption of the Preferred Shares

i. wheretheBoardofDirectorshasdeterminedthatmarketconditionsexistwhichrenderimpracticablean
orderly sale or liquidation of the assets of the Corporation, or

ii. incircumstanceswherebythe Directors have determinedthatthe accountingworking capital of the
Corporation would be insufficient, or

iii. wheretheBoardofDirectorshasdeterminedthatthesuspensionorpostponementisrequiredtoensure
fairandequitabletreatmentofall ofthe Preferred Shareholders,suchasincircumstanceswherebythe
CorporationwouldnotbeabletoprovidedividendstoitsShareholdersatthesameamountsandfrequencyas
historically paid, or (iv) as may be permitted or required by law.

Where Redemption Suspended

Uponthecommencementofanysuspensionoftherighttorequireredemptions,theCorporationshallpromptlynotify
anyPreferredShareholderwhohassubmittedaRedemptionRequestandhasnotbeenpaid,ofthesuspension.The
affectedPreferredShareholdermaythereuponwithdrawtheRedemptionRequestorpartthereof.lfnotsowithdrawn,
thePreferredShareholderwillbeentitledtobepaidtheaggregateRedemptionPriceontheRedemptionDatenext
followingthedatethattheredemptionprivilegeisreinstated, providedthattheminimumholdingperiodandthe
minimum notice period in paragraph 1 above have been complied with.
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Partial Redemptions Permitted

OnanyRedemptionDate,theCorporationmayredeemsomebutnotallthePreferredSharesforwhichRedemption
RequestshavebeenreceivedandpostponeorsuspendtheredemptionoftheremainingPreferredSharespursuant
totheprovisionshereof.AnysuchpartialredemptionshallbemadeprorataamongallPreferred Shareholderswho
submitted such Redemption Requests on a first come first serve basis.

Powers of the Corporation to Maintain MIC Status

The Articlesalso provide that no holder ofany shares of the Corporationis permitted toacquire, hold, transfer,
encumberorotherwisedealinorwithanysharesoftheCorporation,oranyinteresttherein,inamannerthatwillcause
theCorporationtoceasetoqualifyasaMICundertheTaxAct.IntheeventthatanyholderofsharesoftheCorporation
purportstotransferanysharesoftheCorporation,exercisesorpurportstoexerciseanyretractionrightsinrespect
ofanysharesoftheCorporationoranyrepurchaserightsaffectinganysharesoftheCorporationorenters,ordoes
anythingforthepurposeofentering,intoanyothertransactionaffectinganyofthesharesoftheCorporation(eachof
theforegoing,a“TriggeringTransaction”),that,ifcompleted,wouldcausetheCorporation,inthereasonableopinion
ofthedirectorsoftheCorporation,toceasetoqualifyasaMICundertheTaxAct, thedirectorsoftheCorporation
shallhavethepowertocauseanyaffectedholderofsharesoftheCorporationorprospectiveholderofsharesofthe
Corporation

i. todelay,terminate,modifyorotherwiserestructurethetermsof,ornottoenterintoorengagein,such
Triggering Transaction or

ii. toenterintoanyalternativetransactiononthetermsandconditionsdeterminedbythedirectorsofthe
Corporation,includingthepowertoforcetheconversionofsharesoftheCorporationofanyclassorseries
intosharesofanotherclassorseriesoftheCorporation,allwithoutconsentofanyactualorprospective
holderofsharesoftheCorporationaffectedthereby;providedthatallsuchpowersshallbeexercisedbythe
directorssolelyforpurposeofensuringthattheCorporationcontinuestoqualifyasaMICundertheTaxAct,on
commercially reasonable terms and subject to the CBCA, the Articles.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

TheCorporation,subjecttomaintainingthestatusoftheCorporationasaMICundertheTaxAct,maintainsadividend
reinvestmentplan(“DRIP”).UndertheDRIP,Shareholderscanreinvestdividendsinadditional PreferredSharesofthe
same class as they enroll in the DRIP.

Eligibility

HoldersofPreferredShareswhoresideinCanadaareeligibletoparticipateintheDRIPbycompletinganenrolmentform
(“Participants”).IfaShareholderwishestoparticipateintheDRIP theymayenrollanyoftheirPreferredSharesintheDRIP.

Enrolment in the Plan

ToenrollintheDRIP.changeyourenrolmentortoterminateyourenrolmentintheDRIPwrittennoticemustbegiventothe
Corporation.AParticipant’senrolment,changeinenrolmentorterminationofenrolmentintheDRIPwilltakeeffectonceit
hasbeenrecordedundertheDRIPwhichwillbenolaterthan45daysafterwrittennoticeisreceivedbytheCorporation.

OnceaParticipanthasenrolledintheDRIPhis/herenrolmentcontinuesautomaticallyuntiltheParticipantwithdrawsfrom
the DRIP, or until the DRIP is terminated.
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Cost and Attributes of Shares Purchased under the DRIP

Preferred Shares are purchased at the Market Price, as defined in the DRIP, which as at the date of the Offering
Memorandumhasbeendeterminedtobe$ 1.00perPreferredShareandareissuedfromthetreasuryoftheCorporation.
TheCorporationusesthecashdividendsattributabletoaPreferredShareholdertopurchaseadditionalPreferredShares
ofthesameclassonbehalfoftheShareholder.AllPreferred SharesacquiredthroughtheDRIParecreditedtothe
Shareholder’saccount.FractionalinterestsinPreferredShareswillnotbetransferredtoyou.Instead, theTrustwillhold
thefractionalinterestonyourbehalfandfractionalinterestswillaccumulate.Oncetheaccumulatedfractionalinterests
equalawholePreferredShareofthesameseries,youwillbetreatedastheownerofawholePreferred Shareandthat
wholePreferredSharewillbedeliveredtoyouinthemannerdescribedaboveforwholePreferredSharesgenerally.

Transaction Statements

IfyouownPreferredSharesthroughanintermediary,youwillreceiveinformationregardingreinvestmentofdividends
fromyourintermediary,inaccordancewithyourintermediary’sadministrativepractices.Pleaseconsultyourintermediary
for additional information.

IfyouownthePreferredSharesinyourownname,youwillreceiveastatementfollowingeachcalendarquarterorat
suchotherintervalsasdeterminedbytheCorporationsettingoutthedividendsreceivedbythe DRIPonyourbehalf
duringthepriorcalendarquarter(orotherinterval),thenumberofPreferredSharespurchasedwiththosedividendsand
the total number of Preferred Shares held on your behalf under the DRIP.

Liabilities of the Corporation and Managers

Neitherthe Corporationnorthe Managersisliableforanyactundertakenoromittedingoodfaith.Neitherthe
CorporationnortheManagerscanassureaprofitorprotectanyShareholderagainstalossrelatingtoPreferredShares
acquired or to be acquired under the DRIP.

Amendments to Plan and Termination by Corporation

TheCorporationmayamend,suspend,orterminatetheDRIPatanytimeuponnoticetoallParticipants.Intheeventof
suspensionorterminationoftheDRIPthetrustwillmakenoinvestmentsontheDividendPaymentDatesfollowingthe
effective date of such suspension or termination.

Tax Consequences

Generally,a Participant will be taxed on dividends that are reinvested in the same mannerasif the Participant
hadreceivedthedividendsincash.Shareholdersshouldconsulttheirtaxadvisorsaboutthetaxconsequencesof
participating in the DRIP.

Subscription Procedure

TheOfferedSharesareofferedpursuanttoanyoneoftheexemptionsunderNationallnstrument45-106Prospectus
Exemptions(“NI45-106")fromtheprospectusrequirementsofsecuritieslegislation.Suchexemptionsrelievethe
CorporationfromprovisionsundersecuritieslegislationrequiringtheCorporationtofileaprospectusandtherefore
Subscribersdonotreceivethe benefitsassociated withasubscriptionforsecuritiesissued pursuanttoafiled
prospectus, including the review of material by a securities commission or similar authority.
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The Offered Shares are being offered only in the Selling Jurisdictions and only through registered dealers.

TheCorporationwillberelyingprimarilyontheofferingmemorandumexemptionundersection2.90fNI45-106
(the"OfferingMemorandumExemption”),theaccreditedinvestorexemptionundersection2.30fNI45-106(the
“AccreditedInvestorExemption”)andtheminimumamountinvestmentexemptionundersection2.100fNI45-16(the
“Minimum Amount Investment Exemption”).

Each Subscriber is urged to consult with his own legal adviser as to the details of the statutory exemption
being relied upon and the consequences

The Subscription Agreement

EachprospectiveandqualifiedinvestorwhowishestosubscribeforOfferedSharesmustcompleteandsigntheform
ofSubscriptionAgreement(includingtheapplicablecertificatesandriskacknowledgementforms)specifyingthe
number of Offered Shares being subscribed for and follow the instructions set forth therein.

TheSubscriptionAgreementcontains,amongotherthings,representationsandwarrantiesrequiredtobemadebythe
SubscriberthatitisdulyauthorizedtopurchasetheOfferedShares, thatitispurchasingOfferedSharesforinvestment
andnotwithaviewforresale,andastoitscorporatestatusorotherqualificationstopurchaseOfferedSharesona
“privateplacement”basis.ReferenceismadetotheSubscriptionAgreementandrelateddocumentation,copiesof
whichareattachedheretoasSchedule”A’ forthespecifictermsoftheserepresentations,warranties,andconditions.

Execution and Delivery of Subscription Agreement

YoumaysubscribeforOffered Sharesbydeliveringthefollowingdocumentstousattheaddressshowninthe
Subscription Agreement:

a. acompletedandexecutedSubscriptionAgreementaccompanyingtheformprovidedwiththisOffering
Memorandum;

b. Bankdraft,wire,order/electronicfundstransferorcertifiedchequepayabletotheCorporationinthe
amount of the subscription price for the Offered Shares;

¢. anySubscriberpurchasingOfferedSharespursuanttotheOfferingMemorandumExemptionmustcomplete
andsigntwocopiesoftheForm45-106F4—RiskAcknowledgement(“Form45-106F4")attachedtothe
SubscriptionAgreement(onecopytoberetainedbytheSubscriberandonecopytobedeliveredtothe
Corporation);

d. iftheSubscriberisanindividualandresidentinAlberta,Ontario,QuébecorSaskatchewanandispurchasing
OfferedSharespursuanttotheOfferingMemorandumExemption,theSubscribermustcomplete,andsign
twocopiesofSchedulesA-1and A-2attachedtotheForm45-106F4intheSubscription Agreement.

e. iftheSubscriberispurchasingOfferedShareshavinganaggregateacquisitioncostofgreaterthan$10,000
pursuanttotheOfferingMemorandumExemption,theSubscribermayberequiredtocompleteandsign
additional documentation including an Eligible Investor Questionnaire

f. iftheSubscriberisan“accreditedinvestor”asdefinedinNI45-106andis purchasing Offered Shares
pursuanttotheAccreditedinvestorExemption,theSubscribermustcompleteandsigntheAccredited
InvestorStatusCertificateattachedtotheSubscriptionAgreement(includingtheForm45-106F9risk
acknowledgement form contained therein, if applicable); and

g. iftheSubscriberisrelyingontheMinimumAmountinvestmentExemption,theSubscribermustcompletethe
CertificateforMinimumAmountlnvestorsandRiskDisclosureFormforMinimumAmountinvestorsattached
to the Subscription Agreement.
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AcceptanceofSubscriptionsandClosings—SubscriptionsmaybeacceptedatthesolediscretionoftheManagers,
andaresubjecttothetermsandconditionsoftheSubscriptionAgreementsignedbytheSubscriber.TheCorporation
reservestherighttoclosethesubscriptionbooksatanytimewithoutnotice.Anyfundsforsubscriptionthatthe
CorporationdoesnotacceptwillbepromptlyreturnedaftertheCorporationhasdeterminednottoacceptthefunds
without interest or deduction.

TheauthoritytoacceptorrejectsubscriptionshasbeendelegatedtotheManagerstoensurethattheCorporation
maximizesitsreturnforexistingSubscribers, thatthefundremainsqualifiedasa”MIC"asthistermisdefinedbytheTax
Act, and to ensure that the Corporation complies with all other relevant securities legislation.

ThisOfferingisnotsubjecttoanyminimumsubscriptionlevelexceptasspecifiedintheOfferingMemorandumoras
requiredfortheCorporationtomaintainitsstatusasa“MIC"undertheTaxAct.Therefore,anyfundsreceivedfroma
SubscriberareavailabletotheCorporationandneednotberefundedtotheSubscribersaveandexceptasrequiredby
theconstatingdocumentsoftheCorporation,thetermsofthisOfferingMemorandum,orasotherwiserequiredbylaw.

IfthisOfferingisnullifiedforanyreason,theSubscriptionAgreementandcashfundsreceivedbytheManagerspriortothe
nullificationwillbereturnedtoSubscriberswithoutinterestordeductionasiftheSubscribers'subscriptionhadbeenrejected
(whetherthesubscription(s)hadpreviouslybeenAprospectiveSubscriberwillbecomeashareholderuponexecutionofa
SubscriptionAgreement,acceptanceoftheSubscriptionAgreementbytheManagersactingonbehalfoftheCorporation,
paymentofthesubscriptionprice,andentryoftheSubscriber'snameintheshareholderregisteroftheCorporation.

Whererequiredundersecuritieslegislation,thesubscriptionamountwillbeheldintrustbytheManagersuntilmidnight
onthesecondbusinessdayaftertheSubscriberdeliverstheexecutedSubscriptionAgreement.Suchsubscription
proceedswillbe heldintrust until midnighton the second Business Day after the day the Subscribersignsthe
applicableSubscriptionAgreement.lfSubscribersprovidetheCorporationwithacancellationnoticepriortomidnight
ofthesecondBusinessDayafterthesigningdate,ortheCorporationdoesnotacceptaSubscriber'ssubscription,all
subscriptionproceedswillbepromptlyreturnedtotheSubscriberwithoutinterestordeduction.Proceedsreceivedfrom
SubscriberswhopurchaseOfferedSharesunderthisOfferingwillbeheldintrustandonlyreleasedagainstdeliveryof
thecertificatesrepresentingtheOfferedSharessubscribedtherefor.lftheOfferingisterminatedpriortoClosing, the
proceedsundertheOfferingreceivedfromeachSubscribershallbereturnedtosuchSubscriberwithoutinterestor
deduction. See “Purchaser’s Rights of Action and Rescission”.

Personal Information

EachresidentofOntariowhopurchasestheOfferedShareswillbedeemedtohaverepresentedtotheCorporationand
eachdealerfromwhomapurchaseconfirmationisreceived,thatsuchpurchaserhasbeennotifiedbytheCorporation:

a. thattheCorporationmayberequiredtoprovidepersonalinformationpertainingtothepurchaserasrequired
tobedisclosedinSchedulelofForm45-106F 1underNI45-106(includingitsname,address, telephone
numberandtheaggregatepurchasepriceofanyOfferedSharespurchased)(“personalinformation”),
which Form 45-106F 1 maybe required to be filed by the Corporation under NI 45-106;

b. thatsuchpersonalinformationmaybedeliveredtotheOntarioSecuritiesCommission(the“OSC”)in
accordance with NI 45-106;

c. thatsuchpersonalinformationiscollectedindirectlybytheOSCundertheauthoritygrantedtoitunderthe
securities legislation of Ontario;

d. thatsuchpersonalinformationiscollectedforthepurposesoftheadministrationandenforcementofthe
securities legislation of Ontario; and

e. thatthepublicofficialinOntariowhocananswerquestionsabouttheOSC'sindirectcollectionofsuch
personalinformationistheAdministrativeAssistanttotheDirectorofCorporateFinanceattheOSC,Suite
1903,Box 55,20 Queen StreetWest, Toronto, Ontario M5H 358, Telephone: (416) 593-8086;and has
authorized the indirect collection of the personal information by the OSC.
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Furthermore,eachSubscriberacknowledgesthatitsname,address,telephonenumberandotherspecifiedinformation,
includingtheaggregatepurchasepricepaidbytheSubscriber,maybedisclosedtootherCanadiansecuritiesregulatory
authoritiesandmaybecomeavailabletothepublicinaccordancewiththerequirementsofapplicableCanadianlaws.By
purchasing the Offered Shares, each Subscriber consents to the disclosure of such information.

Switching Between Classes

SubscriberscanswitchSharesofoneclassintoanotherclassofSharesbeingofferedpursuanttotheOfferingifthey
meettherequirementsforthenewclassintowhichtheywishtoswitch,subject,ineachcase,totheconsentofthe
CorporationwhichmaybeexercisedbytheManager.Aswitchmayberefused, amongotherreasons,inorderto
maintaintheCorporation’sstatusasaMIC.InordertorequestaswitchofShares,anInvestormustcomplete,execute
anddelivertotheCorporationortotheirDealerfordeliverytotheCorporationaSubscriptionAgreementcorresponding
to the Class of Shares into which the Investor wishes to switch.

A switch by an Subscriber of Shares from one class into Shares of another class may give rise to income tax
consequences to the Investor. See “Income Tax Consequences and RRSP Eligibility.”

Switch Fees

IfaShareholderswitchesfromSharesofoneclasstoSharesofanotherclass,theShareholderwillnotbechargeda
switchfeebytheCorporation.TheredeemssuchSharesandinveststheproceedsofsuchredemptionintoanotherclass
of Preferred Shares. See “Description of Securities Offered — Terms of Securities Offered.”

IncaseswhereaShareholderisliabletopayaredemptionfeeasaresultofaswitchbytheShareholderofSharesof
oneClassinexchangeforSharesofanotherClass,theCorporationshallcausetheShareholdertoredeemasufficient
numberofSharesoftheoriginalClasssothattheproceedsofsuchredemptionwillbesufficienttodischargethe
amountoftheRedemptionfee.TheremainingnumberofSharesoftheoriginalClassthattheShareholderwishedto
switch will then be exchanged for consideration consisting solely of Shares of the other Class.

For all switches, a Dealer may charge a Shareholder fee based on their own fee structures.
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INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES AND
RRSP ELIGIBILITY

Youshouldconsultyourownprofessionaladviserstoobtainadviceontheincometaxconsequencesthatapplytoyou.

TheCorporationhaspreparedthefollowingcommentary,whichitbelievesisafairandadequatesummaryofthe
principalfederalincometaxconsequencesarisingundertheTaxActtoaSubscriberwhoisanindividualresidentin
CanadawhoacquiresOfferedSharesunderthisOfferingMemorandum.Theincometaxconsequenceswillnotbethe
sameforallSubscribers, butmayvarydependingonanumberoffactorsincludingtheprovinceorprovincesinwhich
theSubscriberresidesorcarriesonbusiness,whetherOfferedSharesacquiredbyhimorherwillbecharacterizedas
capital property, and the amount his taxable income would be but for his participation in this Offering.

The following discussion of the Canadian income tax consequences is, therefore, of a general and limited
natureonlyandisnotintendedto constituteacompleteanalysis oftheincometaxconsequencesandshould
not be interpreted as legal or tax advice to any particular Subscriber.

This summary does not address provincial or territorial laws of Canada or any tax laws of any jurisdiction
outsideofCanada.Each prospectiveSubscribershould obtainadvicefromhisownindependenttaxadvisoras
to the Canadian federal and provincial income tax consequences of his acquisition of Offered Shares, as such
consequences can vary depending upon the circumstances of each Subscriber.

Thefollowingisasummary,providedbytheCorporation,oftheprincipalCanadianfederalincometaxconsequencesof
acquiring,holdinganddisposingoftheOfferedSharesbyaSubscriberwho,atallrelevanttimes,isaresidentofCanada,
dealsatarm’slength,andisnotaffiliated,withtheCorporation,andwhoacquiresandholdstheOfferedSharesascapital
property(each,a”holder”),allwithinthemeaningoftheTaxAct.Generally,theOfferedShareswillbeconsideredcapital
propertytoaholderprovidedsuchholderdoesnotholdtheOffered Sharesinthecourseofcarryingonbusinessand
hasnotacquiredtheminoneormoretransactionsconsideredtobeanadventureinthenatureoftrade.Holderswho
maynotholdtheOfferedSharesascapital propertycanelect,incertaincircumstances,tohavesuchpropertytreated
ascapitalpropertybymakingtheirrevocableelectionpermittedbysubsection39“oftheTaxAct.Thissummaryisnot
applicabletoanyholderofOfferedShareswhichisa“financialinstitution’asdefinedinsection 142.2oftheTaxActorto
any holder of Offered Shares an interest in which is a“tax shelter investment”for the purposes of the Tax Act.

ThissummaryisbaseduponthefactssetoutinthisOfferingMemorandum,thecurrentprovisionsoftheTaxActand
theregulationsthereunder,allspecificproposals(the”TaxProposals”)toamendtheTaxActandtheregulations
thereunderpubliclyannouncedbyoronbehalfoftheMinisterofFinance(Canada)priortothedatehereofandthe
currentpublishedadministrativepracticesoftheCanadaRevenueAgency(“CRA").ThissummaryassumesthattheTax
Proposalswillbeenactedascurrentlyproposedbutdoesnottakeintoaccountoranticipateanyotherchangesinlaw
whetherbylegislative,governmentalorjudicialactionanddoesnottakeintoaccounttaxlegislationorconsiderationsof
any province, territory or foreign jurisdiction.

ThesummarycontainedinthissectionisofageneralnatureonlyandisnotexhaustiveofallpossibleCanadianfederal
incometaxconsequences.Thissummaryisnotintendedtobeandshouldnotbeinterpretedaslegalortaxadviceto
anyparticularSubscriber.Holdersshouldconsultwiththeirowntaxadvisorregardingtheincometaxconsequencesof
acquiring,holdinganddisposingoftheOfferedSharesincludingtheapplicationandeffectoftheincomeandothertax
laws of any country, province, state or local tax authority.

ThissummaryisbasedontheassumptionthattheCorporationmeetscertainconditionswhichareimposedbythe
TaxActtoqualifyasa’mortgageinvestmentcorporation”Theseconditionswillgenerallybesatisfiedif,throughouta
taxationyearoftheCorporation;or,inthe Corporation’sfirsttaxationyear,attheendof suchfirsttaxationyear:

the Corporation is a Canadian corporation as defined in the Tax Act;

b. theCorporation'sonlyundertakingwastheinvestingoffunds,anditdidnotmanageordevelopanyreal
property;

¢. NodebtswereowingtotheCorporationbynon-residentsofCanada,exceptanysuchdebtsthatweresecured
on real property situated in Canada;
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d. the Corporation did not own shares of corporations not resident in Canada;
e. the Corporation did not hold real property situated outside of Canada;
f. nodebtswereowingtotheCorporationthatweresecuredonrealpropertysituatedoutsideofCanada;

g. thecostamountoftheCorporation’spropertyconsistingofmortgageson”houses”oronpropertyincluded
withina”"housingproject”(asthosetermsaredefinedinsection2oftheNationalHousingAct(Canada)),
depositswithabankorothercorporationswhosedepositsareinsuredbytheCanadaDepositinsurance
Corporationoracreditunion,togetherwithcashonhand(collectively,the"QualifyingProperty”),wasat
least 50% of the cost amount to it of all its property;

h. thecostamountofrealproperty(includingleaseholdintereststhereinbutexcludingrealpropertyacquiredasa
consequenceofforeclosureordefaultsonamortgageheldbytheCorporation)ownedbytheCorporationdid
not exceed 25% of the cost amount to it of all of its property;

i. theCorporationhad20ormoreshareholdersandnopersonwouldhaveheldmorethan25%oftheissued
sharesofthecapitalstockofthe Corporationorbeenaspecifiedshareholder(assuchtermisdefinedin
subsection 130.1© of the Tax Act) of the Corporation;

j. holdersofanyOfferedShareshadaright,afterpaymentoftheirdividends,andpaymentofdividendsina
likeamountpersharetotheholdersofcommonshares,toparticipateparipassuwiththeholdersofcommon
shares in any further payment of dividends; and

k. whereatanytimeintheyear (oratthe end of the year, as the case may be) the costamount to it of its
QualifyingPropertywaslessthan2/3ofthecostamounttoitofallofitsproperty,theCorporation’sliabilitiesdid
notexceedthreetimestheamountbywhichthecostamounttoitofallofitspropertyexceededitsliabilities,
or,wherethroughoutthetaxationyear(orattheendoftheyear,asthecasemaybe)thecostamounttoitofits
QualifyingPropertyequaledorexceeded2/3ofthecostamountofallofitsproperty,theCorporation’sliabilities
did not exceed five times the amount by which the cost amount to it of all of its property exceed

Ithasbeenassumed,forthepurposeofthissummarythattheCorporationwillqualifyasaMICinaccordancewith
conditionsprescribedintheTaxActatalltimeswhicharerelevanttotheopinionsexpressedherein.Basedupon
certainrepresentations by managementofthe Corporationastothenature, locationand costamounts of the
Corporation’sassetsandliabilities,includingthecompositionandcostofitsmortgageportfolio,astotheshareholders
oftheCorporationandastotherangeofactivitieswhichtheCorporationwillundertakeinthecourseofcarryingon
itsmortgageinvestmentbusiness(the”Representations”),counselanticipatesthattheCorporationwillmeetthe
requirementsforqualificationasa”’mortgageinvestmentcorporation“undertheTaxActattheclosingofthisOffering
andwillcontinuetosoqualifythereafterprovidedtheRepresentationscontinuetobetruethroughouteachofthe
Corporation'ssubsequenttaxationyears.PurchasersarecautionedthattheCorporationmustmeettherequirements
undertheTaxActtobea”’mortgageinvestmentcorporation”’onacontinuousbasisthroughouteachtaxationyearin
ordertoavailitselfoftheprovisionsoftheTaxActastothetaxationofdividendsoutlinedherein.Managementofthe
CorporationexpectsthattheRepresentationswillcontinuetobetruethroughouteachofthecorporation'ssubsequent
taxation years such that the Corporation will continue to so qualify.

[tisintended,andthissummaryassumes,thattheserequirementswillbesatisfiedsothattheCorporationwillqualifyas
aMICatallrelevanttimes.Ifthe Corporation were notto qualify asa MIC, theincome tax consequences would
be materially different from those described below

Taxation of the Corporation

TheCorporationwill,incomputingitsincome,generallybeentitledtodeductthefullamountofalltaxabledividends
(otherthancapitalgainsdividends)whichitpaysduringtheyearorwithin90daysaftertheendoftheyeartothe
extentthatsuchdividendswerenotdeductiblebytheCorporationincomputingitsincomefortheprecedingyear.In
addition,theCorporationmaygenerallydeclareacapitalgainsdividendinanamountequaltothegrossamountofits
capitalgainsandisentitledtodeduct,incomputingitsincomefortheyear,one-half(1/2)ofitscapitalgainsdividend
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paidduringtheperiodcommencing91daysafterthecommencementoftheyearandending90daysaftertheendof
theyear.TheCorporationintendstopaytaxabledividendsandcapitalgainsdividendseachyearinsufficientamountsto
reduce its Part | income tax liability to Nil.

Taxation of Holders

Taxabledividends(otherthancapitalgainsdividends)whicharepaidbytheCorporationontheOfferedShareswillbe
includedintheholder’sincomeasinterestincome.Thenormalgross-upanddividendtaxcreditruleswillnotapply
todividends paid by the Corporationtoanindividualand holders thatare corporations will not be entitled to
deducttheamountofthedividendspaidbytheCorporationfromtheirtaxableincome.Capitalgainsdividends
willbetreatedasacapitalgainrealizedbytheholderandwillbesubjecttothegeneralrulesrelatingtothetaxationof
capital gains described in more detail below.

ThecosttoaholderofOfferedSharesacquiredpursuanttothisOfferingwillequalthepurchasepriceoftheOffered
Sharesplustheamountofanyotherreasonableacquisitioncostsincurredinconnectiontherewith.Thiscostmustbe
averagedwiththecostofallotherOfferedSharesheldbytheholdertodeterminetheadjustedcostbaseofeachShare.

Adispositionoradeemeddispositionofthe Offered Shares(otherthantotheCorporation)willresultinaholder
realizingacapitalgain(orcapitalloss)totheextentthattheproceedsofdispositionoftheOfferedSharesexceed(or
areexceededby)theadjustedcostbaseoftheOfferedSharesandreasonabledispositioncosts,accordingtotheusual
rulescontainedintheTaxAct.AmountspaidbytheCorporationontheredemptionoracquisitionbyitoftheOffered
Shares,uptothepaid-upcapitalthereof,willbetreatedasproceedsofdisposition.AnyamountpaidbytheCorporation
ontheredemptionoracquisitionoftheOfferedShareswhichisinexcessofthepaid-upcapitaloftheOfferedShares
willbedeemedtobeadividendandwillgenerallybeincludedintheincomeofaholderofthe Offered Sharesas
interest (and deductible by the Corporation) in accordance with the rules described above.

One-half(1/2)ofanycapitalgainrealizedbyaholder(includingcapitalgainsdeemedtoberealizedasaresultofa
receiptofacapitalgainsdividend)willbeincludedintheholder’'sincomeundertheTaxActasataxablecapitalgain.
SubjecttocertainspecificrulescontainedintheTaxAct,one-half(1/2) ofanycapitallossrealizedinataxationyear
maybedeductedagainstanytaxablecapitalgainsrealizedbytheholderintheyearofdisposition.Theexcessof
capitallossesovercapitalgainsintheyearofdispositionmaygenerallybedeductedagainstcapitalgainsinthethree
precedingtaxationyearsorinanysubsequenttaxationyear,subjecttothemorespecificrulescontainedintheTaxAct.

Taxablecapitalgainsrealizedbyaholderthatisanindividual,includingcertaintrusts,maygiverisetoalternative
minimum tax depending upon the holder’s circumstances.

AnypaymentinexcessoftheearningsoftheCorporationwouldreducetheadjustedcostbaseoftheOfferedShares.

Eligibility for Investment by Deferred Income Plans

TheCorporationconfirmsthattheOffered Sharesmaybequalifiedinvestmentsfortrustsgovernedbyregistered
retirementsavingsplans,registerededucationsavingsplans,deferredprofitsharingplans,registeredretirement
incomefundsortax-freesavingsaccounts(collectively,’DeferredincomePlans”)ataparticulartimeiftheCorporation
qualifiesasaMICundertheTaxActandifthroughoutthe calendaryearinwhichthe particulartimeoccurs, the
Corporationdoesnotholdaspartofitspropertyanyindebtedness,whetherbywayofmortgageorotherwise,ofa
personwhoisanannuitant,abeneficiary,anemployerorasubscriber,undertherelevantDeferredincomePlanorany
otherpersonwhodoesnotdealatarm’slengthwiththatperson.DeferredincomePlanswillgenerallynotbeliablefor
taxinrespectofanydividendsreceivedfromtheCorporationoronanycapitalgainrealizedonthedispositionofthe
Offered Shares or with respect to capital gains dividends.

IftheCorporationfailstoqualifyasaMICatanytimeinataxationyear,theOffered Sharesmayceasetobeaqualified
investmentforaDeferredincomePlan.WhenaDeferredincomePlanholdsanon-qualifiedinvestmentattheendofa
month,thetrustgovernedbytheplanwillbesubjecttoataxof1%ofthefairmarketvalueoftheinvestmentatthetime
itwasacquired.IftheDeferredIncomePlaninquestionisatax-freesavingsaccount,ataxof50%ofthefairmarket
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valueoftheOfferedSharesoftheCorporationwillapplyagainsttheholderiftheCorporationfailstoqualifyasaMIC,or
atanytimeiftheOfferedSharesbecomeaprohibitedornon-qualifiedinvestmentforaDeferredincomePlanthatisa
tax-freesavingsaccount.Additionally,whileaDeferredincomePlanthatisatax-freesavingsaccountholdsaprohibited
investment,theholderwillalsobesubjecttoanadditionaltaxthatisbasedonincomeearnedfromtheprohibited
investment.
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COMPENSATION PAID TO SELLERS
AND FINDERS

ThenatureofthecompensationthatanagentorsecuritiesdealersreceivesdependsontheclassofOfferedShares
purchased by the Subscribers.

Class A Shares

CMl.andCSl.InitscapacityasManagersoftheCorporationhaveagreedtoretainorengageagents,securitiesDealers
andbrokerstoarrange,andfacilitatethe completion of, the sale of the Class AShares to Subscribers.Nofees or
commissionsshallbepayablebyeithertheCorporationortheManagerstosuchagents,securitiesdealersorbrokers
otherthanthefollowingfees:onetimecommissionsorfeesofupto3%ofthefundsraisedandatrailingcommission
isgenerallycalculatedandpayablequarterlyinarrearstodealerswhoseclientsholdClassASharesatarateequalto
1%ofthenetvalueoftheshares,lessanysharespurchasedthroughtheDRIPattributabletotheClassASharessold
bysuchdealersasatthelastbusinessdayoftheapplicablequarter.ThetrailingcommissionsarepaidbytheManager
outofthefeesitreceivesfromtheCorporation.TheManagermaychangeorcancelthetrailingcommissionatanytime
initssolediscretion.Inaddition,agents,securitiesDealersandbrokersmaychargetheirclientsadditionalfeesand
commissionstopurchaseorsellClassAShares.TheCorporationwillnotpayfinder'sfeesdirectlytoanyperson.

Class F Shares

NosalescommissionortrailingcommissionispaidtoaDealeroragentbytheCorporationortheManagerinrespectof
Class F Shares.

ClassFSharesaregenerallyavailabletoSubscriberswhohavefee-basedaccountswithDealerswhohavearrangements
withtheManagerinrespectoftheClassFShares.WhereaSubscriberdoesnotenterintoanagreementwiththeirDealer
whichidentifiesanannualservicefeepayabletotheirDealer,theManagermaypayanannualdealerservicefeewhichthe
Manager will negotiate with such Dealer and which will be paid directly by the Manager.
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RISK FACTORS

General

AninvestmentintheOfferedSharesofferedhereunderinvolvessignificantrisksduetothenatureoftheCorporation’s
business.Subscribersshouldcarefullyreviewthefollowingfactors,togetherwiththeotherinformationcontainedinthis
Offering Memorandum, before making an investment decision.

Thisisaspeculative offering. The purchase of Offered Sharesinvolves anumber of risks and is suitable only for
Subscriberswhoareawareoftherisksinherentintherealestateindustryandwhohavetheabilityandwillingnessto
accepttheriskoflossoftheirinvestedcapitalandwhohavenoimmediateneedforliquidity. Thereisnoassuranceof
any return on a Subscriber’s investment.

Subscribersshouldconsultwiththeirownindependentprofessionallegal,tax,investmentandfinancialadvisors
beforepurchasingOfferedShares,todeterminetheappropriatenessofthisinvestmentinrelationtotheirfinancialand
investment objectives and in relation to the tax consequences of any such investment.

TheproceedsoftheOfferingmaynotbesufficienttoaccomplishalltheCorporation’'sproposedobjectives.Inaddition
tothefactorssetforthelsewhereinthisOfferingMemorandum,Subscribersshouldconsiderthefollowingrisksbefore
purchasingOfferedShares.Anyoralltheserisks,orotherunidentifiedrisks,mayhaveamaterialadverseeffectonthe
Corporation’s business and/or the return to the Subscribers.

Investment Risk
Risk that are specific to the Offered Shares being offered under this Offering include the following:

No Market for Offered Shares and Restrictions on Transfer - The Offered Shares are not traded on any stock
exchange.AsthereisnomarketfortheOfferedSharesandtheOfferedSharesaresubjecttoresalerestrictionsunder
securitieslegislation,aSubscriberwillnotbeabletotransferhisorherinvestmentorwithdrawhisorhercapitalat
will. TheOfferedSharesarealsosubjecttorestrictionsontransferundertheCorporation’sconstatingdocuments.An
SubscribermayneverbeabletosellhisOfferedSharesandrecoveranypartofhisorherinvestment.Accordingly,
aninvestment in Offered Shares should only be considered by Subscribers who do not require liquidity. See
“Resale Restrictions.”

LackofSeparatelLegal Counsel—The Subscribers,asagroup, havenotbeenrepresentedbyseparatecounsel.
NeithercounselfortheCorporationnorcounselfortheManagerspurporttohaveactedfortheSubscribersnortohave
conducted any investigation or review on their behalf.

RetractionLiquidity—TheOfferedSharesareretractable,meaningthatSubscribershavetherighttorequirethe
Corporationtoredeemthem,uponappropriateadvancenoticefromtheSubscribertotheCorporation.Theretraction
timingsaremeasuredfromthedateonwhichtheSubscriberisissuedthe OfferedSharestothedateonwhichthe
SubscriberisentitledtorequestredemptionbytheCorporation.lftheSubscriberdoesnotprovidetheCorporationwith
theappropriatenoticeofretraction,therightofretractionissuspendeduntilanadditionaltimeperiodhaselapsed.See
“DescriptionofOfferedSecurities-TermsofSecurities.'RetractionandredemptionoftheOfferedSharesaresubject
totheCorporationmaintainingitsstatusasaMICasdefinedbytheTaxAct,allasdeterminedsolelybytheManagers.
Accordingly, thisinvestmentmaybeunsuitableforthoseprospectiveSubscriberswhorequiregreaterliquidity.

NoGuarantees—ThereisnoassurancethattheCorporationwillbeabletopaydividendsattheleveltargetedbythe
Corporation.ThefundsavailablefordistributiontoOfferedShareholderswillvaryaccordingtomanyfactors,notably
theinterestandprincipalpaymentsreceivedinrespectofmortgageloansheldbytheCorporation.Thedividendswhich
SubscribersmaybeentitledtoreceivearenotcumulativeandtheDirectorshavethesolediscretionastowhetheror
notanysuchdividendsare paid.Therefore, thereisnoguarantee thatany dividends will be paid to the Offered
Shareholders.
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AlthoughmortgageloansmadebytheCorporationarecarefullyselected,therecanbenoassurancethatsuchloanswill
haveaguaranteedrateofreturntotheCorporationorthatlosseswillnotbesufferedononeormoreloans.Moreover,
atanypointintime,theinterestratesbeingchargedformortgagesarereflectiveofthegenerallevelofinterestrates
and,asinterestratesfluctuate,itisexpectedthattheaggregateyieldonmortgageinvestmentswillalsochange.lnthe
eventthatadditionalsecurityisgivenbytheborrowerorthatathirdpartyguaranteesthemortgagor’sobligations,there
isnoassurancethatsuchadditionalsecurityorguaranteewillbesufficienttomaketheCorporationwholeifandwhen
resortistobehadthereto.AlthoughtheCorporationwillendeavortomaintainadiversifiedportfolio,thecomposition
oftheCorporation'sinvestmentportfoliomayvarywidelyfromtimetotimeandmaybeconcentratedbytypeofsecurity,
industryorgeography,resultingintheCorporation’sportfoliobeinglessdiversifiedthananticipated.Thereisno
assurance that the Corporation’s mortgage portfolio will be profitable.

NoReviewbySecuritiesRegulatoryAuthorities—TheOfferingconstitutesaprivateofferingofthe OfferedShares
bytheCorporationonlyinthosejurisdictionswhereandtothosepersonstowhom,theymaybelawfullyofferedforsale
underexemptionsinsecuritieslegislation.NosecuritiescommissionorsimilarregulatoryauthorityinCanadaorinany
other jurisdiction has passed on the merits of the securities offered hereunder.

Asaresult,aninvestmentinthe Corporationisappropriate only for Subscribers who have a capacity toabsorb
alossofalltheirinvestmentand who canwithstand the effect of dividends not being paidinany period oratall.

AbsenceofManagementRights—InassessingtherisksandrewardsofaninvestmentinOfferedShares,Subscribers
shouldappreciatetheyarerelyingsolelyonthegoodfaith judgmentandabilityofthedirectors,officersandemployees
oftheCorporationandtheManagerstomakeappropriatedecisionswithrespecttothemanagementoftheCorporation,
andthattheywillbeboundbythedecisionsoftheCorporation'sandtheManagers'directors,officersandemployees.It
wouldbeinappropriateforSubscribersunwillingtorelyontheseindividualstothisextenttopurchaseOfferedShares.

Leverage—TheCorporationmayfromtimetotimeborrowunderloanswithCanadiancharteredbanksandothers.
See"CapitalStructure-LongTermDebtSecurities.’Anysuchborrowingsaddleveragetotheinvestmentsmadeby
theCorporation.Theobligationsundersuchloansmaybesecured,andwhiletheadditionofleveragehasthepotential
toenhancereturns,italsoinvolvesadditionalrisks.Therecanbenoassurancethattheleveragingemployedbythe
Corporationwillenhancereturns,andtotheextentthatsecuredlendersrealizeontheirrespectivecollateral,theywill
haverighttoreceivedistributionsinprioritytotheCorporationinadditiontotherighttoseizemortgageassets.

PandemicOutbreak—OnMarch 11,2020, theWorld Health Organizationrecognized the outbreakof COVID-19asa
pandemic.TheCOVID-19pandemiccontinuestonegativelyimpacttheglobaleconomy,disruptglobalsupplychainsandcreate
significanteconomicuncertaintyanddisruptionoffinancialmarkets.Emergencymeasuresbeingenactedbygovernments
worldwidetocontainthespreadofthevirus,includingtheimplementationoftravelbans,self-imposedquarantineperiods,
self-isolation,physicalandsocialdistancingandtheclosureofnon-essentialbusinesses,arecausingmaterialdisruptionto
businessesinCanadaandgloballywhichhasresultedinanuncertainandchallengingeconomicenvironment.Globaldebt
andequitycapitalmarketshaveexperiencedsignificantvolatilityandweakness.Governmentsandcentralbankshavereacted
withsignificantmonetaryandfiscalinterventionsdesignedtostabilizeeconomicconditions.Inaddition,severedisruption
andinstabilityintheglobalfinancialmarketsandcontinueddeteriorationsincreditandfinancingconditionsmayincreasethe
likelihoodoflitigation,increasethecostoforlimitorrestrictourabilitytoaccessdebtandequitycapitalorothersourcesof
fundingonfavorableterms,oratall,increasecompetition, resultinreductionsinourworkforce,causeustofurtherreduceour
capitalspendorotherwisedisruptourbusinessormakeitmoredifficulttoimplementourstrategicplans.Sustainedadverse
effectsmayalsopreventusfromsatisfyingdebtfinancialcovenants.Asanemergingrisk,theduration,scopeandimpactofthe
ongoingCOVID-19pandemicisunknownatthistime,asistheefficacyofthegovernmentandcentralbankinterventionsandthe
paceofanysubsequentrecoveryandeconomicnormalization.GiventherapidandevolvingnatureoftheCOVID-19pandemic,
anyestimateofthelengthandseverityofthesedevelopmentsisthereforesubjecttosignificantuncertainty,andaccordinglyit
ischallengingfortheCorporationtoestimateorquantifytheextenttowhichtheCOVID-19pandemicmay,directlyorindirectly,
affecttheCorporation’sbusinessactivities,financialcondition,cashflows, profitability,prospectsandresultsofoperationsin
futureperiods.WhiletheimpactoftheCOVID-19pandemichascreatedshort-termuncertainty,theCorporationstillexpectsto
continue to grow in the medium to long term once the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has subsided.
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Issuer Risk

Risk that are specific to the Corporation and the Managers include the following:

MICTaxDesignation-TheDirectorsoftheCorporationwillusetheirbesteffortstoensuretheCorporationqualifies
atalltimesasaMICpursuanttotheTaxAct.Tothatend,theDirectorshavethediscretiontorejectanyapplications
forparticipationintheDRIP(adividendreinvestmentplan)orsharesubscriptions,transfers,redemptionsorretractions
where,intheviewofthedirectors,suchactswouldresultintheCorporationfailingtomeettherequirementsofaMIC
under the Tax Act.

AsaCorporationqualifiedasaMIC,theCorporationmaydeducttaxabledividendsitpaysfromitsincomeandthe
normalgrossupanddividendtaxcreditruleswillnotapplytodividendspaidbytheCorporationontheOfferedShares.
Rather,thedividendswillbetaxableinthehandsofOfferedShareholdersasiftheyhadreceivedaninterestpaymenton
abondissuedbytheCorporation.IfforanyreasontheCorporationfailstomaintainitsMICqualificationinaparticular
year,thedividendspaidbytheCorporationontheOfferedShareswouldceasetobedeductiblefromtheincomeofthe
CorporationforthatyearandthedividendsitpaysontheOfferedShareswouldbesubjecttothenormalgrossupand
dividendtaxcreditrulestotheextentapplicable.Inaddition,theOfferedSharesmightceasetobequalifiedinvestments
fortrustsgovernedbyRRSPs,RRIFs, deferred profitsharing plans, RESPs,RDSPsandTFSAs, withtheeffectthata
penaltytaxwouldbepayablebytheSubscriber.Therecanbenoassurance,theCorporationwillbeabletomeet
the Tax Act’s MIC qualifications at all relevant times.

Absence of Voting Rights - The Offered Shares being sold under this Offering do not carry voting rights, and
consequentlyaSubscriber’sinvestmentinOfferedSharesdoesnotcarrywithitanyrighttotakepartinthecontrolor
managementoftheCorporation’sbusiness,includingtheelectionofdirectors.Inassessingtherisksandrewardsof
aninvestmentinOfferedShares,potentialSubscribersshouldappreciatethattheyarerelyingsolelyonthegoodfaith,
judgmentandabilityofthedirectors,officersandemployeesoftheCorporation,andtheManagerstomakeappropriate
decisionswithrespecttothemanagementoftheCorporation,andthattheywillbeboundbythedecisionsofthe
Corporation’s, and the Managers' directors, officers and employees.

Dilution-ThenumberofOfferedSharestheCorporationisauthorizedtoissueisunlimitedandthedirectorshave
thesolediscretiontoissueadditional OfferedShares.Inadditiontoalternatefinancingsources, theCorporationmay
conductfutureofferingsofOfferedSharesinordertoraisethefundsrequiredwhichcouldresultinadilutionofthe
interestsoftheSubscribersintheCorporation.AnyissuanceofOfferedSharesmayhaveadilutiveeffectonexisting
Shareholders.Inaddition,underthetermsoftheArticlesoftheCorporation,theOffered Shareholdersshallnotbe
entitledtovoteortodissentrightsasprescribedbytheOBCAinrespectof,anyproposaltoamendthearticlesofthe
Corporation to:

a. increaseordecreaseanymaximumnumberofauthorizedOfferedShares,orincreaseanymaximumnumberof
authorizedsharesofsuchclassorserieshavingrightsorprivilegesequalorsuperiortotheOfferedShares;

b. effect an exchange, reclassification or cancellation of the Offered Shares; or

c. createanewclassorseriesofsharesinferior,equalorsuperiortotheOfferedSharesandnoseparateclass
voteshallberequiredundertheActinrespectoftheamendment,andtheOfferedShareholdersshallhaveno
dissenting rights in respect thereof.

Conflictsofinterest—Conflictsofinterestmayexist,andothersmayarise,betweenandamongSubscribersandthe
directorsandofficersoftheManagersandtheCorporationandtheirassociatesandaffiliates.Thereisnoassurance
thatanyconflictsofinterestthatmayarisewillberesolvedinamannermostfavorabletoSubscribers.Persons
consideringapurchaseoftheOfferedSharespursuanttothisOfferingmustrelyonthejudgmentandgoodfaithof
thedirectors,officersandemployeesoftheManagersandtheCorporationinresolvingsuchconflictsofinterestas
mayarise.Theseindividualsarethesamepeople.TheCorporationanditsshareholdersaredependentinlargepart
upontheexperienceandgoodfaithoftheManagers.TheManagersareentitledtoanddoactinasimilarcapacity
forothercompanieswhoseinvestmentcriteriamaybesimilartothoseoftheCorporation.Assuch, thereisariskthe
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ManagerswillnotbeabletooriginatesufficientsuitableinvestmentopportunitiestokeeptheCorporation'sfunds
fullyinvested.Also,thedirectorsandofficersoftheManagersareemployedbyoractinothercapacitiesforother
companies involved in mortgage and lending activities.

RelianceontheManagersandThirdParties-InaccordancewiththetermsoftheManagementAgreement,the
ManagershavesignificantresponsibilityforassistingtheCorporationinconductingitsaffairs.Anyinabilityofthe
ManagerstoperformcompetentlyoronatimelybasiscouldnegativelyaffecttheCorporation.TheCorporationis
exposedtoadversedevelopmentsinthebusinessandaffairsoftheManagersandtoitsmanagementandfinancial
strength.TheoperationsoftheCorporationandtheManagersarehighlydependentuponthecontinuedsupport
andparticipationoftheirkeypersonnel.Thelossoftheirservicesmaymateriallyaffectthetimingortheabilityof
theCorporationtoimplementitsbusinessplan.lnordertogrowthemortgageportfolio,theManagersandthe
Corporationmayneedtoretainadditionalstaffandmayberequiredtoimproveexistingsystemsandcontrols.There
isnoassurancethattheCorporationwillmanageitsgrowtheffectivelyorthattheManagerswilladjustitsstaffingor
systemsandcontrolsappropriately.TotheextentthattheCorporationortheManagersdoesnotdoso,themortgage
portfolio and the returns of the Corporation may be negatively affected.

FutureOperationsandPossibleNeedforAdditionalFunds-TheCorporationrequiressignificantfundstocarry
outitsbusinessplan.IntheeventtheCorporationisunabletoraisesufficientfundsbythisOfferingand/orfutureand/
orotherdebtorequityfinancing,theCorporationmayhaveinsufficientfundsavailabletoittoimplementitsbusiness
plan,andSubscribersmayreceivenoreturnontheirOfferedShares.Certainuninsurableoruninsuredeventsmay
alsooccurwhichcansubstantiallyreducetheabilityoftheCorporationtocarryonbusinessinaprofitablemanner,
includingnaturalorman-madedisasters.TheCorporationanticipatesthatasubstantialportionofthenetproceeds
ofthisOfferingwillbeexpendedbytheCorporationininvestinginresidentialmortgages,andalsoanticipatesthat
thenetproceedsoftheOfferingandanticipatedcashflowfromoperatingrevenueswillbesufficienttocarryout
theCorporation'sbusinessplan.Therecanbenoassurances,however,thattheCorporationwillgeneratesufficient
cashflowfromoperationsorthatitwillnotencounterunexpectedcostsinconnectionwithimplementingitsbusiness
plan,andasaconsequencetherecanbenoassurancesthattheCorporationwillnotrequireadditionalfinancing.
TheCorporationhasnocurrentarrangementswithrespecttoanyotheradditionalfinancing,andtherecanbeno
assurancethatanysuchadditionalfinancingcanbeobtainedontermsacceptabletotheCorporation,oratall.Failure
toobtainadditionalfinancingwouldlikelyhaveasubstantialmaterialadverseeffectontheCorporation.Moreover,
intheeventtheCorporationweretoobtainsuchadditionalfinancing,itcouldhaveadilutiveeffectonSubscribers’
participation in the revenues generated through the Corporation’s operations.

LitigationRisk-TheCorporationmay,fromtimetotime,becomeinvolvedinlegalproceedingsinthecourseofits
business.Thecostsoflitigationandsettlementcanbesubstantialandthereisnoassurancethatsuchcostswillbe
recoveredinwholeoratall.Duringlitigation,theCorporationisnotreceivingpaymentsofinterestonamortgageloan
thatisthesubjectoflitigation,therebyimpactingcashflows.Theunfavorableresolutionofanylegalproceedingscould
haveanadverseeffectontheCorporationanditsfinancialpositionandresultsofoperationsthatcouldbematerial.

Industry Risk

TherearealsorisksfacedbytheCorporationbecauseoftheindustryinwhichitoperates.Realestateinvestment
issubjecttosignificantuncertaintiesdue,amongotherfactors,touncertaincostsofconstruction,developmentand
financing,uncertaintyastotheabilitytoobtainrequiredlicenses,permitsandapprovals,andfluctuatingdemandfor
developedrealestate.TheanticipatedhigherreturnsassociatedwiththeCorporation'smortgageloansreflectthe
greaterrisksinvolvedinmakingthesetypesofloansascomparedtolong-termconventionalmortgageloans.

Theyieldsonrealestateinvestments,includingmortgages,dependonmanyfactorsincludingeconomicconditionsand
prevailinginterestrates,thelevelofriskassumed,conditionsintherealestateindustry,opportunitiesforothertypesof
investments,legislation,governmentalregulationandtaxlaws.TheCorporationcannotpredicttheeffectsuchfactors
will have on its operations.
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TheCorporation'sinvestmentsinmortgageloanswillbesecuredbyrealestate.Allrealpropertyinvestmentsaresubject
to elements of risk. In addition, prospective Subscribers should take note of the following:

CompetitionandAvailabilityofInvestments-TheearningsoftheCorporationdependontheCorporation’sability,
withtheassistanceoftheManagers,tolocatesuitableopportunitiesfortheinvestmentandreinvestmentofthe
Corporation'sfundsandontheyieldsavailablefromtimetotimeonmortgagesandotherinvestments.Theindustryin
whichtheCorporationoperatesissubjecttoawidevarietyofcompetitionfrompublicandprivatebusinesses,many
ofwhomhavegreaterfinancialandtechnicalresourcesthantheCorporation.Aninabilitytofindsuitableinvestments
mayhaveanadverseeffectontheCorporation’sabilitytosustainthelevelofdistributions.Competitorsmayreducethe
interestratestheycharge,resultinginareductionoftheCorporation’sshareofthemarket,reducedinterestrateson
loans, and reduced profit margins.

EnvironmentalLiabilityofaMortgage-Undervariouslaws,theCorporationcouldbecomeliableforthecostsof
effectingremedialworknecessitatedbytherelease,depositorpresenceofcertainmaterials,includinghazardousor
toxicsubstancesandwastes,wheretheCorporationhasexerciseditsrightofre-entryorforeclosureorhasotherwise
assumedthecontrol,occupationormanagementoftheproperty.AlthoughtheCorporationobtainsanevaluationof
thepropertytobesubjecttoamortgageintheformofaphaselenvironmentalauditwhererequired,environmental
legislationandpolicieshavebecomeanincreasinglyimportantfeatureofpropertyownershipandmanagement
inrecentyears.Undervariouslaws,theCorporationcouldbecomeliableforthecostsofeffectingremedialwork
necessitatedbytherelease,depositorpresenceofcertainmaterials,includinghazardousortoxicsubstancesand
wastes at or from a property, or disposed of at another location.

Investmentsnotinsured-NeithertheCorporationnortheManagersisamemberoftheCanadaDepositinsurance
CorporationandtheOfferedSharesofferedhereunderarethereforenotinsuredagainstlossthroughtheCanada
DepositlnsuranceCorporation.Moreover,mortgagesheldbytheCorporationinitscapacityarenotinsuredthroughthe
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation or otherwise.

Changesin Regulatory Regime -There can be no assurances that certain laws applicable to the Corporation,
including,withoutlimitation,mortgagebrokeragelawsandsecuritieslegislation,willnotchangeinamannerthatwill
adversely affect the Corporation.

RenewalofMortgages—Therecanbenoassurancesthatanyofthemortgagescomprisingthemortgageportfolio
fromtimetotimecanorwillberenewedatthesameinterestratesandterms,orinthesameamountsasarecurrently
ineffect.Withrespecttoeachmortgagecomprisingthemortgageportfolio,itispossiblethatthemortgagor,the
mortgageeorboth,willnotelecttorenewsuchmortgage.lnaddition,ifthemortgagesinthemortgageportfolio
arerenewed,theprincipalbalanceofsuchrenewals,theinterestratesandtheothertermsandconditionsofsuch
mortgageswill be subject to negotiations between the mortgagorsandthe Managersat the time of renewal.

LiquidityRisk—Investmentsinmortgagesarerelativelyilliquid.ThiswilltendtolimittheCorporation’sabilitytovary
itsmortgageportfoliopromptlyinresponsetochangingeconomicorinvestmentconditions.Thereisariskthatthe
Corporationwillbeunabletomeetcommitmentsassociatedwithfinancialinstruments.TheCorporationcontrolsliquidity
risksthroughcashflowprojectionsusedtoforecastfundingrequirementsonmortgageproposals,whichinclude
anticipatedredemptionofOfferedShares.TheCorporationcommitstomortgageinvestmentsonlyonanassuredcash
availability basis.

PriorityOverSecurity-Financialchargesforconstructionandotherfinancingfundedbyconventionalthird party
lendersmayrankinprioritytothemortgagesregisteredinfavoroftheCorporation.Intheeventofdefaultbythe
mortgagorunderanypriorfinancialcharge,theCorporationmaynotrecoveranyorallofthemoniesadvancedunder
foreclosure proceedings.

InvestmentConcentration-AstheCorporationmayhaveonlyoneoralimitednumberofmortgageinvestments, it
issusceptibletoadversemarketconditionssuchasbusinesslayoffsordownsizing,industryslowdowns,relocations
ofbusinesses,changingdemographicsandotherfactors.Demandforresidentialandcommercialmortgagescouldbe
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adverselyaffectedbyweaknessinthenational,regionalandlocaleconomies,changesinsupplyof,ordemandfor,
similarorcompetingsourcesofmortgagemoney.Totheextentthatanyoftheseconditionsoccur,theyarelikelyto
affectthedemandforandtheinterestrate,whichcouldcauseadecreaseintheinterestrevenuetotheCorporation.
AnymortgagedefaultcouldimpairtheCorporation’sabilitytopaydividendstoitsOfferedShareholdersorcouldrestrict
its ability to redeploy capital.

SensitivitytolnterestRates-ItisanticipatedthatthevalueoftheCorporation'sinvestmentportfolioatanygiventime
maybeaffectedbythelevelofinterestratesprevailingatsuchtime.TheCorporation’sincomewillconsistprimarilyof
interestpaymentsonthemortgagescomprisingtheCorporation’sinvestmentportfolio.lfthereisadeclineininterest
rates(asmeasuredbytheindicesuponwhichtheinterestratesoftheCorporation'smortgageassetsarebased),the
Corporationmayfinditdifficulttomakeamortgageloanbearingratessufficienttoultimatelyachievethetargeted
paymentofdividendsontheOfferedShares.Therecanbenoassurancethataninterestrateenvironmentinwhich
thereisasignificantdeclineininterestrateswouldnotadverselyaffecttheLimitedPartnership’sbusiness,financial
conditionandresultsofitsoperationswhichinturnwouldresultinanadverseeffectonthedividendstargeted,payable
and/orpaidontheOfferedShares.DuetothetermofthemortgagesmadebytheCorporationandtheinabilityto
accuratelypredicttheextenttowhichtheCorporation'smortgagesmaybeprepaid,itispossiblethattheCorporation
maynotbeabletosufficientlyreduceinterestrateriskassociatedwiththereplacementofsuchmortgagesthroughnew
investmentsinmortgages,therebypotentiallyaffectingadverselytheultimatereturntoholdersofOfferedShares.

MortgagePrepayment-Mortgagescomprisingthemortgageportfoliofromtimetotimepermittheborrowerto
prepaytheprincipalamount.AnyprepaymentbonusorpenaltymaynotfullycompensatetheCorporationforthetotal
amountofthereturnforegonehadthemortgagebeenheldtoterm,andtheCorporationmaynotbeabletoredeploy
the capital at the same interest rate.

PrepaymentofMortgages-TheCorporationmaycommittomakingfuturemortgageinvestmentsinanticipation
ofrepaymentofprincipaloutstandingunderexistingmortgageinvestments.Intheeventthatsuchrepaymentsof
principalarenotmadeincontraventionoftheborrowers'obligations,theCorporationmaybeunabletoadvance
someorallofthefundsrequiredtobeadvancedpursuanttothetermsofitscommitmentsandmayfaceliabilityin
connection with its failure to make such advances.

HigherRiskMortgages-TheCorporationprovidesfinancingtoborrowerswhomaynotmeetfinancingcriteriafor
conventionalmortgagesfrominstitutionalsourcesand,asaresult, theseinvestmentsgenerallyearnahigherrateof
returnthanwhatinstitutionallendersmayreceive.Non-conventionalmortgageinvestmentsalsoattracthigherloan
lossrisk.CreditriskistheriskthatthemortgagorwillfailtodischargetheobligationcausingtheCorporationtoincur
afinancialloss.TheCorporationwilltrytominimizeitscreditriskprimarilybyensuringthatthecollateralvalueofthe
securityfullyprotectsbothfirst,second,andthirdmortgageadvances,thatthereisaviableexitstrategyforeach
loan,andthatloansaremadetoexperienceddevelopersandowners.Inaddition,theCorporationintendstolimitthe
concentrationofriskbydiversifyingitsmortgageportfoliobywayoflocation, propertytype,maximumloanamount
on any one property and maximum loan amount to any one borrower.

Thishigherriskiscompensatedforbyahigherrateofreturn.Thefailureofoneormoreborrowerstomakepayments
accordingtothetermsoftheirloancouldresultintheCorporationexercisingitsrightsasmortgageeand may
adverselyaffecttheCorporation’srateofreturn,whichisdirectlycorrelatedtothereceiptofmortgagepayments.

Defaults-TheCorporation'sincomeandfundsavailablefordistributiontoSubscriberswouldbeadverselyaffected
ifasignificantnumberofborrowerswereunabletopaytheirobligationstotheCorporationoriftheCorporationwas
unabletoinvestitsfundsinmortgagesoneconomicallyfavorableterms.Ondefaultbyaborrower,theCorporation
mayexperiencedelaysinenforcingitsrightsaslenderandmayincursubstantial costsinprotectingitsinvestment.

Ifthereisdefaultonamortgage,itmaybenecessaryfortheCorporation,inordertoprotecttheinvestment,to
engageinforeclosureorsaleproceedings(bypowerofsaleorotherwise)andtomakefurtheroutlaystocompletean
unfinishedprojectortomaintainpriorencumbrancesingoodstanding.Inthosecases,itispossiblethetotalamount
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recovered by the Corporation may be less than the total investment, resulting in loss to the Corporation.

Also,therecoveryofaportionoftheCorporation’sassets,i.e.thepropertyputupascollateralbythedefaulting
mortgagor,wouldbetiedupforaperiodoftime,divertingresourcesawayfromthefundingofnewinvestments.
LegalfeesandothercostsincurredbytheCorporationinenforcingitsrightsasmortgageeagainstadefaulting
borrowerarebornebytheCorporation.Althoughthesefeesandcostsareoftenrecoverablefromtheborrower
directlyorthroughthesaleofthemortgagedpropertybypowerofsaleorotherwise, thereisnoassurancethat
theywillberecoveredandthereforewillresultinlowerdistributionspayabletotheCorporationandinturnreduced
returnstoholdersofOfferedShares.Duetofluctuationsinthehousingmarketandtheeconomygenerally,thereis
apossibilitythathistoricalloandefaultratesmayincreaseandthatinanypowerofsale,theCorporationcouldlose
asubstantialportionoftheprincipalamountloanedtotheborrower.LoanlossreducestheCorporation’savailable
cashandinturnresultinreducedreturnstoholdersofOfferedShares.Excessiveloanlosscouldultimatelyresultin
theCorporationbeingunabletopaydividends.Excessiveloanlosscouldalsoultimatelyresultinthe Corporation
sustaininganannualnetloss, withtheresultbeing thatthe value of the OfferedSharescouldbelessthanthe
$1.00subscriptionprice.Insuchcircumstances,theRetractionPayment,netofanyaccrueddividenddistributions,
wouldbelessthan$1.00.SuchaneventualitycouldalsoimpacttheCorporation’sabilitytohonorretractionrequests,
depending upon the timing of such requests.

TheCorporationmay,fromtimetotime,haveoneormoreimpairedloansinitsportfolio.TheCorporationdefines
loansasbeingimpairedwherefullrecoveryisconsideredindoubtbasedonacurrentevaluationofthesecurityheld
and for which write-downs have been taken or specific loss provisions established.

ChangesinPropertyValues-TheCorporation'smortgageloanswillbesecuredbyrealestate, thevalueofwhich
canfluctuate.Thevalueofrealestateisaffectedbygeneraleconomicconditions,localrealestatemarkets, the
attractivenessofthepropertytotenantswhereapplicable,competitionfromotheravailableproperties, fluctuations
inoccupancyrates,operatingexpensesandotherfactors.Thevalueofincome-producingrealpropertymayalso
dependonthecreditworthinessandfinancialstabilityoftheborrowersand/orthetenants.Whileindependent
appraisalsarerequiredbeforetheCorporationmaymakeanymortgageinvestment,theappraisedvalues,even
wherereportedonan‘“asis”basis,arenotnecessarilyreflectiveofthemarketvalueoftheunderlyingreal property,
whichmayfluctuate.lnaddition,theappraisedvaluesreportedinindependentappraisalsmaybesubjecttocertain
conditions,includingthecompletion,rehabilitationormakingofleaseholdimprovementsontherealproperty
providingsecurityfortheloan.Therecanbenoassurancethattheseconditionswillbesatisfiedand,ifandtothe
extenttheyarenotsatisfied, theloanamountmayprovetoexceedthevalueoftheunderlyingrealpropertythus
resultinginaloanlossifthepropertymustbesoldtoremedyamortgagedefaultandtherebyaffectingadverselythe
returntoholdersofOfferedShares.Evenifsuchconditionsaresatisfied,theappraisedvaluemaynotnecessarily
reflect the market value of the real property at the time the conditions are satisfied.

UseoflLeverage-TheCorporationhastheoptiontoincurindebtednesssecuredbytheCorporation’sassetsto
purchaseormakemortgageinvestmentsbuttheCanadianfinancialmarketplacehasalimitednumberoffinancial
institutionsthatprovidecredittoentitiessuchastheCorporation.Therecanbenoassurancesuchastrategywill
enhancereturns,andinfact,useofthisstrategycouldadverselyaffectreturns.Useofleveragethroughborrowing
(andtheassignmentofmortgagesascollateral)canalsoexposetheCorporationtoadditionallossesofcapital. The
Corporationintendstolimititsexposuretothepotentialscarcityofsuchfundsbycontinuouslyseekingoutnew
sourcesofcredit.Intheeventofawind-upoftheCorporation,theindebtednessincurredbytheCorporationwillrank
in priority to the outstanding Offered Shares.

ChangesintheEconomyandCreditMarkets—Historically,globalfinancialmarketshavebeensubjecttoperiods
ofvolatilityanduncertainty,drivenbyawiderangeoffactorsatanygivenpointintime.Thesefactorsmayimpact
theabilityoftheCorporationtomaintainafundingfacilitywitharm’slengththirdpartyinstitutionsontermsfavorable
totheCorporation.Volatilityinfinancialmarketsmayalsobereflectedinvolatilityinthemarketvalueofthereal
property underlying the mortgage portfolio.
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FORTHEAFORESAIDREASONS AND OTHERS NOTSETFORTHHEREIN, THEOFFERED SHARESINVOLVEA
HIGH DEGREE OF RISK. ANY PERSON CONSIDERINGTHE PURCHASE OF THE OFFERED SHARES SHOULD
BEAWAREOFTHESEAND OTHERFACTORSSETFORTHINTHISOFFERINGMEMORANDUMAND SHOULD
CONSULTWITHHIS/HERLEGAL, TAXANDFINANCIALADVISORSPRIORTOMAKINGANINVESTMENTINTHE
OFFEREDSHARES.THEOFFEREDSHARESSHOULDONLYBEPURCHASEDBYPERSONSWHOCANAFFORD
TO LOSETHEIR TOTAL INVESTMENT.
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REPORTING OBLIGATIONS

TheCorporationisnotsubjecttocontinuousreportinganddisclosureobligationswhichthesecuritieslegislationinany
provincewouldrequireofa‘reportingissuer”asdefinedundersecuritieslegislationandthereisthereforenorequirement
thattheCorporationmakedisclosureofitsaffairs,including,withoutlimitation,thepromptnotificationofmaterialchanges
bywayofpressreleasesandformalfilingsorthepreparationofquarterlyunauditedfinancialstatementsandannual
audited financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

TheCorporationisrequiredundersecuritieslegislationtoforwardtoholdersofOfferedSharesresidentinAlberta,
OntarioandSaskatchewanthatpurchasedOfferedSharesundertheOfferingMemorandumExemption,auditedannual
financialstatementsanddisclosureregardingtheuseoftheaggregategrossproceedsraisedbytheCorporationunder
theOfferingMemorandumExemptionwithin 120daysfollowingtheendofeachfiscalyearoftheCorporation.The
CorporationisalsorequiredtoforwardtoholdersofOfferedSharesresidentinAlberta,OntarioandSaskatchewanthat
purchasedOfferedSharesundertheOfferingMemorandumExemptionnoticeofanychangeinfinancialyearincluding
furtherinformationresectingthatchangeasprescribedundersecuritieslegislationwithinthetimelimitsprescribedunder
securities legislation.

TheCorporationisalsorequiredtoprovidenoticetoholdersofOfferedSharesresidentinOntario, thatpurchasedOffered
Shares under the Offering Memorandum Exemption within ten (10) days of the occurrence of:

a. adiscontinuation of the Corporation’s business;
b. achange in the Corporation’s industry; or

¢. achange of control of the Corporation.

TheCorporationwillprovideelectronictaxslipsbyFebruary28followingtheendofthecalendaryeartowhichtheyrefer
toforallincometaxreportinginformationnecessarytoenableeachOfferedShareholdertofileaCanadianfederalincome
taxreturnwithrespecttoitsparticipationintheCorporationinsuchfiscalyear,includingT5'sforinvestment,asapplicable.

TheCorporationissubjecttocertainreportingrequirementundercorporatelaw,forexample,theCorporationisrequired
under the OBCA to send a copy of its annual financial statements to its shareholders.

Underthe terms of the Management Agreement, the Managers will provide for the preparation of accounting,
managementand otherfinancial reports as wellasthe keepingand maintaining of the booksandrecords of the
Corporation.TheBoardhasappointedHarris&Partners(8920WoodbineAve.Suite300MarkhamONL3R9W9)toactas
theauditorsoftheCorporationandtoreporttoshareholderswithrespecttothefinancialstatementsoftheCorporationas
at the end of, and for, each fiscal year.

SincewearenotareportingissuerasdefinedinsecuritieslegislationandourOfferedSharesarenotpubliclytraded,
nocorporateorsecuritiesinformationaboutusisavailablefromagovernment,regulatoryauthority,stockexchange
orquotationandtradereportingsystem.SomesecuritiesinformationaboutthisOfferingandpreviousofferingsofthe
CorporationisavailablefromtheOntarioSecuritiesCommissionatwww.osc.gov.on.ca.;BritishColumbiaSecurities
Commission https://www.bcsc.bc.ca/ and SEDAR at https://www.sedar.com.

Furtherinformationaboutusispostedandavailableforreviewbyinvestorsathttps://cmimic.ca/orfromtheCorporationat
the contact information set out on the face page of this Offering Memorandum.
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RESALE RESTRICTIONS

General Statement

Pursuanttosecuritieslegislation,theOfferedSharesaresubjecttoanumberofresalerestrictions,includingarestriction
ontrading.Untiltherestrictionontradingexpires,youwillnotbeabletotradetheOfferedSharesunlessyoucomply
with an exemption from the prospectus and registration requirements under securities legislation.

Restricted Period

Unlesspermittedundersecuritieslegislation,inalljurisdictionsinCanadaotherthanManitoba,youcannottradethe
OfferedSharesbeforethedatethatisfourmonthsandadayafterthedatetheCorporationbecomesa“reporting
issuer”asdefinedundersecuritieslegislationinanyprovinceorterritoryofCanada.TheCorporationwillnotbecomea
reportingissueruponcompletionofthisOfferinganddoesnotcurrentlyanticipateeverbecomingareportingissuer.

The resale restriction on the securities may therefore never expire. Subscribers are advised to seek legal
advice prior to any resale of the Offered Shares.

Manitoba Resale Restrictions

Unlesspermittedundersecuritieslegislation,youmustnottradetheShareswithoutthepriorwrittenconsentofthe
regulator in Manitoba unless:

a. theCorporationhasfiledaprospectuswiththeregulatorinManitobawithrespecttothesecuritiesyouhave
purchased and the regulator in Manitoba has issued a receipt for that prospectus; or

b. youhaveheldthesecuritiesforatleast12months.TheregulatorinManitobawillconsenttoyourtradeifthe
regulator is of the opinion that to do so is not prejudicial to the public interest.
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PURCHASERS'RIGHTS OF ACTION
FOR DAMAGES OR RESCISSION

If you purchase these securities, you will have certain rights, some of which are described below.

ThefollowingsummariesaresubjecttoanyexpressprovisionsofthesecuritieslegislationofeachSellingJurisdiction.
Pleaserefertothatsecuritieslegislationforthecompletetextofsuchprovisions.Therightsofactiondescribedherein
arein addition to and without derogation from any other right or remedy that a Subscriber may have at law.

For complete information about your rights, you should consult a lawyer.
Two-Day Cancellation Right

Youcancancelyouragreementtopurchasethesesecurities.Todoso,youmustsendanoticetousbymidnightonthe
2nd business day after you sign the agreement to buy the securities.

Statutory Rights of Action in the Event of a Misrepresentation

AnyOfferingMemorandummarketingmaterialsrelatedtothisOfferingwhicharedeliveredormadereasonably
availabletoapurchaserbeforetheclosingofthatpurchaser’ssubscriptionforOffered Sharesaredeemedtobe
incorporatedbyreferenceinthisOfferingMemorandum.Asusedherein,’OfferingMemorandummarketingmaterials”
has the same meaning as “OM marketing materials” has in NI 45- 106.

Themarketingmaterialsdeliveredormadereasonablyavailabletoaprospectivepurchaserbeforethetermination
ofthedistribution,relatedtoeachdistributionunderthisOfferingMemorandum,areincorporatedbyreferencein
thisOfferingMemorandum.TheCorporationreservestherighttomodifythesemarketingmaterialsinanonmaterial
waywithoutre-deliveringorwithoutmakingreasonablyavailablesuchmodifiedmarketingmaterialstoaprospective
purchaser.

SecuritieslegislationincertainoftheprovincesandterritoriesofCanadaprovidespurchasersorrequirespurchasers
tobeprovidedwitharemedyforrescissionordamageswhereanofferingmemorandumandanyamendment
toit(forthepurposesofthislitem 11,an“OfferingMemorandum”) containaMisrepresentation.Asusedherein,
“Misrepresentation” means:

a. inthecaseofalljurisdictionsexceptQuébec,anuntruestatementofamaterialfact,oranomissiontostatea
materialfactthatisrequiredtobestated,orthatisnecessarytomakeastatementnotmisleadinginthelight
of the circumstances in which it was made; and

b. inthecaseofQuébec,anymisleadinginformationonamaterialfactaswellasanyomissionofamaterialfact.
Theseremedies,ornoticewithrespectthereto,mustbeexercised,ordelivered,asthecasemaybe,bythe
purchaserwithinthetimelimitprescribedbytheapplicablesecuritieslegislation.Eachpurchasershouldreferto
provisionsoftheapplicablesecuritieslegislationfortheparticularsoftheserightsorconsultwithalegaladvisor.

Rights for Subscribers in Ontario

SecuritieslegislationinOntarioprovidespurchasersofOfferedSharespursuanttothisOfferingMemorandumwitha
remedyfordamagesorrescission,orinboth,inadditiontoanyotherrightstheymayhaveatlaw,wheretheOffering
Memorandumandanyamendmenttoitcontainsa“Misrepresentation”Section130.10oftheSecuritiesAct(Ontario)
andOntarioSecuritiesCommissionRule45-501 providesthateverypurchaserofsecuritiespursuanttoanoffering
memorandumshallhaveastatutoryrightofactionfordamagesorrescissionagainsttheissuerandanysellingsecurity
holder in the event that the offering memorandum contains a Misrepresentation.

Apurchaserwhopurchasessecuritiesofferedbytheofferingmemorandumduringtheperiodofdistributionhas,without
regardtowhetherthepurchaserreliedupontheMisrepresentation,arightofactionfordamagesor,alternatively,while
still the owner of the securities, for rescission against the issuerand any selling security holder provided that:

a. ifthepurchaserexercisesitsrightofrescission,itshallceasetohavearightofactionfordamagesasagainst
the issuer and the selling security holders, if any;
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b. theissuerandthesellingsecurityholders,ifany,willnotbeliableiftheyprovethatthepurchaserpurchased
the securities with knowledge of the Misrepresentation;

c. theissuerandthesellingsecurityholders,ifany,willnotbeliableforalloranyportionofdamagesthatit
provesdonotrepresentthedepreciationinvalueofthesecuritiesasaresultoftheMisrepresentationrelied
upon; and

d. inno case shall the amount recoverable exceed the price at which the securities were offered.
Section 138 of the Securities Act (Ontario) provides that no action shall be commenced to enforce these rights:

a. inthecaseofanactionforrescission,180daysafterthedateofthetransactionthatgaverisetothecauseof
action; or

b. inthe case of an action for damages, the earlier of:

i.  180daysafterthedatethatthepurchaserfirsthadknowledgeofthefactsgivingrisetothecauseofaction;
or

ii. three years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

WherethisOfferingMemorandumisdelivered,butthedistributionismadeinrelianceontheexemptionfromthe
prospectusrequirementscontainedundersection2.30fNI45-106(the"accreditedinvestorexemption”):Therights
referredtoinsection130.10oftheSecuritiesAct(Ontario)donotapplyinrespectofanofferingmemorandum(suchas
thisOfferingMemorandum)deliveredtoaprospectivepurchaserinconnectionwithadistributionmadeinrelianceon
the accredited investor exemption if the prospective purchaser is:

a Canadian financial institution or a Schedule Ill bank (each as defined in NI 45-106);

b. theBusinessDevelopmentBankofCanadaincorporatedundertheBusinessDevelopmentBankofCanada
Act (Canada); or

¢. asubsidiaryofanypersonreferredtoinparagraphs(a)and(b),ifthepersonownsallofthevotingsecuritiesof
thesubsidiary,exceptthevotingsecuritiesrequiredbylawtobeownedbydirectorsofthatsubsidiary.

Rights of Subscribers in British Columbia and Alberta

ApurchaserofOfferedSharespursuanttothisOfferingMemorandumwhoisaresidentin AlbertaorBritishColumbia
has,inadditiontoanyotherrightsthesubscribermayhaveatlaw,arightofactionfordamagesorrescissionagainstthe
CorporationifthisOfferingMemorandum,togetherwithanyamendmentshereto,containsaMisrepresentation.Apurchaser
hasadditionalstatutoryrightsofactionfordamagesagainsteverydirectoroftheCorporationatthedateofthisOfferingor
amendmentheretoandeverypersonorcompanywhosignedthisOfferingMemorandumoramendmenthereto.

IfthisOfferingMemorandumoranyamendmentheretocontainsaMisrepresentation,whichwasaMisrepresentationatthe
timetheOfferedShareswerepurchased,thepurchaserwillbedeemedtohavereliedupontheMisrepresentationandwiill,
asprovidedbelow,havearightofactionagainsttheCorporationfordamagesoralternatively,ifstilltheownerofanyofthe
OfferedSharespurchasedbythatsubscriber,forrescission,inwhichcase,ifthepurchaserelectstoexercisetherightof
rescission, the purchaser will have no right of action for damages against the Corporation, provided that:

a. nopersonorcompanywillbeliableifitprovesthatthepurchaserpurchasedthesecuritieswithknowledgeof
the misrepresentation;

b. inthecaseofanactionfordamages,thedefendantwillnotbeliableforalloranyportionofthedamagesthat
itprovesdonotrepresentthedepreciationinvalueofthesecuritiesasaresultofthemisrepresentation;

¢. innocasewilltheamountrecoverableinanyactionexceedthepriceatwhichthesecuritieswerepurchased
by the purchaser under this Offering Memorandum; and

d. inthecaseofapurchaserresidentinAlberta,nopersonorcompany,otherthantheCorporation,willbeliable
ifsuchpersonorcompanyisentitledtorelyuponcertainstatutoryprovisionssetoutinsubsections204(3)(a)-
(e) of the Securities Act (Alberta).
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No action may be commenced more than:

a. inthecaseofanactionforrescission,morethan180daysafterthedateofthetransactionthatgaverisetothe
cause of action; or

b. inthe case of any other action, other than an action for rescission, more than the earlier of
i.  180days after the subscriber first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action; or

ii. three years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

Rights for Subscribers in Saskatchewan

TheSecuritiesAct, 1988(Saskatchewan)willprovidestatutoryrightstopurchasersofOffered SharesinSaskatchewan
asdescribedintheSecuritiesAct,1988(Saskatchewan)upontheircomingintoforce.SuchActprovidesthat,subjectto
certainlimitations,intheeventthatthisOfferingMemorandumandanyamendmenttothisOfferingMemorandumcontain
aMisrepresentation,apurchaserwhopurchasesOfferedSharesunderthisOfferingMemorandumoranamendmenttothis
OfferingMemorandum,hasarightofactionfordamagesagainsttheCorporation,everypromoterofTheCorporation,every
personwhosignedthisOfferingMemorandumortheamendmenttothisOfferingMemorandumandeverypersonwhoor
companythatsellssecuritiesonbehalfoftheCorporationunderthisOfferingMemorandumoramendmenttothisOffering
Memorandum.Alternatively,wherethepurchaserpurchasedOfferedShares,thepurchasermayelecttoexercisearightof
rescission against the Corporation.

TheSecuritiesAct,1988(Saskatchewan)alsoprovidesthat,subjecttocertainlimitations,whereanyadvertisingorsales
literature(assuchtermsaredefinedinTheSecuritiesAct,1988Saskatchewan)disseminatedinconnectionwiththeOffering
containsaMisrepresentation,apurchaserwhopurchasesOfferedSharesreferredtointhatadvertisingorsalesliterature
hasarightofactionagainsttheCorporation,everypromoteroftheCorporationandeverypersonwhoorcompanythatsells
Offered Shares under the Offering with respect to which the advertising or sales literature was disseminated.

Inaddition,subjecttocertainlimitations,whereanindividualmakesaverbalstatementtoaprospectivepurchaserthat
containsaMisrepresentationrelatingtotheOfferedSharesoftheCorporationandtheverbalstatementismadeeither
beforeorcontemporaneouslywiththepurchaseofOfferedSharesoftheCorporation,thepurchaserhasarightof
actionfordamagesagainsttheindividualwhomadetheverbalstatement.Noactionshallbecommencedtoenforcethe
foregoing rights:

a. inthecaseofanactionforrescission,morethan180daysafterthedateofthetransactionthatgaverisetothe
cause of action; or

b. in the case of any action, other than an action for rescission, more than the earlier of
i. oneyear after the purchaser first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action, or

ii. sixyears after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

Rights for Subscribers in Manitoba

TheSecuritiesAct(Manitoba) providespurchasersofsecuritiesunderaprivate placementwhoreceivethisOffering
MemorandumwithcertainstatutoryrightsintheeventthereisaMisrepresentationinthisOfferingMemorandum.Insuch
event, Subscribers would have a statutory right to sue:

to cancel the agreement to buy Offered Shares; or

b. fordamagesagainsttheCorporation,everypersonwhoisadirectoratthedateoftheOfferingMemorandum,
andeverypersonorcompanywhosignedtheOfferingMemorandum.Thestatutoryrighttosueisavailable
toapurchaserwhetherthepurchaserreliedontheMisrepresentation.lfapurchaserchoosestorescinda
purchase thepurchasercannotthensuefordamages.Inaddition,inanactionfordamages,apersonwillnot
beliableforalloranyportionofdamagesthatthepersonprovesdonotrepresentthedepreciationinvalue
ofthesecuritiesasaresultoftheMisrepresentation.Furthermore,theamountrecoverableinanactionfor
damageswillnotexceedthepriceatwhichthesecuritieswereoffered.Therearevariousdefensesavailableto
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thepersonsthatapurchaserhasarighttosue.Forexample,apersonhasadefenseifthepurchaserknewof
theMisrepresentationwhenthepurchaserpurchasedthesecurities.Ifapurchaserintendstorelyontherights
describedaboveinparagraph(a)or(b),thepurchasermustdosowithinstricttimelimitations.Apurchaser
mustcommenceanactiontocanceltheagreementwithin 180daysafterthetransactionorcommenceaction
for damages within the earlier of

i. 180 days after the purchaser first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action; or

ii. two years after the day of the transaction.

Rights for Subscribers in New Brunswick

IntheeventthatthisOfferingMemorandum,togetherwithanyamendmentsheretousedinconnectionherewith,delivered
toapurchaserofOfferedSharesresidentinNewBrunswick,orinanyotherinformationprovidedpursuanttotheOffering,
containsaMisrepresentationanditwasaMisrepresentationatthetimeofpurchaseof OfferedSharesbysuchpurchaser,
thepurchaserwillbeDeemedtohavereliedupontheMisrepresentationandwill,asprovidedbelow,havearightof
actionagainsttheCorporationfordamages;or,whilestilltheowneroftheOfferedSharespurchasedbythatpurchaser,for
rescissionagainsttheCorporation,inwhichcase,ifthepurchaserelectstoexercisetherightofrescission,thepurchaser
will have no right of action for damages against the Corporation, provided that:

a. theright of action for rescission or damages must be exercisable by the purchaser not later than,

i. inthecaseofanactionforrescission,180daysafterthedateofthetransactionthatgaverisetothecause
of action; or

ii. tocancelyouragreementtobuythesesecurities,orinthecaseofanyaction,otherthananactionfor
rescission, the earlier of

A. oneyearaftertheplaintifffirsthadknowledge ofthefacts givingrisetothe cause ofaction, or

B. six years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action;

b. thedefendantwillnotbeliableifitprovesthatthepurchaserpurchasedtheOfferedShareswithknowledgeof
the Misrepresentation;

c. inthecaseofanactionfordamages,thedefendantwillnotbeliableforalloranyportionofthedamagesthat
itprovesdonotrepresentthedepreciationinvalueoftheOfferedSharesasaresultoftheMisrepresentation
relied upon; and

d. innocasewilltheamountrecoverableinanyactionexceedthepriceatwhichtheOfferedSharesweresoldto
the purchaser.

Rights for Subscribers in Nova Scotia

IntheeventthatthisOfferingMemorandum,togetherwithanyamendmentsheretousedinconnectionherewith,delivered
toapurchaserofOfferedSharesresidentinNovaScotia,orinanyadvertisingandsalesliteratureprovidedwithrespectto
theOffering,containsaMisrepresentationanditwasaMisrepresentationatthetimeofpurchaseofOfferedSharesbysuch
purchaser,thepurchaserwillbedeemedtohavereliedupontheMisrepresentationandwill,asprovidedbelow,havearight
ofactionagainsttheCorporation,theTrusteesandanypersonexecutingthecertificatetothisOfferingMemorandumorany
amendmentheretofordamages;or,whilestilltheowneroftheOfferedSharespurchasedbythatpurchaser,forrescission
againsttheCorporation,inwhichcase,ifthepurchaserelectstoexercisetherightofrescission,thepurchaserwillhaveno
rightofactionfordamagesagainsttheCorporation,theTrusteesoranypersonexecutingthecertificatetothisOffering,
provided that:

a. theright of action for rescission or damages must be exercisable by the purchaser not later than,

i. inthecaseofanactionforrescission,180daysafterthedateofthetransactionthatgaverisetothecause
of action; or

ii. inthe case of any action, other than an action for rescission, the earlier of,
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A. 180daysaftertheplaintifffirsthad knowledge ofthefactsgivingrisetothe cause ofaction,or

B. three years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action;

b. thedefendantwillnotbeliableifitprovesthatthepurchaserpurchasedtheOfferedShareswithknowledgeof
the Misrepresentation;

¢. inthecaseofanactionfordamages,thedefendantwillnotbeliableforalloranyportionofthedamagesthat
itprovesdonotrepresentthedepreciationinvalueoftheOfferedSharesasaresultoftheMisrepresentation
relied upon; and

d. innocasewilltheamountrecoverableinanyactionexceedthepriceatwhichtheOfferedSharesweresoldto
the purchaser.

Rights for Subscribers in Newfoundland and Labrador

IntheeventthatthisOfferingMemorandum,togetherwithanyamendmentsheretousedinconnectionherewith,delivered
toapurchaserofOfferedSharesresidentinNewfoundlandcontainsaMisrepresentationanditwasaMisrepresentation
atthetimeof purchase of Offered Shares by such purchaser, the purchaserwillbedeemedtohaverelied uponthe
Misrepresentationandwill,asprovidedbelow,haveacontractualrightofactionagainsttheCorporation,everyTrusteeat
thedateoftheOfferingMemorandum,andeverypersonwhosignedtheOfferingMemorandum,fordamages;or,while
stilltheowneroftheOfferedSharespurchasedbythatpurchaser,forrescissionagainsttheCorporation,inwhichcase,if
thepurchaserelectstoexercisetherightofrescission,thepurchaserwillhavenorightofactionfordamagesagainstthe
Corporation, provided that:

a. theright of action for rescission or damages must be exercisable by the purchaser not later than,

i. inthecaseofanactionforrescission,180daysafterthedateofthetransactionthatgaverisetothecause
of action; or

ii. inthe case of any action, other than an action for rescission, the earlier of,
A. 180daysaftertheplaintifffirsthad knowledge ofthefactsgivingrisetothe cause ofaction,or

B. three years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action;

b. thedefendantwillnotbeliableifitprovesthatthepurchaserpurchasedtheOfferedShareswithknowledgeof
the Misrepresentation;

¢. inthecaseofanactionfordamages,thedefendantwillnotbeliableforalloranyportionofthedamagesthat
itprovesdonotrepresentthedepreciationinvalueoftheOfferedSharesasaresultoftheMisrepresentation
relied upon; and

d. innocasewilltheamountrecoverableinanyactionexceedthepriceatwhichtheOfferedSharesweresoldto
the purchaser.

Rights of Subscribers in Prince Edward Island, Northwest Territories, Nunavut or Yukon

SecuritieslegislationinPrinceEdwardIsland,NorthwestTerritories,NunavutorYukonprovidesthat,whereanoffering
memorandum(suchasthisOfferingMemorandum)containsaMisrepresentation,apurchaserresidentinthatprovince
whopurchasessecuritiesoffered bytheofferingmemorandumhasarightofactionfordamagesagainsttheissuer,the
sellingsecurityholderonwhosebehalfthedistributionismade, everydirectoroftheissueratthedateoftheoffering
memorandum,andeverypersonwhosignedtheofferingmemorandum,orthepurchasermayexercisearightofactionfor
rescissionagainsttheissuerorsellingsecurityholder,inwhichcasethepurchaserwillhavenorightofactionfordamages
against any of the persons listed above.

Theforegoingstatutoryrightsaresubjecttovariousdefencesavailabletoadefendant.Inparticular,thepurchasershall
havenorightofactionfordamagesorrescissionifthedefendantprovesthatthepurchaserpurchasedthesecuritieswith
knowledgeofthemisrepresentation,andinanactionfordamages,thedefendantwillnotbeliableforanydamagesthat
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thedefendantprovesdonotrepresentthedepreciationinvalueofthesecuritiesresultingfromthemisrepresentation.
Moreover,innoeventwilltheamountrecoverablebyapurchaserexceedthepriceatwhichthesecuritieswereoffered.
Ifapurchaserintendstorelyontherightsdescribedabove,theymustdosowithinstricttimelimitationscontainedinthe
securities legislation of Prince Edward Island, Northwest Territories, Nunavut or Yukon, as the case may be.

Rights of Subscribers in Québec

NotwithstandingthatthesecuritieslegislationofQuébecdoesnotprovideorrequiretheCorporationtoprovidepurchasers
residentinQuébecanyrightsofactionincircumstanceswheretheOfferingMemorandumcontainsaMisrepresentation,The
CorporationherebygrantstopurchasersofOfferedSharesinQuébecunderthisOfferingMemorandumcontractualrightsof
actionincircumstanceswheretheOfferingMemorandumcontainsaMisrepresentationtothesameextentaspurchasersof
Offered Shares who are resident in Ontario. See “Rights of Subscribers in Ontario” above.

General

Theforegoingsummariesaresubjecttoanyexpressprovisionsofthesecuritieslegislationofeach OfferingJurisdiction
andtheregulations,rulesandpolicystatementsthereunderandreferenceismadetheretoforthecompletetextofsuch
provisions.Therightsofactiondescribedhereinareinadditiontoandwithoutderogationfromanyotherrightorremedy
that the purchaser may have at law.

Language of Documents

Uponreceiptofthisdocument,eachSubscriberherebyconfirmsthatithasexpresslyrequestedthatalldocuments
evidencingorrelatinginanywaytothesaleofsecuritiesdescribedherein(includingforgreatercertaintyanypurchase
confirmationornotice)bedrawnupintheEnglishlanguageonly.Parlareceptiondecedocument,chaqueinvestisseur
confirmeparlesprésentesquiilaexpressémentexigéquetouslesdocumentsfaisantfoiouserapportantdequelque
maniérequecesoitalaventedesvaleursmobiliéresdécritesauxprésentes(incluant,pourplusdecertitude, toute
confirmation d’achat ou tout avis) soient rédigés en anglais seulement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of CMI High Yield Opportunity Fund Corp.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of CMI High Yield Opportunity Fund Corp.
(the Entity) which comprise:

e the balance sheet as at October 31, 2021

e the statement of income and comprehensive income for the year then ended

o the statement of changes in shareholders' equity for the year then ended

o the statement of cash flows for the year then ended

e and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies

(Hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Entity as at October 31, 2021, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
"Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of
our auditors' report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.
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Emphasis of Matter - Comparative Information

We draw attention to Note 2e to the financial statements ("Note 2e"), which explains
that certain comparative information presented:

o for the year ended October 31, 2020 has been restated.

Note 2e explains the reason for the restatement and also explains the adjustments
that were applied to restate certain comparative information.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter - Comparative Information

The financial statements for the year ended October 31, 2020, excluding the
adjustments that were applied to restate certain comparative information, were audited
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements on February 26, 2021.

As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended October 31, 2021,
we also audited the adjustments that were applied to restate certain comparative
information presented for the year ended October 31, 2020.

In our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied.

Other than with respect to the adjustments that were applied to restate certain
comparative information, we were not engaged to audit, review or apply any
procedures to the financial statements for the year ended October 31, 2020.

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on those
financial statements taken as a whole.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Entity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial
reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Kins 42
T

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Toronto, Canada

February 24, 2022



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Balance Sheet
(In Canadian dollars)

October 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2020
(As restated -
note 2(e))
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,660,335 $ 1,294,100
Interest and fees receivable 10,238 21,642
Mortgage investments, net (note 4) 23,827,236 3,736,963
Advances to related companies (note 7) 2,390,524 305,797
Other assets 27,665 1,595
Total assets $ 27,915,998 $ 5,360,097
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 43,027 $ 12,000
Management and performance fees payable (note 7) 223,179 13,247
Advances from related companies (note 7) 3,190 1,495
Dividends payable 12,431 -
Prepaid mortgage interest 366,818 81,657
648,645 108,399
Shareholders' equity:
Common shares (note 5) 100 100
Redeemable preferred shares - Class A (note 6) 27,167,253 5,251,598
Redeemable preferred shares - Class F (note 6) 100,000 -
Retained earnings — -
27,267,353 5,251,698
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 27,915,998 $ 5,360,097

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
On behalf of the Board:
P\//ffiﬂ/% %i — Director

Director




CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

DRAFT statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2020
(As restated -
note 2(e))
Income:

Interest and fees $ 1,806,147 $ 197,650

Expenses:
Management and performance fees (note 7) 209,932 14,653
Office and general 8,184 2,928
Professional fees 69,475 26,505
Interest and bank charge 6,614 680
Expected credit losses (note 4) 21,782 10,327
315,987 55,093
Net income and comprehensive income $ 1,490,160 $ 142,557

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

Redeemable Redeemable

preferred preferred
Common shares - shares - Retained
shares Class A Class F earnings Total
(As restated -
note 2(e))
Shareholders' equity,

October 31, 2019 $ 100 $ - $ - $ - $ 100
Proceeds from issuance of shares - 5,265,250 - - 5,265,250
Transaction costs - (29,884) - - (29,884)
Net income and comprehensive

income - - - 142,557 142,557
Dividends paid - Class A - - - (126,325) (126,325)
Dividend reinvestment plan — 16,232 — (16,232) —
Shareholders' equity,

October 31, 2020 100 5,251,598 - - 5,251,698
Proceeds from issuance of shares - 21,818,729 100,000 - 21,918,729
Transaction costs - (214,405) - - (214,405)
Redemption of shares - (24,400) - - (24,400)
Net income and comprehensive

income - - - 1,490,160 1,490,160
Dividends paid - Class A - - - (1,152,682) (1,152,682)
Dividends paid - Class F - - - (1,747) (1,747)
Dividend reinvestment plan - 335,731 - (335,731) -
Shareholders' equity,

October 31, 2021 $ 100 $ 27,167,253 $ 100,000 $ — $ 27,267,353

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Statement of Cash Flows
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2020
Cash flows provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Net income and comprehensive income 1,490,160 142,557
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Expected credit losses 21,782 10,327
Interest and fees (1,806,147) (197,650)
Change in non-cash capital items:
Interest and fees receivable 11,404 (21,642)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 31,027 12,000
Management and performance fees payable 209,932 13,247
Prepaid mortgage interest 285,161 81,657
Other assets (26,070) -
Advances from/to related parties (2,083,032) (305,797)
Interest received 1,817,552 176,008
Funding of mortgage investments (20,220,490) (3,747,290)
Discharge and principal repayments of
mortgage investments 48,231 21,642
(20,220,490) (3,814,941)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of preferred shares 22,254,460 5,281,482
Redemptions of preferred shares 24,400 -
Transaction costs for issuance of preferred shares (214,405) (29,884)
Dividends paid to preferred shareholders (1,477,730) (142,557)
20,586,725 5,109,041
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 366,235 1,294,100
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,294,100 -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,660,335 1,294,100
Supplemental disclosure for non-cash activities:
Preferred Series A shares issued under the dividend
reinvestment plan $ 335,731 16,232

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

1. Organization of Corporation:

CMI High Yield Opportunity Fund Corp. (the "Corporation") is a corporation established under
Ontario Business Corporations Act on October 29, 2019. The registered office of the
Corporation is 149 Concord Road, Thornhill, ON, CA, L4J 7S2.

The Corporation's primary business is earning income through originating residential and
commercial real estate mortgage loans to borrowers. The Corporation is a Mortgage
Investment Corporation and focuses on generating a stream of income by investing in a
portfolio of mortgages, thereby providing investors with an opportunity to participate in a
portfolio of mortgages by purchasing preferred shares in the Corporation.

CMI Mortgage Services Inc. and Canadian Mortgages Inc., entities related to the officers of the

Corporation, together serve as manager for the Corporation under an amended Mortgage
Services Agreement dated November 1, 2020 (the "Manager").

2. Basis of presentation:
(a) Statement of compliance:
The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared by management in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), as issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB").

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
February 24, 2022.

(b) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the functional
currency of the Corporation.

(c) Basis of preparation:
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for

financial instruments classified as fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") which are
measured at fair value at each reporting date.



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

2,

Basis of presentation (continued):

(d) Use of estimates and judgments:

In the preparation of these financial statements, the Manager has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Corporation's accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

In making estimates, the Manager relies on external information and observable conditions
where possible, supplemented by internal analysis. There are no known trends,
commitments, events or uncertainties that the Manager believes will materially affect the
methodology or assumptions utilized in making these estimates in these financial
statements. The significant estimates and judgments used in determining the recorded
amount for assets and liabilities in the financial statements are as follows:

(i) Measurement of expected credit loss ("ECL"):

The determination of the allowance for credit losses ("ACL") takes into account different
factors including assumptions about local real estate market conditions, market interest
rates, availability and terms of financing, underlying value of the security and various
other factors. These judgments include changes in circumstances that may cause
future assessments of credit risk to be materially different from current assessments,
which would require an increase or decrease in the allowance of credit loss. The
Corporation exercises significant credit judgment in the determination of a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, credit impairment of mortgage
investments and expected recoverable amount of credit impaired mortgage
investments (note 4).

(i) Measurement of fair values:

The Corporation's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Corporation uses market
observable data where possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

e Level 1 - Inputs that are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

2,

Basis of presentation (continued):

e |Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices).

e Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The Manager reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third-party information, such as broker quotes or appraisals are used to measure fair
values, the Manager will assess the evidence obtained from the third parties to support
the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, including the level
in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

(e) Restatement:

The Corporation has restated its 2020 balance sheet to reclassify the redeemable preferred
shares outstanding at October 31, 2020 as equity and reflect dividends paid on, and
issuance cost related to, redeemable preferred shares in the statement of changes in
shareholders equity. Redeemable preferred shares had previously been presented as
liabilities, related dividends reported in the statement of income and comprehensive
income, and issuance cost recorded as a reduction of the preferred share liability in the
balance sheet. The classification of the preferred shares as liabilities was reassessed by
the Corporation in the year ended October 31, 2021 and a determination was made that its
ability to suspend or postpone, or continue a suspension or postponement of, redemptions
of the preferred shares required that the preferred shares be classified as equity under
International Accounting Standard 32, Financial Instruments - Presentation ("IAS 32").

An opening balance sheet at November 1, 2019 has not been presented due to the fact
that the Corporation did not commence active operations until the year beginning
November 1, 2019.



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

2,

Basis of presentation (continued):

The following tables summarize the impacts on the Corporation's financial statements:

(i)

Balance sheet:

As
previously As
October 31, 2020 reported Adjustments restated
Total assets $ 5,360,097 $ - $ 5,360,097
Redeemable preferred shares $ 5,251,598 $ (5,251,598) $ -
Others 108,399 - 108,399
Total liabilities 5,359,997 (5,251,598) 108,399
Redeemable preferred shares - 5,251,598 5,251,598
Others 100 - 100
Total shareholders' equity 100 5,251,598 5,251,698
Total liabilities and
shareholders' equity $ 5,360,097 $ — $ 5,360,097
Statement of income and comprehensive income:
As
previously As
Year ended October 31, 2020 reported Adjustments restated
Total income $ 197,650 $ - $ 197,650
Dividends on redeemable
preferred shares 142,557 (142,557) -
Others 55,093 - 55,093
Total expenses 197,650 (142,557) 55,093
Total comprehensive income $ — $ 142,557 $ 142,557




CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

2, Basis of presentation (continued):

(iii) Statement of changes in shareholders' equity:

As
previously As

Year ended October 31, 2020 reported Adjustments restated
Change in common shares $ 100 $ - $ 100
Redeemable preferred shares - 5,265,250 5,265,250
Issuance costs - (29,884) (29,884)
Dividend reinvestment plan — 16,232 16,232
Change in redeemable

preferred shares - 5,251,598 5,251,598
Net income and

comprehensive income - 142,557 142,557
Dividends paid - Class A - (126,325) (126,325)
Dividend reinvestment plan — (16,232) (16,232)
Change in retained earnings - - -
Total shareholders' equity $ 100 $ 5,251,598 $ 5,251,698

(iv) Statement of cash flows:
As
previously As

Year ended October 31, 2020 reported Adjustments restated
Total comprehensive income $ - $ 142,557 $ 142,557
Dividends on redeemable

preferred shares $ - $ (142,557) $ (142,557)
Others 5,251,598 - 5,251,598
Cash provided by financing

activities $ 5,251,598 $ (142,557) $ 5,109,041




CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies:

The Corporation's accounting policies and its standards of financial disclosure have been
applied consistently to all years presented in these financial statements with the exception of
the treatment of redeemable preferred shares as outlined in note 2(e) .

(a)

(b)

(c)

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash consists of cash on hand and unrestricted cash held with financial institutions. The
Corporation considers highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value to be cash equivalents. As at October 31, 2021, the
Corporation held only cash deposits held with Canadian chartered banks (2020 -
$1,294,100 in cash deposits held with Canadian chartered banks)

Interest income:

Interest income includes interest earned on the Corporation's mortgage investments and
interest earned on cash and cash equivalents. Interest income earned on the mortgage
investments is accounted for using the effective interest method.

Income taxes:

It is the intention of the Corporation to qualify as a mortgage investment corporation ("MIC")
for Canadian income tax purposes. As such, the Corporation is able to deduct, in
computing its income for a taxation year, dividends paid to its shareholders during the year
or within 90 days of the end of the year. The Corporation intends to maintain its status as a
MIC and pay dividends to its shareholders in the year and in future years to ensure that it
will not be subject to income taxes. Accordingly, for financial statement reporting purposes,
the tax deductibility of the Corporation's dividends results in the Corporation being
effectively exempt from taxation and no provision for current or deferred taxes is required
for the Corporation.

10



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(d) Financial assets and liabilities:
(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets:
(a) Recognition and initial measurement:
The Corporation on the date of origination or purchase recognizes loans, debt and
equity securities, deposits and subordinated debentures at the fair value of
consideration paid. Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the settlement date. All other financial assets and liabilities are
initially recognized on the trade date at which the Corporation becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The initial measurement of a financial asset or liability is at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its purchase or issuance. For
instruments measured at FVTPL, transaction costs are recognized immediately in
profit or loss.
Financial assets include debt instruments.

(i) Debt instruments:

Debt instruments, including loans and debt securities, are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

(a) Amortized cost;

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI"); or
(c) FVTPL for trading related assets.

Classification of debt instruments is determined based on:

(a) The business model under which the asset is held; and

(b) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.

11



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(ii)

Business model assessment:

Business model assessment involves determining whether financial assets are
managed in order to generate cash flows from collection of contractual cash
flows. The Corporation takes into consideration the following factors:

(a) How the performance of assets in a portfolio is evaluated and reported;

(b) The risks that affect the performance of assets held within a business
model and how those risks are managed; and

(c) Whether the assets are held for trading purposes.

(iii) Cash flow characteristics assessment:

The contractual cash flow characteristics assessment involves assessing the
contractual features of an instrument to determine if they give rise to cash flows
that are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual cash flows
are consistent with a basic lending arrangement if they represent cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding ("SPPI").

Principal is defined as the fair value of the instrument at initial recognition.
Principal may change over the life of the instruments due to repayments.

Interest is defined as consideration for the time value of money and the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding and for other basic
lending risks and costs (liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a
profit margin.

In performing this assessment, the Corporation takes into consideration
contractual features that could change the amount or timing of contractual cash
flows, such that the cash flows are no longer consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. If the Corporation identifies any contractual features that could
modify the cash flows of the instrument such that they are no longer consistent
with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVTPL.

12



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(a) Debt instruments measured at amortized cost:

Debt instruments are measured at amortized cost if they are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent SPPI. After initial measurement,
debt instruments in this category are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition, transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. Amortization is included in interest income in the

statement of income and comprehensive income.

Impairment on debt instruments measured at amortized cost is calculated
using the ECL approach. Loans and debt securities measured at
amortized cost are presented net of the ACL in the balance sheet.

(b) Debt instruments measured at FVOCI:

Debt instruments are measured at FVOCI if they are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent
payments that are SPPI. Subsequent to initial recognition, unrealized
gains and losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recorded in
other comprehensive income ("OCI"), unless the instrument is designated

in a fair value hedge relationship.

Impairment on debt instruments measured at FVOCI is calculated using
the ECL approach. The ACL on debt instruments measured at FVOCI
does not reduce the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet,
which remains at its fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance
that would arise if the assets were measured at amortized cost is
recognized in OCI with a corresponding charge to provision for impairment
allowance in the statement of income and comprehensive income. The
accumulated allowance recognized in OCI is recycled to the statement of
income and comprehensive income upon derecognition of the debt
instrument. At October 31, 2021 and 2020, the Corporation had no

instruments classified at FVOCI.
13



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c) Debt instruments measured at FVTPL:

Debt instruments measured at FVTPL include assets held for trading
purposes, assets held as part of a portfolio managed on a fair value basis
and assets whose cash flows do not represent payments that are SPPI.
These instruments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with
transaction costs recognized immediately in the statement of income and
comprehensive income as part of non-interest income. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses are recognized as part of non-interest income
in the statement of income and comprehensive income. At October 31,
2021 and 2020, the Corporation had no instruments classified at FVTPL.

(iv) Impairment:

The Corporation recognizes loss allowances for ECL on financial assets
measured at amortized cost. The Corporation applies a three-stage approach
to measure ACL. The Corporation measures loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12 months of expected losses for performing loans if the credit risk at
the reporting date has not increased significantly since initial recognition
(Stage 1) and at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses on performing
loans that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since
origination (Stage 2) and on credit impaired loans (Stage 3).

At each reporting date, the Corporation assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition by
assessing the risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life from
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The assessment
considers borrower-specific quantitative and qualitative information without
consideration of collateral, and the impact of forward-looking macro-economic
factors, management judgment and delinquency and monitoring.

With regards to delinquency and monitoring, there is a rebuttable presumption

that the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days overdue.

14



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(a) Measurement of ECL.:

The probability of default ("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD"), and loss given
default ("LGD") inputs used to estimate ECL are modelled based on
macroeconomic variables that are most closely related with credit losses in
the relevant portfolio.

Details of these statistical parameters/inputs are as follows:

PD - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over
a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the
remaining estimated life, if the facility has not been previously derecognized
and is still in the portfolio.

EAD - The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future
default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the
reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether
scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed
facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

LGD - The loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case
where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would
expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

(b) Macroeconomic factors:

In its models, the Corporation relies on forward looking information as
economic inputs, such as house price indices. The inputs and models
used for calculating ECL may not always capture all characteristics of the
market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative
adjustments or overlays may be made as temporary adjustments using
expert credit judgment.

15



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

3.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c)

(d)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk ("SIR"):

At each reporting date, the Corporation assesses whether there has been a
SIR for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the remaining expected life from the reporting date and the
date of initial recognition. The assessment considers borrower-specific
quantitative and qualitative information without consideration of collateral,
and the impact of forward-looking macro-economic factors, management
judgment and delinquency and monitoring.

The common assessments for SIR on investment portfolios include
macroeconomic outlook, management judgment, and delinquency and
monitoring. Forward looking macroeconomic factors are a key component
of the macroeconomic outlook. The importance and relevance of each
specific macroeconomic factor depends on the type of product,
characteristics of the financial instruments and the borrower and the
geographical region. Quantitative models may not always be able to
capture all reasonable and supportable information that may indicate a SIR.

Qualitative factors may be assessed to supplement the gap. With regards
to delinquency and monitoring, there is a rebuttable presumption that the
credit risk of the financial instrument has increased since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days overdue.

Presentation of ACL in the balance sheet:

(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the
gross carrying amount of the financial assets; and

(i) Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no allowance is recognized in
the balance sheet because the carrying value of these assets is their
fair value. However, the allowance determined is presented in the
accumulated OCI.

16



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(e) Definition of default:

The Corporation considers a financial instrument to be in default as a result
of one or more loss events that occurred after the date of initial recognition
of the instrument and the loss event has a negative impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the instrument that can be reliably estimated. This
includes events that indicate:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the borrower;
(ii) default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

(iii) high probability of the borrower entering a phase of bankruptcy or a
financial reorganization; and

(iv) measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the loan
or the underlying assets that back the loan.

The Corporation considers that default has occurred and classifies the
financial asset as impaired when it is more than 90 days past due, unless
reasonable and supportable information demonstrates that a more lagging
default criterion is appropriate.

(e) Recognition and measurement of financial instruments:

The Corporation determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial
recognition. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of
financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost, adjusted for directly attributable
transaction costs. Financial instruments classified as loans and receivables or other
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost.

17



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

3.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(f)

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities:

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets:

The Corporation derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expires, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred, or in which the Corporation neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control
of the financial asset. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for
derecognition that is created or retained by the Corporation is recognized as a separate
asset or liability. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the
asset transferred), and the sum of: (a) the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (b) any cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognized in OCI is recognized in profit or loss.

The Corporation enters into transactions whereby it transfers mortgage investments
recognized on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred mortgage investments. |If all or substantially all risks and
rewards are retained, then the transferred mortgage investments are not derecognized.

In transactions in which the Corporation neither retains nor transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the
asset, the Corporation continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of
the transferred asset.

Financial liabilities:

The Corporation derecognizes a financial liability when the obligation under the liability
is discharged, cancelled or expired.

18



CMI HIGH YIELD OPPORTUNITY FUND CORP.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
(In Canadian dollars)

Year ended October 31, 2021

3.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(g) Share capital:

In accordance with IAS 32, the Corporation's preferred shares are classified as equity due
to the fact that the Corporation may, in whole or in part, suspend or postpone, or continue a
suspension or postponement of, the right to redeem any preferred shares for any reason or
cause in its sole discretion thus meeting the definition of equity in IAS 32. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of common shares and preferred shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of preferred shares are recognized as a
deduction from equity.

Mortgage investments:

The following is a breakdown of the mortgage investment portfolio as at October 31, 2021 and
2020:

2021 2020
First mortgages 9% $ 2,041,785 4% $ 136,850
Second mortgages 79% 18,967,059 83% 3,127,390
Third mortgages 3% 624,746 13% 483,050
Blanket 1t position 1% 275,000 - -
Blanket 2" position 8% 1,950,600 - -
Total mortgages (at amortized cost) 23,859,190 3,747,290
Provision for impairment (31,954) (10,327)
Total mortgages (at amortized cost), net $ 23,827,236 $ 3,736,963

The mortgage investments are secured by the real property to which they relate, bear interest
at a weighted average interest rate of 10.82% (2020 - 11.26%) with a weighted average term to
maturity of 10.6 months as at October 31, 2021 (2020 - 11.2 months). At October 31, 2021,
there is $366,818 of pre-paid interest (2020 - $81,657), representing interest paid in advance
by the borrower. Pre-paid interest is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
mortgage.
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4, Mortgage investments (continued):

The following is a breakdown of the mortgage investment portfolio as at October 31, 2021 and

2020:
Gross Allowance Net
carrying for credit carrying
2021 amount losses amount
First mortgages $ 2,041,785 $ - $ 2,041,785
Second mortgage 18,967,059 470 18,966,589
Third mortgages 624,746 - 624,746
Blanket 15t position 275,000 11,236 263,764
Blanket 2" position 1,950,600 8,275 1,942,325
Total mortgage portfolio $ 23,859,190 $ 19,981 $ 23,839,209
Included in the total provision for impairment of $31,954 is a collective allowance of $11,973
Gross Allowance Net
carrying for credit carrying
2020 amount losses amount
First mortgages $ 136,850 $ - $ 136,850
Second mortgage 3,127,390 10,327 3,117,063
Third mortgages 483,050 - 483,050
Blanket 15t position - - -
Blanket 2" position - - -
Total mortgage portfolio $ 3,747,290 $ 10,327 $ 3,736,963
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Year ended October 31, 2021

Mortgage investments (continued):

The following tables presents for gross investments at amortized cost as at October 31, 2021

and 2020:
2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
First mortgages:
Residential $ 2,041,785 - $ - $ 2,041,785
Second mortgages:
Residential 18,644,070 322,989 - 18,967,059
Third mortgages
Residential 624,746 - - 624,746
Blanket 15t position
Residential 275,000 - - 275,000
Blanket 2" position
Residential 1,950,600 - - 1,950,600
Total $ 23,536,201 322,989 $ - $ 23,859,190
2020 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
First mortgages:
Residential $ 136,850 - $ - 9 136,850
Second mortgages:
Residential 3,127,390 - - 3,127,390
Third mortgages
Residential 483,050 - - 483,050
Blanket 1st position
Residential - - - -
Blanket 2" position
Residential - - - -
Total $ 3,747,290 — $ — $ 3,747,290
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4, Mortgage investments (continued):

The following tables presents the provision for credit losses on investments as at October 31,
2021 and 2020:

2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

First mortgages:
Residential $ - $ - $ - $ -
Second mortgages:
Residential 470 - - 470
Third mortgages
Residential - - - -
Blanket 15t position
Residential 11,236 - - 11,236
Blanket 2" position
Residential 8,275 - - 8,275

Total $ 19,981 $ — $ - $ 19,981

2020 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

First mortgages:

Residential $ - $ - $ - $ -
Second mortgages:
Residential

Third mortgages

Residential - - - -
Blanket 15t position

Residential - - - -
Blanket 2" position

Residential - - - -

|
—_—
o
w
N
\'
|

10,327

Total $ $ 10,327 $ - $ 10,327
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Mortgage investments (continued):

The following table presents the changes to the provision for credit losses on investments as at
October 31, 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance at November 1, 2020 $ - 9 10,327 $ - $ 10,327
Net change in provision 21,627 - 21,627
Transfer to (from):
Stage 1 10,327 (10,327) - -
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 - - - -
Allocation of provision to
interest receivable - - - -

Balance at October 31, 2021 $ 31954 $ — $ — $ 31,954

A majority of the mortgages contain a prepayment option, whereby the borrower may repay the
principal at any time prior to maturity with a pre-payment penalty of three months of interest on
the outstanding balance.

The Corporation also assessed for impairment to identify potential future losses on a collective
basis by grouping the mortgage investments with similar risk characteristics, to determine
whether a collective allowance should be recorded due to loss events for which there is
objective evidence but whose effects are not yet evident. Based on the amounts determined by
the analysis, the Corporation used judgment to determine whether or not the actual future
losses are expected to be greater or less than the amounts calculated. As at October 31, 2021,
the Corporation has recognized a total impairment provision of $31,954 (2020 - $10,327).

Common shares:

The Corporation has been authorized to issue unlimited common shares without nominal or par
value ("Common Shares").

Common Shares issued and outstanding are as follows:

2021 2020

Outstanding, beginning and end of year $ 100 $ 100
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Preferred shares:

The Corporation has been authorized to issue unlimited preferred shares of par value $1 per
share of preferred shares (the "Preferred Shares") on a private placement basis. The Preferred
Shares are issuable, from time to time, in one or more series as determined by the Board of
Directors.

The Preferred Shares rank prior to the Common Shares of the Corporation with respect to the
payment of dividends. In the distribution of assets in the event of liquidation, dissolution or
winding-up of the Corporation, the preferred shareholders shall be entitled to receive from the
assets and property of the Corporation, for each preferred share held, the sum of $1 together
with all declared and unpaid dividends. Preferred shareholders shall not be entitled to share in
any further distribution of the property of the Corporation.

Preferred Shares issued and outstanding are as follows:

2021 2020
Series A Series F Total Total

Balance, beginning of year $ 5,251,598 §$ - $ 5251598 $ -
Issued 21,818,729 100,000 21,918,729 5,265,250
Redemption (24,400) - (24,400) -
Transaction costs (214,405) - (214,405) (29,884)
Dividend reinvestment plan 335,731 - 335,731 16,231
Balance, end of year $ 27,167,253 $ 100,000 $ 27,267,253 $ 5,251,597

(a) Series A Preferred Shares:

The Corporation has issued Series A Preferred Shares in a private placement arrangement
at a price of $1 per share as noted in the offering memorandum dated July 2020. Each
holder of Series A Preferred Shares is entitled to receive dividends if, as and when
declared entirely at the discretion of the Board of Directors in such amounts, and payable in
such manner, as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

The Class A preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the holder at a price of $1
per share, provided that the minimum 12 months holding period has been met and the total
of redemption in the same calendar quarter does not exceed 10% of the total preferred
shares outstanding. The aggregate redemption amount is $27,411,542 (2020 -
$5,281,482).
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6.

Preferred shares (continued):

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Series F Preferred Shares:

The Corporation has issued Series F Preferred Shares in a private placement arrangement
at a price of $1 per share as noted in the offering memorandum dated July 2020. Each
holder of Series F Preferred Shares is entitled to receive dividends if, as and when
declared entirely at the discretion of the Board of Directors in such amounts, and payable in
such manner, as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

The Class F preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the holder at a price of $1
per share, provided that the minimum 12 months holding period has been met and the total
of redemption in the same calendar quarter does not exceed 10% of the total preferred
shares outstanding. The aggregate redemption amount is $100,000 (2020 - nil).

Redemption at option of Corporation:

The Corporation may, upon giving notice, redeem the whole or any part of the Series A and
Series F Preferred Shares then outstanding on payment for each such share to be
redeemed of an amount equal to: (i) $1 per share; plus (ii) all declared and unpaid
dividends on a share accrued up to the date fixed for redemption. Notice of such a
redemption must be given by the Corporation to each person whose shares are to be
redeemed at least 21 days before the date specified for redemption.

Redemption at option of holder:

A registered holder of the Series A or Series F Preferred Shares is entitled to require the
Corporation to redeem all or any of its Series A or F Preferred Shares by filing a
redemption request notice. A redemption request notice must be received by the

Corporation at least 90 days prior to the redemption date.

The redemption amount will equal to: (i) $1 per share; plus (ii) all declared and unpaid
dividends on a share accrued up to the date fixed for redemption.

Suspension of redemption right:
The Corporation may, in whole or in part, suspend or postpone, or continue a suspension

or postponement of, the right to redeem any preferred shares for any reason or cause in its
sole discretion.
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6.

Preferred shares (continued):

(f)

(9)

Dividends to preferred shareholders:

Holders of the Preferred Shares are entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends, in any
form or amount, as and when declared from time to time by the directors of the
Corporation, acting in their sole discretion, out of the moneys of the Corporation properly
applicable to the payment of dividends.

The Corporation intends to calculate and declare dividends on a monthly basis on the last
business day of each month (or as otherwise declared by the Corporation) and to pay such
dividends generally within fifteen days after the end of each month and in any event within
90 days of its year end. The payment of dividends is subject to the discretion of the Board
of Directors to establish working capital and other reserves for the Corporation and to
comply with the Articles and applicable laws.

During the year ended October 31, 2021, the Corporation declared dividends of $1,490,161
(2020 - $142,557) for Series A and Series F Preferred Shares.

Dividend reinvestment plan:

The Company has adopted a dividend reinvestment plan ("DRIP") which provides the
investors with the opportunity to reinvest their interest distribution, on each distribution
payment date, for additional preferred shares rather than cash. During the year, a total of
$335,731 (2020 - $16,232) in dividends has been reinvested under the dividend
reinvestment plan.
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7.

Related party transactions:

(a) Management and performance fees:

(b)

The Manager serves as the investment manager for the Corporation.

The Manager is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Corporation, including
administration of the Corporation's mortgage investments. The Corporation has entered
into a management agreement with the Manager. Under the management agreement, the
Corporation shall pay to the Manager, a management fee equal to 1% per annum, plus
harmonized sales tax, of the aggregate face value of all assets invested in mortgage by the
Corporation, calculated and paid monthly. For the year ended October 31, 2021, the
Corporation incurred management fees of $163,310 (2020 - $14,653).

Under the management agreement, the Corporation shall pay to the Manager an annual
performance fee equal to an amount not to exceed 20% of the net yield over and above 9%
per annum generated from all investments to be calculated at the end of the fiscal year.
For the year ended October 31, 2021, the Corporation incurred performance fees of
$46,622 (2020 - nil).

As at October 31, 2021, accounts payable includes management fees payable to Manager
of $175,733 (2020 - $13,247) and performance fees payable to the Manager of $47,446
(2020 - $824).

Advances to related companies:

2021 2020

Advances to CMI Balanced Fund $ 2,390,524 $ -

Advances to related companies at October 31, 2021 relate to transfers of mortgages from
the Corporation to the CMI Balanced Fund as well as switches by investors of investments
in preferred shares of the CMI Balanced Fund into investment in preferred shares in the
Corporation.
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7. Related party transactions (continued):

(c) Advances from related companies:

2021 2020
Advances to CMI Mortgage Services Inc.,
a company related by virtue of
common management $ 3,190 $ -

8. Fair value:

The fair values of interest and fees receivable, advances to related companies, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, management and performance fees payable, and advances
from related companies approximate their carrying values due to their short-term maturities.

The fair value of the mortgage investment portfolio approximates its carrying value as the
majority of the loans are repayable in full at any time with applicable penalties, and have short-
term fixed interest rates. There is no quoted price in an active market for the mortgage
investments. The Corporation makes its determinations of fair value based on its assessment
of the current lending market for mortgage of same or similar terms. As a result, the fair values
of mortgage investments are classified as Level 3 fair value.

9. Capital risk management:

The Corporation manages its capital structure in order to support ongoing operations while
focusing on its primary objectives of preserving shareholder capital and generating a stable
monthly cash dividend to shareholders. The Corporation defines its capital structure to include
Common Shares and Preferred Shares net of cash and cash equivalents.

The Corporation reviews its capital structure on an ongoing basis and adjusts its capital
structure in response to mortgage investment opportunities, the availability of capital and

anticipated changes in general economic conditions.

The Corporation's investment restrictions and asset allocation model incorporate various
restrictions and investment parameters to manage the risk profile of the mortgage investments.
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10.

Risk management:

The Corporation is exposed to the symptoms and effects of Canadian economic conditions and
other factors that could adversely affect its business, financial condition and operating results.
Many of these risk factors are beyond the Corporation's direct control. The Manager and Board
of Directors play an active role in monitoring the Corporation's key risks and in determining the
policies that are best suited to manage these risks.

The Corporation's business activities, including its use of financial instruments, exposes the
Corporation to various risks, the most significant of which are interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial assets or
financial liabilities will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. As at
October 31, 2021, no mortgage investments or bridge loans bear interest at variable rates.

The Corporation's other assets and liabilities, which include interest and fees receivable,
advances to related companies, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities have no
exposure to interest rate risk due to their short-term nature. Cash and cash equivalents,
bank indebtedness and revolving credit facility carry a variable rate of interest and are
subject to minimal interest rate risk.

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the possibility that a borrower may be unable to honour its debt commitments
as a result of a negative change in market conditions that could result in a loss to the
Corporation.

The Corporation mitigates this risk by the following:

(i) adhering to the investment restrictions and operating policies included in the

underwriting policies and procedures manual (subject to certain duly approved
exceptions);
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10.

Risk management (continued):

(c)

(i) all mortgage investments are approved by the investment committee before funding;
and

(i) actively monitoring the mortgage investments and initiating recovery procedures, in a
timely manner, where required.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at October 31, 2021 is the carrying values of its net
mortgage investments including interest receivable, amounting to $23,842,456 (2020 -
$3,758,605).

The Corporation has recourse under these mortgage investments in the event of default by
the borrower; in which case, the Corporation would have a claim against the underlying
collateral.

As at October 31, 2021, there are 2 mortgage (2020 - nil) investments totalling $322,989
(2020 - nil), including interest and fees receivable on these totalling $5,403 (2020 - nil) that
are past due for 30 days but not considered impaired. The Corporation has reviewed these
loans and determined an ECL is not required given the value of the underlying collateral.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The Company is exposed to this risk mainly in respect
of its redeemable preferred shares.

To mitigate its liquidity risk, the Company maintains cash reserves against possible
redemptions. In addition, the Company restricts the amount redeemable in respect of the
total preferred shares outstanding to a maximum of 10% in the same calendar quarter,
subject to a minimum 12 month holding period. Refer to note 6 for further information
regarding the Company's redeemable preferred shares.
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10. Risk management (continued):
(d) CovID 19:

Certain impacts from the COVID-19 outbreak may have a significant negative impact on the
Partnership's operations. These circumstances may continue for an extended period of
time, and may have an adverse impact on economic and market conditions. The ultimate
economic fallout from the pandemic, and the long-term impact on economies, markets,
industries and individual companies, are not known. The extent of the impact to the
financial performance and the operations of the Corporation will depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted.

11. Commitments and contingencies:
In the ordinary course of business activities, the Corporation may be contingently liable for

litigation and claims arising from investing in mortgages. Where required, management records
adequate provisions in the accounts.

12. Subsequent events:
Subsequent to year end, the Corporation declared and paid monthly dividends of $0.0086 per
share to shareholders of record as of November 15, 2021, December 15, 2021, January 15,

2022 and February 15, 2022.

In addition, the Corporation issued additional redeemable preferred shares in the amount of
$1,907,950 in November 2021, $2,05,774 in December 2021 and $3,525,317 in January 2022.

31



CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATION
Dated: March 31, 2022

This offering memorandum does not contain a misrepresentation.
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